VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1 5th Floor, Suite No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUCTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of RDB Mumbai
Infrastructures Private Limited (the “Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income)
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date.
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013
(the "Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. ("Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (“SA’s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

We are aware that Standard on Auditing (SA) 701, “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the
Independent Auditor's Report” applies to audit of all listed entities for the accounting year
commencing on or after April 1. 2019, KAMs are those matters that, in the auditor's
professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial results of the
current year. We understand that in determining the KAMs in your audit report on the
consolidated financial results of the CompanyAm e of SK701, you would be considering
the KAMs identified by us. Accordingly, we/Rereby £ {m that we will include a section on
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KAMSs in our Audit report on the Component. In the event, there are no key audit matters to
be communicated in respect of the component, we will state as under

‘We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for
RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited for the quarter and year ended March 31,
2024

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
lrue and fair view of the financial position. financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit We also

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient an appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a pi tatement resulting from fraud is

/ e\
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

- Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic cecisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work;, and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (‘the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examinali ' those books

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of :,__‘D_Ti'_,gnp L\cﬁs cluding Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity aﬁdzith}s \ pént of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant bocks )

b

N
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31. 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) Since the Company's turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs. 50
Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is
less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect
to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017 and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

.. The Company has pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

| Forum before which appeal is | Year Amount(Rs.) ]
pending | ‘
Commissioner (Appeal) of Income | 2014-15 2,49,48,150 |
| Tax - |

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

Iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts. no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise that the company shall. whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of Uw@m{a{? Be/n_efic:aries:

G L)

(57 SN

v. The company has not declared or paid any djvi p during the year in contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Ct, 2013,
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vi. Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance
on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules.2014 (Revised 2024 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
which included test checks, we report that the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with

QOur examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements
carried out in accordance with the Standard of Auditing and only to the extent required by
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014. We have not carried out any
audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule
11(g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us; the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

W

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 24" Day of May 2024
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBN5850
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(1)

(i)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited of
even date)

(a)(A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for

holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets and no such quarterly returns or statements are to be filed by the company with such
banks or financial institutions.

The company has made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties,

(a) The company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity [not applicable to companies
whose principal business is to give loans], if so, indicate-

(b) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

Reééipt Payment Clos_ing _
Balance

' Particulars Opening

Balance

568,262 | 3,33,76,400

e T AT e A e
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(v)

(B) The company has not granted loans or advances and guarantees or security to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates;

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances In the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest,

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated to be on demand so repayment
schedule is not available and the repayments or receipts are regular,

(d) Since Loan is repayable on demand so the point of overdue of ninety days is not
applicable.

(e) Loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year,
has not been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on

demand:
Particulars ‘ (ﬁl_aéiﬁg_ﬁala_nce Ly } "9 of Loans to related
_ . ‘ parties
Loans and Advances to ‘ 3,33,76,400 | 100%
L related parties e 1 [ N

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act have been complied with.

In respect of deposits accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, where applicable, have been complied with.

Maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under subsection (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act is not applicable

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities.

(b)Where statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) have not been deposited on
account of any dispute: '

“Forum where dispute | Name  of | Nature of | Financial A Amount
is pending the statute _ Dues Year '

v 2
i

T5013-14 | Rs. 2.49.48,150 |

| —— A r,
Commissioner of | Income Tax-
' Income Tax (Appeals) Act

— s — |
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(vill)

(ix)

(x)

(x1)

(xi1)

(xiii)

(xiv)

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b) The company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(¢) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained
(d) The company has not raised any funds on short term or long term purposes

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

(f) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment ar private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the
year

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
orescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.

(a The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence the compliance of this clause is not
required.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements, etc . as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(a) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore this clause is not
applicable. T A

(b) The company does not have an intefnal audjf syst
Auditors for the period under audit weré:notrequjred”

ﬁherefore the reports of the Internal
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(xv)

(xvi)

(xwvii)
(xvill)

(xix)

(XX)

(xxi)

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, -

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year.
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;

The provisions of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable on the company.

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

o
v
CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: The 24" Day of May 2024.
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBNS850
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RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1HT09WB2007PTC 1 14242

Balance Sheet as on 31 Mareh 2024

(Currency: Rupees i thousaneds)

Particulars Nute 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(@) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 13.72 16,23
{€) Financial Assets
(1) Investmen 4 538942 43,562 63
Ly Other financial assets $ 7.378.06 8,176.04
1d) Deferred tas assets (Net) f 670 44 411.33
(1) Other non-current assets 7 6,591 33 557094
Total Non - Current Assets 20,042.98 57.737.16
Current assets
(al lnventories 8 280,899 26 2.73.925.97
th) Financial Assets
(1) Trade receivables o 482517 16,674.17
tu} Cash and cash equivalents 10 60230 287.30
(i) Bank Balance other than (1) above i 6411 526,72
() Other financial assets - -
() Current Tax Assets (net) 1 39.80 965 39
1] Orher current assets 2 28.649.72 28,649 72
Total Current Assets 3.15,580.36 3 21,029.27
Total Assets 3,35,623.34 3,78,766.43

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 13 10,000 00 10,000.00
(by Other Equity 4 (2,172:12) (3,323497)
Total equity 7,827.88 6,676.03

Liabilities
Non-currvent linhilities
(a) Financial Liabilites

(1) Bormowings 13 28,402.00 19,964 95
(1) Other financial liabilities - -
Total non-current liabilities 28,402.00 19,964.95

Current linbilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(1) Burrawings i3 33.573.83 43,163 90

(11} Trade and other payables 16 I 184.05 28582

Li g Oither linancial labilities - -

b Other current habilities i 2,64.635 58 30867574

(€) Provisions TR - -

Total Current Liabilities 2,99.393.46 3.52,125.46

Toral liabilities 3,27,795.46 3,72,000.41

Total Equity & Liabilities 3,35,623.34 3.78,766.43
Significant aceounting policies -2
Nuotes to the accounts 3-38

The aecompanyving tiotes form an utegral part of the financtad siatements

As per our report ol even date
For Vineet Khetan & Associates For und an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chantered Accountants RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited

LJ/ For RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUCTURES RVT LTD
Nikash chand Thanwy, ‘}:

Vikash Jhanwar IKiran Mul Directer

Vineet Khetan
Praprietor
Membership No 060,70

fl}f-f't'l for Lhrecior

DIN: 0006901812 DIN 0003106868
3B, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001

The th day of 2024




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: UST109WB2007PTC 114242

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Currency. Rupees in thousands)

Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue
Revenue from operations 19 221826 17.68
Other income 20 7517 447 37
Total Revenue 2,293.43 515.05
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 2 7.224 45 10,713.73
Changes 1 inventories and work-in-progress 22 (6,973 20) (10,5350 73)
Employee henefit expense 23 . 10.00
Depreciation and amorusation expense 3 2.5] 747
Fimance costs 24 3500 196,57
Other expenses 23 111203 84217
Total expenses 1,400.70 1,219.21
Profit before tax 892.73 (704.16)

Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax %
F'ax Adjustment For Earher Year % -

- Deterred Tax (259.12) (187 96)
Total tax expense (259.12) (187.96)
Profit after tax 1,151.85 (516.20)
Other comprehensive income
fiems that may be reclassified to profit or loss . B

fiems that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss
(1) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - »
(1) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans = -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -

l'otal comprehensive income for the year 1,151.85 (516.20)

Earnings per equity share

Profit avalable for Equity Shareholders 1,151 85 (216.20)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 1.000.00 1.000.00
Busic earmings per share (In Rs) |15 (0.32)
Diluted eamnings per share (In Rs) .15 {0.52
Significant accounting policies 1-2
Notes to the accounts 3-38
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial siatements
As per our report of even date
For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charrered Accotmiants RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
e — -~ O = : =
/@;‘M i For RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUGTURES PVT LTD
(f :{‘."/é,_ 2\ ek Cl‘\‘-\hﬁi Thanie. ku/ '
\ZAN\S P R
\2\ Directcr
Yineer IKhetan “ Vikash Jhizanwia Iivan viali
Proprictor o Direcior Direcior
Membership No 060270 DIN: 0006901812 DIN 0003106868

iB.Lal Bazar Stieet,
kolkata - 700 001
| he Lh day ol 2024




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 81, Lal Bazar Strect, Kolkata - 700001
CIN USTO9WB200TPTC 114242

Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Currency: Rupees in thosands)

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ao Cash Now from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profiv and Loss 892.73 (TM.16)
Adjustiments tor
Sundry Halances written back
Deprecration & Amortisation 251 747
Interest Pand 3500 19657
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 930.24 (500.12)
tlnerease) / Decrease i liventornies (0. 864 44) (10,325.05)
tIncrease) ) Decrease in Trade receivables 11,849 00 (8,454 94)
{Increase) / Decrease of Advances - -
(Inerease) !/ Decrease of Other financials assets - -
- Decrease of Other Current Assets (1,057.78) (48.05)
(Decrease) m Trade Payables 85948 24 (561.94)
Increase ¢ | Decrease ) of Other financial habihnes - 1919
Increase | Decrease) of Other Currem Liabilities (44,040, 14) 21,032.80
Cash generated from operations (38,289.91) 1,161,589
Less: Direct taxes pand” (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 925,59 (20.00)
MNet cash Generated/{used) from operating activities (37,504.52) 1.141.89
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets - -
Changes of [nvestment 38.971.18 72330 10
Netvash from investing activities 38,971.18 72,330.10
€. Cash flow from financing activities :
lssue of Shares
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings B437.058 (64,431, 14)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (9,590.07) (9,7717.25)
Interest Pand (138.85) (422.25)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (1,291.87) (74,630,064}
Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents J15.00 (1,158.66)
Cashoand cash equivalents -Opening balance 287.30 1445 56
Cash and cash eguivalents -Closing balance 602,30 267.30
Notes to the Cash Flow statements
1) The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under "indirect method" as set out in the Ind As -7
Statement of Cash Flaw
2) Cash and Cash Equivalem Comparises of
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Casli on hand 577.33 26233
Balance with Banks
In current account 2498 2498
In cash credit accounts (debit balance) - -
In deposit acconnt {Maturity less than 3 Months) - -
602,30 287.30
Significunt acconnting policies -2
Navoxs to the accranis J-a4

e accompanyig sotes fuem an ttegral part of the fimancial statements

As per our veport of even date
For Vineet Khetun & Associares For and on behalt of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountams RDB Mumbui Infrastructures Private Limited

W' For RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUCTURRS PVF LTD
Nikash chand Thanuey. Il/

Vineet Khetan Vikash Jhanwar Kiran Mali Ditecter
Proprietor Lirector Ihrectar ai
Membership No (60270 DIN: 0006901812 DIN: D003 10686

3B.Lal Bazar Street
kalkata - 700 001
Ihe th daw of 2024




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited

Significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2024

b

bd
b

Company Information

ROB Mumbai [nfrastructures Private Limited (Formerly Maple Tie Up Private Limited) (The Company) is a deemed Public
limited company. private company being a subsidiary of Listed Public Company domiciled and incorporated in India. It is a
part of'a Compay leading in real estate activities in Eastern India. The registered office of the Company is situated at 8/1,
Lalbazar Street, Bikaner Building. | Floor. Room No.10. Kolkata-700001. The principle business activity of the company is
Real Estate Development,

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of Financial Starements

Basis of preparation

Fhe financial statements (Separate financial statements) have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind. AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time) and presentation requirements of Division I1 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant
Schedule [11), as applicable to the standalone financial statements,

Basis of measurement

I'he financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India. Further. the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value as explained in relevant accounting policies,

Operating Cycle

An ussel 15 considered as current when it is:

*Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

*Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

sExpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

*Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the
reporting period

All other assets are ¢lassified as non-current.

A liability is considered as current when:

*Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

+Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

*Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

*There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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The Company s normal operating cvele in respect of operations relating to the construction of real estate projects may vary
from project to project depending upon the size of the project, type of development, project complexities and related
approvals. Accordingly. project related assets and liabilities have been classified in to current and non-current based on
operating cycle of respective project. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current based on
a period of twelve months,

Use of estimates and management judgments

I'he preparation of financial statement in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires
management to make judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues. expenses, assets and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities afTected
in future periods.

1) Key estimates and assumptions

I'he key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
stgnificant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear.
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they oceur,

ii) Revenue recognition, contract costs and valuation of unbilled revenue

The Company uses the pereentage of~completion method for recognition of revenue. accounting for unbilled revenue and
contract cost thereon for its real estate and contractual projects, The percentage of completion is measured by reference 1o the
stage ol the projects and contracts determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date
bear Lo the estimated total contract costs. Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to estimate the
etforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Significant assumptions are
required in determining the stage of completion. the extent of the contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue
and contract cost and the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are based on events existing at the end of each
reporting date.

For revenue recognition for projects executed through joint development arrangements. refer clause (i) below as regards
estimates and assumptions involved.

iii) Estimation of net realisable value for inventory property (including land advance)
Inventory property is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV),
NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting date

and is determined by the Company. based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for properties in the same
geographical market serving the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date for
similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time value of money 1o the
date of completion.

With respect to Land advance given. the : value is based on the present value of future cash flows, which

depends on the estimate of. among other thi tkelihood that a project will be completed. the expected date of

completion, the discount rate used and the es
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized as follows:

I Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on Percentage Completion Method. Revenue recognition starts
when 25 % of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing cost is incurred, atleast 25% of the saleable project area is
secured by contracts or agreements with buyers and Atleast 10 % of the total revenue as per the agreements of sale or any
other legally enforceable documents are realised at the reporting date in respect of each of the contracts and it is reasonable to
eapect that the parties 1o such contracts will comply with the payment terms as defined in the contracts,

ii. Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on "Percentage of Completion Method" measured by reference to
the survey of' works done up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

il Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax, if any. net of sales return,
iv. Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services to customers except otherwise stated

v. Rental income from assets is recognised for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered
doubtful. Rental income is exclusive of service tax

Vi Income from interest is accounted for on time proportion basis taking into account the amount owtstanding and the
applicable rate of interest.

Property, Plant and Equipment

I'he cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price. any costs dircetly attributable to its
acquisition and an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located, the obligation for which the company incurs when the item is acquired. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrving amount or recognized as u separate assel. as appropriate. only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery, When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed. its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Aniten of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
fealculuted us the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the Property, plant and equipment is derecognised.

‘ith the carrving value of all its property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS. the company has elected to continue
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition. intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss,

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end ol each reporting period

On transition to Ind AS. the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognized is
at Ist April. 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are carried as part of the cost of such asset,
A qualifyving asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the year they are incurred.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost. net of their
residual values. over their estimated useful lives.

I'he useful lives estimated for the major classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on written down value method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the
management and as given in schedule 11 of The Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period
1s proportionately charged.

Sollwares are amortized over the estimated useful life of 5 years.
The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at cach financial
year end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

Tmpairment of Non-Financial Assets

The management periodically assesses using external and internal sources, whether there is an indication that both langible
and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if the reversal can be related objectively to an
event oceurring after the impairment loss was recognized,

Inventaories

Constructed properties. shown as work in progress, includes the cost of land (including development rights and land under
agreements to purchase). internal development costs, external development costs, construction costs, overheads, borrowing
costs. construction materials including material lying at respective sites, finance and administrative expenses which contribute
1o bring the inventory to their present location and condition and s valued at lower of cost/ estimated cost and net realizable
value.
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On completion of projects, unsold stocks are transferred to project linished stock under the head “Inventory” and the same is
carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Finished Goods — Flats: Valued at cost and net realizable value,
Land Inventory: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Provision for obsolescence ininventories is made, wherever required.
Retirement Benefits
Short Term employee benefit

Short term employee benetits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cost of ex-gratia ete, are recognised in the period in
which the employee renders the related service

Long Term and Post-employment benefits
No such benefits are payable to any employee,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation if the company
has @ present obligation as a result of past event and the amount of obligation can be reliably estimated.,

Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate. the risks specific 1o the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost,

Possible futre or present obligations that may but will probably not require outflow of resources or where the same cannot be
reliably estimated 1s disclosed as contingent liability in the financial statement,

Taxes on Income

I Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is determined in respect of taxable income for the vear
based on applicable tax rates and laws.

il Deterred tax Asse/liability is recognized. subject to consideration of prudence, on timing differences being the

differences between taxable incomes and accounting income that originates in one year and is capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent year and measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantive v enacted by the Balange
Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty that sutticient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date 1o
reassess their reliability,
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i Ninimum Alternative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid
under MAT are available as a set off against regular corporate tax payable in subsequent vears, as per the provisions of
Income Tax Act. MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in
which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act. 1961. the said
asset Is created by way of eredit 1o the statement of profit and loss und shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Compuany
reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does
not have convineing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period,

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at Balance Sheet date.
The gains or losses resulting tfrom such translation are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and
nonmonetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the

date ol transactions

Revenue. expense and cash flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate in efTect on
the date of transaction.

Segment Reporting

the company has identified that its operating activity is a single primary business segment viz, Real Estate Development and
Services carried out in India, Accordingly, whale of India has been considered as one geographical segment.

Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects ol all dilutive potential
equity shares

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash & cash on deposit with banks and carporations, The Company considers all highly
liguid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the

Company’s cash management and that are readijs=e
Pt
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Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and tinancial liabilities are recognized in the company’s statement of financial position when the company
becomes a party (o the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company determines the classification of its linancial
assers and liabilities at initial recognition. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus. in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assel.

Financial assets ~Subsequent measurement
[he Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification which is as follows:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for sale in the near term and those designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowance
for estimated irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of the reccivables balance and historical experience. Additionally. a
large number of minor receivables are Compayed into homogenous Compays and assessed for impairment collectively.
Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not 1o be collectible.

Debt instruments at amortised cost:
Adebt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
1, The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

il.Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specitied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPP1) on the principul amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Compay. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and vther receivables.

Debt instrument s PV TOC
A sdebt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

i.The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asscts.
and
ii. The usset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL-Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured

nitially as well as at cach reporting date at fa &ﬂ]&u};
; . S8 &
mcome (OCT). %

(.

movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument. which does not meet the criteria for categorization as
atamortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Inaddition. the Compay may elect to designate a debt instrument. which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT criteria.
as at FVIPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred 1o as “accounting mismatch’). The Compay has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI

Allequity investments. except investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. falling within the scope of Ind AS
109, are measured at fair valye through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The company makes an irrevocable clection on
an instrument by instrument basis to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable, | the company decides to designate an equity instrument at fair
value through OCI. then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.

Financial assets —Derecognition

I'he company derecognizes a linancial asser when the contractual rights to the cash lows from the assets expire or it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ow nership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity
istrments desienated at fair value through OCH the assoctated fair value changes of that Cquity instrument is transterred
from OCT 10 Retgined Earnings

Financial liabilities - Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classitied. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. loans and
borrowings. or as payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other pavables. loans and borrowings including bank overdrafls.
Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement

Ihe Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification which is as follows:

Financial liabilities at fuir value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading, ifany, and financial
Habilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value thraugh profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held
for trading it they are incurred for the purpose ol repurchasing in the near term,

Gains or [osses on labilities held for tra
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Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Interest bearing loans and borrowings including debentures issued by the company are subscquently measured at amortized
costusing the effective interest rate method (EIR), Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortized is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss,

Financial liabilities =Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or expires,
Fair Value measurement

The company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer g liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on presumption that the transaction 10 sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

a. In the principal market for the assets or linbility or

b. In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

Ihe principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The company uses valuation technique tha
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fajr value. maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valye measurement as «
whole:

P level ] Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities:
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is dircetly
orindirectly observable. or

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable,

Forassets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether
transters have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant (o the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of'balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind
AS 109 requires expected eredit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected
losses tor all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other linancial
assels. expected credit losses are measured amngin

the lite time expected credit losses. if' the

al to the 12-month expected credit losses or atan amount equal to
nancial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

A. Lquity Share Capital

(Currency: Rupees in thousands)

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Balunce as at 1 April 2022

Changes i equity share capital during the yed
Balince as at 31 March 2023

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2024

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

B, Other Equity

(Currency: Rupees in thousands)

" Retained

Particulars Earmines

LArmngs
Bakinee at 1 April 2022 (2,807.78)
Iransfers -
Profit for the vear (516.20)
Other comprehensive income -
Totl comprehensive income for the year (516,20}
Balance at 31 March 2023 (3,323.97)
Transfers -
Profit for the Yeur 1,151 85
Other comprehensive income »
Total comprehensive income for the period 1,151.85
Bulance at 31 March 2024 (2,172.12)

Significant acconnting policies -2
Notes to the accounts 3-38
The accompanying notes form an mie gral part of the financial siatemenis

AS per gur report ol even date

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited

_ For RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUCTURES PYY LTD
‘\I/ Nikash chan~d Than ey | m :

Vineet Khetan Vikash Jhanwar

Proprietor Director
Membership No.060270)

3B Lal Bazar Street,

Kolkata - 700 001

fhe  thdayol 2024

DIN: 0006901812

ke
Kiran .\I:IE'?”'B"LI

Durectar

DIN: 0003100808
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

(Currency: Rupees in thousands)

Particulars Office Equipment Computers Total
Gross Bloek
Balance as at 1 April 2022 88.23 178.23 260.40
Additions during the vear - - -
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 88.23 178.23 200.40
Additions -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 88.23 178.23 260,46
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2022 73.62 169.15 242.77
Depreciation charge during the vear 7.29 0.17 747
Disposals 8 = -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 80.91 169.32 250.23
Depreciation charge during the year 2.51 2.51
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 83.42 169.32 252.74
Net Block
Balance as at 31 March 2023 7.31 8.91 16.23
Balance as at 31 March 2024 e 4.81 8.91 13.72
T e
71 \??,'.-“—-g A




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
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CIN: USTI09WB2007PTC1 14242
(Currency: Rupees in thowsands)
Notes to the financial statements 31 March 2024 31 March 2013

Nute 4 Financial Assets (Investment)

A) lnvestments in Equity Instruments
{11) In Associates (Unguoted)

Citylife Realty Private Limited 43,00 43.00
4300 (Previous Year 4300) Equity share with Face value of Rs. 10 per

share (Previous year Rs [0 per share)

B) luvestments in Partnership Firm

Regent Associates (31% share in Profit) 5,359 99 43,529 28
Disclosure of Investment in Partnership Firm (Regent Associates)
Mame of Patner and Share of [nvestmen
RODB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (51%) 5,359 99 43,529.28
Dharmendra Lalchand Jain (11%) 16,2032 08 15,803.73
Lalchund Pannalal Jain (11%) 5414 84 501549
Leela Lalchand Jain (11%) 6,196.78 5,797 44
Mahendra Lalchand Jain (8%) 9,749 74 9.459.31
Praveen Lalchand Jain (8%) 12,094 61 11,804.17
S55,019.03 91.409.42
Regent Developers & Builders (60%, share in Profit) (57.66) (57.45)

Dnsclosure ol Investment i Partnership Finm
Name ol Partner and Share of [nvestment

RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (60%) (57.66) (57.435)
Keshulal Mehta (40%) 58.00 58.14
Mahendra Bokadia (15%) - -
0.34 (L649
C) tovestments in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP)
RDE Mumbai Housing LLP (67% share in Profit) 041 0.64
[hsglosure of Invesiment 1n Partnership Firm
Name of Partner and Share of Investiment
ROB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited (67%) 0.41 .64
Shashank Bansode (33%) 206,13 296,25
296.54 296.90
RDE Mumbai Realty LLI (90% share in Profit) 43,69 47.15
RDB Mumba Infrastructures Private Limited (904 43.69 4713
Harish Mali { 10%) (7.25) (6.86)
d6.44 40.29
Total 5, 3489.42 43,562.03
Note 5 Financial Assets (Other Financial assets)
Non-current
Unsecured, Consider good
Secuirty depuosit 3046 065 3,875.04
Other non current deposits 380100 380100
Depostt with banks (Maturity more than 12 Months)
Fixed deposit wath ICICI Bank - -
Fixed deposit with Kotak Bank 53041 300 00
7,378.06 B, 176.04
Note 6 Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred Tax Assets on
- On Fixed Assets 334 443
- On Brought Forward Los = ? 667 10 406 90

Total 670.44 411.33
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Notes to the linancial statements
Note 7 Other non-current assets

Balances with government authorities
Pre paid expenses

Total
Note 8§ Inventories

(Al lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in process

Total Inventories

Note @ Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade recevables from related parties - considered good
Trade receivables- considered good

Less Expected credit loss allowances

Total

Break up of security details:

Trade recevables

(@) Secured, considered good

(b Unsecured, considersd good

(c) Doubtiul

Less Allowance for doubtful debts

Total

Lrade receivables ageing schedule

Particulars

(Crrrency: Rupees ir thousaieds)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

650133 5,570.94
0,591.33 5,570.94
2,80,899.26 27392597
21805599.26 1!73.925.97
4.825.17 16,674.17
4!825.17 IGEGN.I?
4,825.17 16.674.17
4,825.17 10,674.17

(Currency: Bupees in thousands)

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

(1) Undisputed Trade Recevables - Considered goodOutstanding for the following periods from the due dae

of payments

Less than 6 months
6 maonths - | vear
12 years

23 vears

More than 3 vears
l'otal

Note 10 Finaneial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)

{a) Cash in hand
() Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account)
Total

Other Bank Balanges

va) In deposit account { Matwirty more than 3 months and less

than 12 months)
Total
Note I Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets (Advance Income Tax and 1DS)
Total
Note 12 Other current assets
Advanee 1o suppliers against Matenal
Advance to supphiers against Expenses
Halances wath povernment authorit ’/"

Pre puid expenses
Other Advances

Total

| 407 44 u
1,750 00 11,737 44
1,667.73 4936 73
4 825 17 16,674 17
577.33 262 33
24 98 2498
602 30 28730
564 11 526 72
1,166,41 H14.02
3980 U6s 3w
J9.80 965,39
3891 389
28,610 81 2861081
28.640.72 28.640.72




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building. 8/1. Lal Bazar Street. Kolkata - 700001
CIN US1I09WB2007PTC 114242
U urrency: Rupees tn thousands)
Notes to the financial statements 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Note 13 Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
2] Authonsed Share Caprtal

Number of Shares 10,000 00 10.000.00

Tatal Amount 100,000 00 1,006,000 .00
b lssued. subscribed and fully paid Share Capital

Number of Shares | 000 .00 1,000 00

Total Amount 10,0040 00 10,000.00

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding

As at the beginning of the year 1.000.00 1,.000.00
Add: Issued during the vear = =
As at the end of the year 1,000 00 1,000 00

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voung nght
Name of Equity Sharcholders

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Lid

Number of Shares 510,00 510.00

Percentage of Total shares held 51.00% 51.00%
Kiran Ponnamchand Mali

Number of Shares 163 33 163.33

Percentage of Total shares held 16.33% 16.33%
Vikash Mohan Jhanwar

Number of Shares 163 34 163 34

Percentage of Total shares held 16.33% 16.33%
Waseem Javed Khan

Number of Shares 163.33 163.33

Percentage of Total shares held 16.33% 16.23%

e) The rights, preferences & restrietions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of
dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares Fach holder of equity shares 1s entitled to one vote per share: The company declares and pays dividends in
Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Ditectors is subject 10 the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the
event of hiquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the company. afier distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 81, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN. USTTO09WEB2007PTC1 14242
(€ urrency: Rupees wi thouscainds)

Notes 1o the financial statements 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

r associates of holding

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Lid
Number of Shares 51000 510000

Percentage of Total shares held 1% S1.00%
¢) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts,
Number of Shares & Amount <

h) Shares 1ssued for consideration other than cash or honus to sharcholders or bousht back from

shareholders within the period of § years

No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back

1) Shares held by Promotoers

As at 31 March 2024

(Currency: I

es it ihowands)

No_of Shares at.
the begning of |Change during

%o of total shares

% change dunng

Promoters Name the vear the Year (In Rs) the vear
RDB Realty & Infrastructures Lid 10000 - 51.00 .
Kiran P Mali 163 333 - 16.33 -
Waseem J Khan 163 334 - 163 334 16,34 -
Vikash M Jhanwer 163 333 - 163 333 16.33 -
Total 1,000,000 100000 10000 -

As at 31 March 2023

(Crrrency: Ry

wees i thousands)

MNo_of Shares at

No_of Shares at

the begning of | Change during the end of the | % of total shares | % change during
Promoters Name the vear |lhe Year ear (in Rs) the vear
RDB Realty & Infrastructures Lid 510.000 - 510.000 51.00 -
Kiran ' Mali 163333 - 163 333 16.33 -
Waseem J Khan 163.334 - 163334 16.34 -
Vikash M Jhanwer 163 333 - 163.333 1633 -
Taotal 1.000.000 L000.000 100,00 -




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, ¥/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: US1I09WB2007PTC114242

Nates to the financial statcments

Note 14 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus
Retained Earnings

(Currency: Rupees in thousands)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

As at the beginning of the vear (3,32397) (2,807 78)

Add: Profiv{ Loss) for the vear 1,151, 85 {(516.20)

Add. Ind AS Adjustments - -

As at the end of the vear (2,172.12) (3,32357)
Uther Comprehensive [ncome

Equity Instruments through other comprehiensive income i -

Other ttems of Other Comprehensive Income % -
Total (2,172.12) (3,323.97)
Note |5 Financial liabilities - Borrowings
Non-current
Seeured - at amortised cost

Term Loans from Bank - Financial instiution - 1,612.95
Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest acerued

From Promoters 28,402.00 18,352.00

From Others . &

Total 28,402.00 19,964.95
Current
Current maturity of Non-current Borrowings

Term Loans from Bank  Financial institution 490 88 -
Secured - at amortised cost

Owerdraft tacility From Banks 33,076 96 43,163.90

Total 33,573.83 43,163.90

- Natur
Nature of Borrowing Ferm of Repayment Interest Rate | lu _cof
Security
Current Borrowing
Term Louns from Bank / Financial institution Repayable in 36 monthly 925% pa Refe note |
installmenets of Rs 101,611

Overdraft facility From Banks Against Stock and Book debts 1325% pa | Refer note 2

Notes

1) WCTL by way of Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL) under ECLGS Scheme by creating second charge on lixed assets of the Company

as primary security snd collateral security as extension of mortgage on land
2} Overdraft facility from Banks was secured against Open plot of land bearing no.3 and 4 total admeasuring 476.50 sq mt or thereabouts bearing
CTS No 1075/A, 2 10 22 of village Juhu Koliwada, Taluka Andheri Pin code 400049, Dwned by Maple Tieup Pyt Lid,

3) Funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purpose

41 Borrowed funds were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,

51 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or uny government authority

) The Company do not have any charges ar satisfaction, which 1s yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
Note 16 Financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
Outstanding dues of micro & small entréprises B =
Other than above 1,184,035 28582
Total 1,184.058 28582

=

As at 31 March 2024

Partivulars
MSME
Cithers

Disputed Dues - MSME oen aee

[sputed Dues - Others

2-3 Yeuars

(Currency: Rupees m thiusands)

or followng periods from due date of payment

Maure than 3 years

18,94

Total

1,184 05



RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lul Bazar Street, Kolkata - 70000
CIN: US1109WB2007PTC 114242
(Crrrency: Rupees in thowsands)

Nates to the financial statements 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Asat 31 March 2023 ((urrency: Rupees in thousands)
Outstanding for following peripds from due da ‘M

Particulars Less than | year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 vears Total

MSME -

Ohers 236,87 48.94 28582
[nsputed Dues - MSME - . ; P
Disputed Dues - Others - -

Note 17 Other Current Linbilities

Statutory dues payable 310,58 350,74
Advances from Customers | Booking 264,325 00 30832500
Taotal 2,64,635.58 3,08,675.74

Note 18 Provisivns

Provision for taxes
tnet oft advace wx and TDS Rs. Nil (%Y. Rs, Nif )
Provision for Expenses




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor. Bikaner Building. 8/1, Lal Bazar Street. Kolkata - 700001
CIN: USTTO9WB2007PTC1 14242

Notes to the financial statements
Note 19 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Construction Activities
Other Income of Construction Activities
Share of Profit from Investment in Firm (Non Current, Trade)
TOTAL
Note 20 Other Income

Miscellancous Income

Sundry Balances written back
Total
Note 21 Construction Activity Expenses

Other Construction Expenses
Interest & Other Finanee Cost (in accordance with IND AS-23)

Consumption

Note 22 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Opening Inventory of Unsold flats

Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of unsold flats
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B)
Note 23 Employee Benefits Expense
Sularies. Wages and incentives

Total

Note 24 Finance Cost

P'rocessing fees for OD & BG

Total

(Currency:

31 March 2024

Rupees in thousands)

31 March 2023

- 17.68

2,218.26 -
2,218.20 17.68
75.17 20.68

- 476.70

75.17 497.37
7.120.60 10,488.05
103.85 225.68
7,224.45 10,713.73
2.73,925.97 2.63,375.24

(2.80,899.26)

(2,73.925.97)

(6,973.29) (10,550.73)
> 10.00

= 10.00

35.00 196.57
35.00 196.57




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited

Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1,

Lal Bazar Street. Kolkata - T00001

CIN: US1109WB2007PT ('] 14242

Notes to the financial statements
Note 25 Others Expenses

Rates & Tuxes
GST Paid
Other Repairs
Share of loss from Investment in Firm (Non Current. Trade)
Interest an late payment of statutory dues
Miscellancous Expenses
Bad Debis/ Advances Wrirten Ofr
Professional Charges
Bank Charges
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees

Tax Audit Fees
Total

(Currency: Rupees in thousands)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

6.51 5.90

- 004.00

4 5.78
370.67 2577
0.65 0.85
149.06 -
439.24 »
110.55 149.07
0.35 15.81
20.00 20,00
15.00 15.00
1,112.03 842.17




RDE Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 81, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN USII09WB2007PT( | 14242

Additional notes to the financial statments for the year ended 31 March 2024
26 Reconcilintion of Effective Tax Rate
The inconse 1ax expe

nse tor the year can be reconeiled 1o the acgounting prodit as follows,

(Currency: Rupees 1 thatesaridy)

Particulars 31-03-2024 31 March 2023

Yo of tax Amount %o of tax Amount
Profiv { Loss) before tax 892 73 (704.16)
Income tax expense calonluted [l 26% (2023: 6% 26%, 23211 -
Tav effect of
Effeet of expenses that are not deducrible under income 1ax 10.87% 97.03 -
Eteet of income that are exempt from tax =36, (317.00) -
Ellect ol expenses that wre deductible under meome tas (e (1.74) ‘
Oiher diffgrences .
Tatal - -
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relaton to the - -
Lurrent tx of prior vears
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 1.16% 1040 = =

The tax rate used for the year 2023-24 and 2022-
Acl, 1961

Abovie workings are based on provisional com

23 reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on tixable profits unde

putation of tax expense and subject to finalisation ncluding that of tax audit or
otherwise in due course

T the Income Tax

17T Operaring Lease
As per Ind AS -17 ‘Leases’, the disclosure of transactions with the respect 1o lease of prenmises 1s diselosed as follows:
Assets taken on Operating Lease ;
The Company las taken commercial premises on Operating Lease and lease rent of Rs. NIL (Previous Year Ra:NIL)
has been debited 10 Statement of Profit and Loss and Rs, NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL) has been inventorised for the current year
The Company does nat have any contingent lease rental expenses! income
28 Related Party Disclosire

Disclosures as required by the Indian Accounting Standard 24 {Ind AS-24) “Reluted P

Related Panty Relationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Lid
Subsidary - Regent Associates

Subsidary - Regent Developers & Builders

Subsidary - RDB Mumbai Housing LLP

Subsidary - RDB Mumbm Realry LLP

arty Disclosures” are given below:

- Holding

Lafsic

135 & Balances -
Currency: Rup

e i thowsands)

culiurs 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
NS
Loan Taken 26,500.00 O, 100 00
Refund of Loan Taken 16,450.00 66,745.00
Interest provided on Loan Taken - =
Share of profiv/(loss) from firm (net) 1,847 59 (25.77)
Investment i partnership firm 40,020 80 7282500
Loan Tuken 28.402.00 18,352 ()
Interest neerued on Loan Taken s =
m\cstm:m n partnership finn 5.346.42 43.5@
Loan and Advances t Promoters Directors KMPs and related parties @n
.i'!. @ ‘/ .

(Currency: Rupees in thousandy, . f
Amount of Percentage to, | \

loan or the Total Loan' |
advance in the| and Advances |
nature of loan | in the nature of
Type of Borrower outstandin loans

Promoter
Directory
[KAIPs
[Realted Parties




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
Ist Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 70000 |
CIN: USTIC9WB200TPTC 14242

Additional notes to the financial statments for the year ended 31 Mureh 2024

(b) Without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Amount of Pereentage 1o
loan or the Toral Loan
ndvance in the| and Advances
nature of loan | in the nature of

Type of Bovrower outstanding lonns
Promater . “
Dhrectors . 4
KMPs . :
Realted Parties = »

29 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

Ihe ssenificant accounting policies, meluding the critenia of recogmition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
mecone andexpenses are recopised, in respect of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities ure disclosed in note
215 of the [nd AS financial statements

The camying value of finaneial instruments by categonies as of March 31, 2024 were as follows
Currency: Rupees {n thowsands)

i beind Fair Value Amortised Cost/ Carryingamsn
Particulurs through profit ; as ar 31 March
i Yoss through OC1 At cost 2024
{a) Financial Assets
() Investimens - . 5.389.42 538942
i Trade receivables - . 4,825.17 4.825.17
t) - Cashoand cash equivalents - - 602 3 602 30
Gy Other fimancial assets - - - -
Total Financinl Assers - - 1061690 1,816.90
() Financial Liabilines
(1 Borrowimgs - - 61,975.83 61,973 83
() Trade and other payables . . 1.184.05 1.184.05
() Other financial liabilines - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - 63,159.88 63,159.88

The carrying value of financinl instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 were as follows

(Chrrency: Rupees i thomvainids)

' Fair Value Fair Value Arioitied Casii (8 n.rrymg amount
Particulars through profit rough OC1 e as ar 31 March
and loss 2023
(a) Financial Assets
) lnvestmenis - - 43,561.63 43,562.61
tin) Trade receivables = - 16,674, 17 16,674 17
tin) - Cashoand cash equivalents = - 2187.30 287.30
fivk - Other financial assets - - 3.875.04 387504
Total Financial Assets - - 64,399 14 64,399, 14
tan) Fanancial Linbilines
(1 Borrowmgs - - 63,128 &3 63,128 45
() Trade and other payables - - 285 82 285.82
() Other finangial labilities - - .

Total Financial Liabilities - - 6341467 6341467




RDB Mumbai Infrastructures Private Limited
15t Floor, Bikaner Butlding, #/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkag - 700001
CIN: USTOOWB200TPTC | 14242

Additional notes to the financial statments for the vear ended 31 Murch 2024
30 Disclosure of Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these linancial
liabilities is to finance and support Company’s operations. The Company's principal fi 1 assets include trade and other recervables. cash
and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that denve directly from s operations.

The Company 15 exposed 1o market nisk, credit risk and liquidity nsk. The Company’'s senior management oversees the management of these
nsks The Company s semor management is supported by a finaneial nsk commuttee that advises on financial nsks and the appropriate
financial nsk govermance framework for the Company, The financial nisk committee provides assurance to the Company’'s senior management
than the Company’s financial nsk activities are governed by appropnate policies ond procedures and that financial risks are identified,

wed in accordance with the Company s policies and nsk objectives: The Board of Dhrectors reviews and agrees policies for
managimg ench of these nsks, which are summansed below

mensured and ma

Market risk
Market risk is the nisk that the far value of future cash Mows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate nskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commaodity/ real estate risk. The
Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts Accordingly, there is no significant exposure 1o the
market risk other than mterest risk

{1 Interest vate nsk

Interest rate nsk 15 the risk that the farr value or future cash Nows of a financial instrument will Nuctuate because of changes v market
imerest rates The Company's exposure 1o the risk of changes i marken interest rates relates primarty to the Company’s long-term
debi obhigations with Ronnng interest rates
Tlhe Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Most of
the borrowings of the Company are unsecured and at fixed rates. The Company has only one cash credit account which 1s linked to the
Prime Hank Lending Kate The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps

(n)  Price 11s
The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits as explamed
above

Credut
Credit visk s the risk that counterparty will nat meet its obligations under a financial wstrument or customer contract, leading 1o a financial
loss The Company 1s exposed 1o credit risk from s operating activities (primanily trade receivables) and from its finanging activities,
meluding refundable joum development deposits, secunty deposits, loans o employess and other financial mstrumenis

Trade recennubles
Recervables resultng from sale of properties: Customer eredit nsk 15 managed by requinng customers to pay advances before transfer of
ownership, therefore, substuntially ehminaung the Company's credit nsk in thas respect

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties. Credit nisk 15 managed by each business unit subject to the Company s established
cables are regularky momnored . The

OINeEr rec

policy. proced
impairment analysis 15 performed at each reportimg date on an individual basis for major cliems In addinion, a large number of mimor
recervables are grouped inte homogeneous groups and assessed for mpmrment collegtively. The maxumum exposure to credit sk ar the
reporting date 15 the carrying value of each ¢lass of finangial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as secunty, The Company's
credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days

s and control relatmg o customer credit nisk management Cuistanding

The ageing of wade recervables are as follows (Crerrencr Rupees i thausandy)
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

More than 6 months ¥ =
Others 482517 16,674.17

Deposits with banks and fnancial msttutions

Credie risk from halances with banks and financial mstimtions 1s manaped by the Company's mreasury department 1n accordance with the
Company’s pohey Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit linnts assigned 10 each
counterparty

Counterparty credit hmits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year
subject o approval of the Board The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate Binancial loss through o
counterparty s poteniml fulure 1o make paymems, The Company's maxumum exposure 1o credit risk for the eomponents of the stmement of
financial position at 31 March 2022 and 2021 15 the carmying amounts

Luigundity Risk

The Company s mvestment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets ol safety, liquidity and return. The

Company manages its hguidiny nisk by ensuning that i will always have sufticient liquidity to meet ats halilities when due. In cose of short
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Additional notes o the financial statments for the vear ended 31 March 2024

Capital Management

Far the purpase of the Company s capital management. copital ncludes ssued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attnbutable o the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is 10 maximise the shareholder

valug

The Company manages its capual structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economie conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To mamtain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital
1o shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which 1s net debt divided by total capital plus net
debit. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearmg loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents

(Currentey Rigpees i thogdsainedy)

Partculars

31 Murch 2024

31 March 2023

Borowings tong-tenm and short-term, including current maturities of' long term borrowings) 6197583 6197583
Trade payables 1,184 05 118403
Other payvables (current & non-current, excluding current maturities of long term borrowings) - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (602 30) {6023
Net debr 62.557.58 62,557.58
Faqury share caparal 10,000.00 (RN
Other cquity (2.172.12) (3,32397)
Total Capital 7.827.88 4,670.03
Goenring ratio (In Rs) 0.1 w11

I order o achieve thus overall objecuve, the Company s capital management, amongst other things, aims Lo ensure that 1t meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requireiments. Breaches in meeling the fnancial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches i the financial covenants of any

mterest-hearmg loans and borrowing in the current period

No changes were mude 1n the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the yvears ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,

2023.
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Additional notes to the financial statments for the vear ended 31 March 2024

Disclosure as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contarets with Customers

(Currency: Rupees in thousands)

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

The amount of project revenue recognized as revenue during the year
The amoumt of advances received
The amount of work in progress

2,04,325.00
2,80,899.20

3,08,325,00
2.73.925.97

Remuneration to Auditors

(Currency. Rupees in thousandsi

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Statutory audit
Tncome tas audit

Other Matters

20.00
13.00

20.00
15.00

Cantingent Liabilities and commitments

(Currency: Rupees in thowsandy)

Particulars

31 Murch 2024

31 March 2023

Contingent Linbilities
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debr:
Ehsputed demand of income tax for Assessment Year 2014-15

24.948.15

24,948 15

* The Company ix wnder appeal before Commassioner (Appeall of Incoine ax and compeany expocts the pudgement will be i it

feavenr and has therefare, mat recagmised the provision in relation o this claim.

Disclosures required under Sec 22 of MSMED A, 2006

The amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises supphers defined under “The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act 20067 have been idenified on the basis of information available with the Company

(Cvrrency: Rupees i Hiausaridy)

Particulars

31 March 2024

The principal amwount and the iestest due thereon (1o be shown separately ) remaining unpaid 1o any
supplier s at the end of accounting year,

31 March 2023

e amount o iterest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the due date during each accounting vear,

The amount of mterest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but
interest undar the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid),

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year, and

The amount of further imterest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date
when the inierest dues as above are actuplly paid to the small enterprise. for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductble expenditure under section 23

* Interest pard or pavable, if any have been waived by vendor
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Additional notes to the financial statments for the year ended 31 March 2024

37 Other Statutory Information

(1) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property

(1) The Company does not have any transactions with compantes struck off,

it The € ompany does not have any charges or satisfaction wiich 15 yet 10 be registered with ROC beyond the reporting year

(iv) The Company has not iraded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the reporting year.

(v} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entines

{Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

company ( Ulnmate Beneficianes) or

(b provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalt of the Ulimate Beneficianes

(vih The Compaiy has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies ), mcluding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded m writing or otherwise] that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified i any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, secunty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies

38 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped reclassified wherever necessary to conform 1o the presentation of the

vurent yeudr

Nignificam seconnting policies

Nertes dor the wecouniy

%
338

e accompanying wotes fora an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Vineet Khetan & Associates

Chartered Accountams
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Propretor
Membership No.060270
1B Lal Razar Straet
olkata - 700001
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For and on beball of the Board of Directors of
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For RDB MUMBAI INFRASTRUGTURES 10
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Vikash Jhanwar
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Kiran Mali /‘.

Director
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Additional notes to the financialstatments for the year ended 31 March 2024

36 Ratio Reporting in Financial Statement
Variance Reason for Varnance if change is > 25%
Sr No Ratio Numerator Denaminator 31 March 2024 |31 March 2023 |(in ") (whether positive or negzative)
Simnce varance 1s within 25%_ explanation in
H|Cumrent Rana Current Assets Curremt [iabilities | 05 091 1562 |not provided for the same
Since vanance 1s within 25%. explanation in
Net Debi: Non current not provided for the same
borrowmngs © current borrowings
+ non-current lease liabilities +
current lease habiliwes- cash and
cash equivalents-other bank Equity: Equity share capual + other
2{Debt - Equity Ratio balances  |equity 784 941 (16.71)
Earning for Debt Service = Net During the FY 2023-24 no revenue generated
Profit after taxes + Non-cash from the operation however there is a profit
apzratng on invesiment made in partership firm due
expenses like depreciation and to which there 1s a profit in the current
other amontizations + Interest + financial year
other )
adjustments like loss on sale of  |Debt service ~ Interest & Lease
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Fived assets elc Payments + Principal Repayments 1145 -1.38 (927.99)
During the FY 2023-24 no revenue generated
from the operation however there is a profit
on investment made in parinership firm due
to which there 15 a profit in the current
Return on Equity Nzt Income Shareholder's Fund 0l1e -0.07 {313.36) financial vear
During the FY 2023-24 no revenue penerated
from the operation however there is a profit
oninvesiment made in pantnership firm due
to which there 1s a profit in the currem
financial year and Avg inventory also
increased as compared 1o last year
S|Inventory Tumover Ratio Revenue from operations Average inventory 0ol 0.00 1204852 | i
During the FY 2023-24 no revenue generated
from the operation however there is a profit
on mvesiment made in pantnership firm due
to which there 1s a profit in the current
financial vear and Ave recervables also
decreased as compared to last year
6] Trade Recevable urnover ratio  |Revenue from operations Average irade receivables 021 0.00 14425 16
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Trade Pavable turmover ratio

Net Capital Turnover rato

MNet Profin Rato

Return on Capital Emploved

Returm on Investment

Turnaver

T'otal Sales

Profit after Tax

EBIT

Interest {Finance Income)

Average trade payables
Waorking capital= Current assets-
current liabilities

Revenue [rom operations

Capital Emploved = Net worth + Total
Debt+ Deferred tax Liabiliry

Investment

3.02

014

0.01

0.29654

003

L0

S L]

001

(D00011)

9574061

(24,199.35)

(101 78)

(282.78)

(2,59,560.50})

During the FY 2022-23 no revenue generated
from the operanon and Avg pavable also
decreased as compared to last year

Working caprial in current year increased as
compare 1o the last vear

During the FY 2023-24 no revenue generated
from the operation however there is a profit
on investment made in partnership firm due
to which there i @ profit in the current
financial vear

During the FY 2023-24 no revenue generated
from the operation however there 1s a profit
on investment made in partnership firm due
1o which there is a profit in the current
financial vear due to which EBIT 1s positive
as comapred to the last vear Due to profitin
the current vear Capnal employed also
increase as compared to last vear

During the vear, the Company has earned
profit from investment in partnership firm of
Rs 22 lakhs and also capital invested in firm
Regent Associates of Rs 4 Crores in FY 22-
23 is withdrawn during FY 23-24




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
5th Floor, Suite No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001

Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Bhagwati Plasto
Works Private Limited (the “Company”). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘standalone financial statements”). In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the
profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

We are aware that Standard on Auditing (SA) 701, “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the
Independent Auditor’s Report' applies to audit of all listed entities for the accounting year
commencing on or after April 1, 2019. KAMs are those matters that, in the auditor’s
professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial results of the
current year. We understand that in determining the KAMSs in your audit report on the
consolidated financial results of the Company in terms of SA 701, you would be considering
the KAMs identified by us. Accordingly, we hereby confirm that we will include a section on



KAMs in our Audit report on the Component. In the event, there are no key audit matters to
be communicated in respect of the component, we will state as under:

‘We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for
Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024 "

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material ‘misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud ¢ "'y involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
]




» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that.
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this

Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone fmanmaJ;Iatements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act. /



e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) Since the Company's turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50
Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is
less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect
to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance
on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules,2014 (Revised 2024 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
which included test checks, we report that the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the

\\ /



software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements
carried out in accordance with the Standard of Auditing and only to the extent required by
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014. We have not carried out any
audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule
11(g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us: the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

\4

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 24" Day of May, 2024
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBC6449




(1)

(ii)

(iii)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of BHAGWATI PLASTO WORKS PRIVATE LIMITED
of even date)

(a) (A) The company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment, so this clause is not
applicable.
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) Since there is no Property, Plant & Equipment, so the point of verification does not arise
(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, hence revaluation is not required as this
clause is not applicable.

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; therefore, this clause is not applicable.

The company has granted unsecured advances to other parties,

(a) The company has provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or
provided security to other parties and entity.

(A) As the company has not provided any loans and advances to subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates so this clause is not applicable.

(B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to advances to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates is mentioned:

Particulars - | Opening | Receipt Payment | Closing
Balance Balance
['Advances to parties 73,24.802 - 14,60,000 | 87,84,802
i

(b) The company has not made any investments.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated to be on demand so repayment
schedule is not available and the repayments or receipts are regular

k. XE



(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(x)

(d) Since the company has not given any loans and advances therefore no reasonable
steps are required to be taken by the company.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on
demand, to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

No deposits were accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be deposits,
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
are not applicable to the company.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

(@) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, Income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b) The company has not applied for any term loans.
(¢) The company has not raised any funds on short term or long term purposes.

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.

%



(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(@) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company; hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements,
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore this clause is not
applicable.

(b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934:

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) - There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.



(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

The provisions of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable on the company.

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

I
CA. VINEET KHETAN /
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata
Date: The 24" Day of May 2024,
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBC6449



Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U25209WB1998PTC088083

Balance Sheet as on 31st Mar, 2024
Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Financial Assets
Other financial assets
Total Non Current Assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial Assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Other Financial Assets

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital
Other Equity
Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other Non current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

dues of micro & small enterprises;
dues of creditors other than MSME

Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Total liabilities
Total Equity & Liabilities

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Note

-~ Moo B

10
13

11

12
13
13
14

(In Rupees '000)
31st Mar'2024 31st Mar, 2023

124.58 118.71
124.58 118.71
131794.80 132768.08
4437.08 4242.24
573.42 358.66
1722.02 1621.27
8784.80 7324.80
0.00 5.87
147312.12 146320.92
147436.70 146439.63
11036.00 11036.00
106421.50 101309.29
117457.50 112345.29
4050.00 696.24
0.00 1695.18
4050.00 2391.42
4137.44 7923.88
0.00 0.00
589.19 572.38
20915.65 22728.48
286.92 478.19
25929.19 31702.93
29979.19 34094.34
147436.70 146439.63

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountant

Rz

Vineet Khetan
Membership No. 060270
Kolkata

Date: 24th May 2024

UDIN: 240602 FoBk PTB C 64U g

For and on behalf of the Board

g

?f&.clt-” s

Pradeep Kumar Hirawat

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia

Director
(00478

Director
DIN: 00501351
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Bhagwatl Plastoworks Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN; U25209WB1998PTC088083

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st Mar, 2024

(In Rupees '000)

Particulars Note 31st Mar, 2024 31st Mar, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 15 13856.68 13842.97
Other income 16 113.98 91.47
Total Income 13970.65 13934.44
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 17 0.00 0.00
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 18 973.28 0.00
Employee benefit expense 19 1033.78 893.47
Finance costs 20 1191.00 393.27
Other expenses 21 3863.55 2165.51
Provision for Doubfull debts (Refer Note 32) 0.00 0.00
Total expenses 7061.60 3452.24
Profit before tax 6909.05 10482.20
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 1740.00 1700.00
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 56.84 -86.44
Total tax expense 1796.84 1613.56
Profit after tax 5112.22 8868.64
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the year 5112.22 8868.64
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 5112.22 8868.64
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 1103.60 1103.60
Face Value per share 10.00 10.00
Basic earnings per share 463.23 803.61
Diluted earnings per share 463.23 803.61

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements
For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountant

W’

Vineet Khetan

Membership No. 060270
Kolkata

Date: 24th May 2024
UDIN: 24060230 BLDTB C 649

For and on behalf of the Board

fra de s lniv o=

—

Pradeep Kumar Hirawat

Director
DIN: 00047872

Dda g

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia

Director
DIN: 00501351



Bhagwati Plasto Works Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U25209WB1998PTCO88083

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st Mar, 2024 {In Rupees '000)
Particulars 31st Mar, 2024 31st March, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 6,909,054.05 10,482,197.10
Adjustments for
Amortisation of prepaid lease rental - (154,107.00)
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits pledged {111,939.00) (84,951.00)
Interest on Borrowed Funds 1,149,224.00 318,668.00
Notional Interest on Security Deposits 41,774.00 74,597.00
Adjustments of Deposit in early refund 125,238.00 -
Sundry Balances written off (net) 9.00 1,204,306.00 7.11 154,214.11
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 8,113,360.05 10,636,411.21
{Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets (5,870.36) (0.08)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 973,276.00 (0.20)
{Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables (194,850.24) (1,923,695.10)
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets (1,460,000.00) (387,050.00)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other assets 5,870.36 740,420.64
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Liabilities 1,491,572.00 -
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 16,811.00 (25,533.00)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Liabilities (1,812,837.54) (986,028.78) (469,965.50) (2,065,823.24)
Cash generated from operations 7,127,331.27 8,570,587.97
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) 1,988,104.72 1,388,903.00
Cash Flow before Exceptional items 5,139,226.55 7,181,684.97
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 5,139,226.55 7,181,684.97
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Proceeds / (Investment) from / in Fixed Deposits 11,194.00 8,595.00
Net cash from investing activities 11,194.00 8,595.00
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (3,786,439.00) {6,921,958.00)
Interest Paid (1,149,224.00) (4,935,663.00) (318 668.00) 7,240,626.00
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (4,935,663.00) 7,240,626.00]
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 214,757.55 (50,346.03)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 358,663.97 409,010.00
573,421.52 358,663.97
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 569,496.14 354,738.59
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 3,925.38 3,925.38
573,421.52 358,663.97
0.00 (0.00)
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements For and on behalf of the Board
For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountant e P\’O—J'-" Jaiy o
J &}/ Pradeep Kumar Hirawat
* Director
500047872
Vineet Khetan (3
Membership No. 060270 \\&M ) !
Kolkata Pradeep Kumar Pdgalia
Date: 24th May 2024 Director
UDIN: DIN: 00501351

i
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A. Share Capital
Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during the current year

Add: Issue of Share Capital during the period

Less: Shares bought back/ forfieted during the period

Net changes in Equity Share Capital during the year

Balance at the end of the current reporting period

B. Other Equity

Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

31st Mar, 2024

(In Rupees '000)
31st March, 2023

11036.00 11036.00
0.00 0.00
11036.00 11036.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
11036.00 11036.00

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the current year
Less: Dividend paid during the year
Less: Transfer to retained earnings
Balance at the end of the current reporting period

Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Add: Received during the year
Balance at the end of the current reporting period

TOTAL OTHER EQUITY AT THE END OF PERIOD

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountant

&

Vineet Khetan
Membership No. 060270
Kolkata

Date: 24th May 2024
UDIN:

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2023

8256133.49 8247264.85
0.00 0.00
8256133.49 8247264.85
5112.22 8868.64
0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
8261245.71 8256133.49
9968.00 9968.00
0.00 0.00
9968.00 9968.00
0.00 0.00
9968.00 5968.00
8271213.71 8266101.49

For and on behalf of the Board

Pio-»tl'-‘l'l""‘ s

Pradeep Kumar Hirawat

Director
DIN: 00047872

Y .

Pradeep KumanpPugalia

Director
DIN: 00501351
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Notes to the financial statements as on 31st Mar, 2024
Note 2 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Non Current (Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposit against electricity (bearing interest) 114,576.44
Security Deposit against Annual fees for dematerialisation 10,000.00
Total 124,576.44

Current (Unsecured, considered good)
Advanced given to parties (Refer Note No. 33)
Advance Lo Staff

Total

Note 3 inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in process of Commercial Project
Total

Note 4 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Qutstanding for a period :

_—

8,784,802.00

8,784,802.00

131,794,800.14
131,794,800.14
—eeee—e———————

Less than six months (Refer Note 32) 4,437,078.80
b months -1 year =
1-2 years
2-3 years =
More than 3 years
Sub-Total 4,437,078.80
Less: Provision of Bad & Doubtfull debts
Total 4,437,078.80
Note 4(a) - Classification of Trade Receivables
Considered good — Secured;
Considered good — Unsecured; 4,437,078.80
Having significant increase in Credit Risk;
Credit impaired (Refer Note 32) -
4,437,078.80
Note 4(b) - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other person; g
Debts due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other person;
debts due by firms in which any director is a partner.
debts due by private companies in which any director or a member,
Note 5 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Balances with banks {Unrestricted in Current Account) 569,496.14
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 3,925.38
Total T s;pansy
Note 6 Financial Assets (Other Bank Balances) -
Term Deposits with Bank (including interest accured) 1,722,019.00
(pledged with Bank against bank guarantee issued)
Total 1,722,019.00

Note 7 Other current assets

(In Rupees '000)

31st March, 2023

108,706.08
10,000.00
118,706.08

7,324,802.00

7,324,802.00

132,768,076.14
132,768,076.14
e

4,242,237.56

4,242,237.56

4,242,237.56

4,242,237.56

4,242,237.56

354,738.59
3,925.38
358,663.97

1,621,274.00

1,621,274.00
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Balance with Statutory Authorities
Prepaid Expenses
Interest accured on Security Deposits

Advances against expenses
Total

Note 8 Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital

¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year

{In Rupees '000)
31st Mar, 2024 31st March, 2023

5,870.36

- 5,870.36
A

Number Amount Number Amount
1,250,000 12500.00 1,250,000 12500.00
1,103,600 11036.00 1,103,600 11036.00
1,103,600 11036.00 1,103,600 11036.00

Mote: No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Raj Kumar Jaiswal

Ram Gopal Manpuria HUF
Shree Prakash Manpuria HUF
Arjun Patra HUF

Holding (No's) Holding (%) Holding (No's) Holding (%}

562,870 51.00% 562,870 51.00%
104,500 9.47% 104,500 9.47%
80,000 7.25% 80,000 7.25%
74,000 6.71% 74,000 6.71%
61,800 5.60% 61,800 5.60%

e) Rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend & repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The company declares
and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject ta the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders.

f) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.

Number of Shares & Amount

h) Shares issued within the period of 5 years
i) for consideration other than cash or
ii) bonus to shareholders or

iii) bought back from shareholders

i) Details of Promaoter shareholding as at the end of year
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Holding (No's) Holding (%) Holding (No's) Holding (%)

562,870 51.00% 562,870 51.00%
Holding (No's) Holding (%) Holding (No's) Holding (%)
562,870 51.00% 562,870 51.00%

Note: There have been no changes in the promoter sharehalding during the year.
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 9 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Securities Premium
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Received during the year
As at the end of the year

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss

As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year

Add: Ind AS Adjustments

As at the end of the year

Total

31st Mar, 2024

9968.00
0.00
9968.00

91341.29
5112.22
0.00
96453.50

106421.50

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
Securities Premium: Securities premium account represents premium received on issue of shares over and above face value of equity

shares. The account is available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(In Rupees '000)

31st March, 2023

9968.00
0.00
9968.00

8247265
8868.64
0.00
91341.29

101309.29

Retained earnings: This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations. This Reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note 10 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Non Current
{Unsecured, as per terms of agreement)

Advance against Property
Security Deposits from tenant against lease rent {discounted)
Total

Note 11 financial liabilities - Borrowings
Current

(Unsecured, Repayable on Demand, Interest bearing, Including Interest))
Non Banking Financial Companies

Fram holding Company
Total

Note 11.a - Loan have been availed for general business purpose and have been used for business purpose.

0.00
4050.00
4050.00

0.00
4137.44
4137.44

Note 11.c - There is no default as on the balance sheet date in repayment of loans or interest thereof.

Note 12 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
Current

Others
Micro enterprises and small enterprises;

Others
Total

Ageing schedule of Trade Payables

0.00
589.19
589.19

0.00
696.24
696.24

7923.88
0.00
7923.88

0.00
572.38
572.38
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Notes to the financial statements as on

Outstanding for following periods from the date of transaction

As at 31st March, 2023

Less than 1 year

Outstanding for a period from 1 year to 2 years
Outstanding for a period from 2 years Lo 3 years
Outstanding for a period more than 3 years

As at 31st March, 2022

{In Rupees '000)

Less than 1 year

Qutstanding for a period from 1 year to 2 years
Qutstanding for a period from 2 years to 3 years
Outstanding for a period more than 3 years

31st Mar, 2024 31st March, 2023
Disputed Disputed
Others MSME Others MSME
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dues to Micro And Small Enterprises (as per the intimation received from vendors)

The company has not received communication from any of its suppliers regarding applicability of “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006”, hence disclosure under Para K of "General Instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet” regarding details
relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has not been given.

Note 13 Other Liabilities

Non Current

Unamortised lease rent receivable (adjustable after next balance date)

Total
Current

Advances from Customer and Others

Statutory Payables
Other payable

Unamortised lease rent receivable {adjustable within next balance date)

Total

Note 14 Provision for Taxation

Current Income Tax

Less: Advance Tax & TDS

Total

0.00
——
2053091
274.85
109.85

20915.65

1740.00

-1453.08
2B6.92

1695.18

——————————

1695.18
21869.12
152.95
552.31
154.11
22728.48

1700.00
-1221.82
478.19

_————————
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended (Continued)

Note 15 Revenue from Operations

Sale Of Shop
Sale of Services

Rental Income

Amortisation of rental (embedded in interest free secruity deposit)
Maintenance & Other Charges

Other Operating Income
Electricty Charges collected (net of payment)

TOTAL

Note 16 Other Income
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits pledged
Interest Income on IT Refund
Interest Income on Security Deposits

Total

Note 17 Construction Activity Expenses
Manpower Expenses

Material Expenses

Other Construction Expenses

Cost Of Sold
Consumption

Note 18 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Note 19 Employee Benefits Exp

(In Rupees '000)

Salaries, Wages and exgratia

Total

Naote 20 Finance Cost

Interest on Borrowed fund
Notional Interest on Security Deposits
Other Borrowing Cost

Total

Note 21 Other Expenses

Rates & Taxas

Muncipal Tax on Rented Premises
Adjustment of Security deposit on early refund of Deposit
Sundry Balances written off (net)

Bank Charges
Conveyance

Filing Fees
Electricity Expenses
General Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Telephone Expenses
Maintenance Charge

Watch & Ward Expenses

Site Expenses
Insurance
Professional Charges
Late Fee/ Interest
Misc Expenses

Legal Charges

Dematerialization & Folio Maintenance Charges

Brokerage Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration - Statutory Audit Fees
Total

31st Mar, 2024 31st Mar, 2023
1,331,221
10578.20 12445,75
15411
319.12 478.68
1628.13 764.43
13856.68 13842.97
111.94 84.95
2.04
0.00 6.52
113.98 91.47
0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00
0.00 0.00
132768.08 132768.08
131794.80 132768.08
973.28 0.00
1033.78 89347
1033.78 893.47
1149.22 31867
41.77 74.60
0.00 0.00
1191.00 393.27
465 4.75
165.65 12298
125.24 0.00
0.01 0.01
71.22 299
12,51 9.89
2.50 9.89
1360.24
0.00 20.00
0.95 0.74
9.96 771
1002.77 782.18
781.48 765.62
166.99 131.30
0.00 25.52
93.10 86.00
4.78
36,503.38
0.00 170.95
10.00 10.00
0,00 0.00
15.00 15.00
3863.55 2165.51
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Note: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)
1 Company Overview

Bhagwati Plastoworks Private Limited ("the Company") is a subsidiary of a listed company incorporated in India having its
registered office at Bikaner Building, 8/1 Lal Bazar Street, 3rd Floor, Room No. 10, Kolkata-700001. The Company is
principally engaged in the business development real estate projects (residential and commercial) for renting, leasing
and further sale.

2 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) {to the
extent notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (“Z"), which is the functional currency of the

Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.
¢) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for the following
items;

(i) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value;

(i) Employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardiess of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining fair value of an asset or a liability,
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

d) Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions -
(i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of
an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate.
In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

(ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include copsiderations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility rd
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Note: tement of Significant Acc

(iii) Defined benefit plans:

Cost of defined benefit plan includes gratuity and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations using projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

(iv) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards
known contractual ebligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and other levies, if
any, in respect of which management believes that there are present obligations and the settlement of such
obligations are expected to result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for.

e) Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments,
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows.
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).
- Level 3. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible, If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

3 Significant accounting policies

a) Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents.

b) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

i. Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade

receivables that do contain a significant financing component ;ré"measwed at transaction price. Regular way purchase
and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trage date
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Note: 1 Stateme Si nt Accou icies (SAP

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories.
« Amortised cost
+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
« Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company

changes its business medel for managing financial assets.
Financial mortised cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTOC!:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.
Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Financial as: at FVTPL:

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Other equity investments
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in 'Other
Comprehensive Income’,

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair
value.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
= Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)
« Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities through FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPLf it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as

such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are méasured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recagnised in profit or loss
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Note: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and any gain or loss on derecognition are recognised in profit or loss.
Interest bearing loans and boarrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
abligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

¢) Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment fosses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Barrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of those qualifying property, plant and equipment, which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate components of property, plant and equipment

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable
value and shown under ‘Other current assets’.

Property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is
expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended
use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work - in - Progress.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maighe’hance are expensed as incurred.
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Note: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on property, plant & equipments are provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets, at
the rates and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule Il of the Act.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land (includes development cost) is amortised on a straight line basis over
the period of respective lease, except land acquired on perpetual lease.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as
appropriate.

d) Intangible Assets

e)

f

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Estimated useful life of the Computer Software is 5 years.

Inventories

items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost
of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads net
of recaoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost of raw materials is
determined on FIFO basis.

Value of stores and spares, packing materials, trading and other products are determined on weighted average basis.

Impairment

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs.
An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.
The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

g) Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised as an expense during the-period when the employees render the services.
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Note: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards Provident Fund. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the
time of resignation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of
Gratuity Act 1972,

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits s calculated using the Projected Unit Credit
Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services.
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other Comprehensive
Income.

h) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

i) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation, The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of
various discounts and schemes offered by the company as part of contract.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods have been delivered and title have been passed. No
revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding ;etfé;very of the amount due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods from date of initial application.
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Note: 15 nt of Significant Accounting Polici

j) Leases

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset i initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or ta restore the underlying asset ar the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s
incremental borrowing rate
Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;
- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, and

The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

k) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Com pany’s right to receive payment is
established. Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

1) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax, Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in
OCl.

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period. A

/
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Note: 1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

m) Borrowing costs

n)

o)

p)

q)

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Where there is an unrealised exchange loss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there is a
realised or unrealised gain in respect of the settlement or translation of the same borrowing, the gain to the extent of the
loss previously recognised as an adjustment is recognised as an adjustment to interest.

Foreign currencies transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Exchange differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Government Grant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions,

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

Recent Pronouncemen
Standard notifed but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as follows:

a) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

b) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a
definition of 'accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
standalone financial statements.

¢) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recagnition exemptions so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods begjnning on or-after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its standalphe financial statements,
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended (Continued) 31st Mar, 2024 31st March, 2023

22 Income taxes
A. Amount recognised in profit or loss

Current tax
Current period 1740.00 1700.00
Changes in respect of current income tax of previous year 56.84 -86.44
A 1796.84 1613.56
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax 6909.05 10482.20
Tax rate 26% 26%
Tax using the Indian tax rate 1796.35 2725.37
Tax effects of amounts which are not taxable in calculating taxable income
Adjustment under IND-AS, but not taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 -40.07
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income
Adjustment under IND-AS, but not allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961 5.04 19.40
Others adjustments -261.22 0.00
Other differences
Other 199.83 -1004.70
1740.00 1700.00

23 Details of CSR Expenditure
The provisions of CSR u/s 135 are not applicable to the

24 Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign Currency Income = 4

Foreign Currency Expenses = e

25 Segment information
The business of the company falls under a single operating segment. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chie}operating decision-maker.
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended (Continued) 31st Mar, 2024  31st March, 2023
22 Income taxes
A. Amount recognised in profit or loss
Current tax
Current period 1740.00 1700.00
Changes in respect of current income tax of previous year 56.84 -86.44
A 1796.84 1613.56
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax £909.05 10482.20
Tax rate 26% 26%
Tax using the Indian tax rate 1796.35 272537
Tax effects of amounts which are not taxable in calculating taxable income
Adjustment under IND-AS, but not taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 -40.07
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income
Adjustment under IND-AS, but not allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961 5.04 19.40
Others adjustments -261.22 0.00
Other differences
Other 199.83 -1004.70
1740.00 1700.00
23 Details of CSR Expenditure
The provisions of CSR u/s 135 are not applicable to the
24 Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign Currency Income - -
Foreign Currency Expenses - -
25 Segment information

The business of the company falls under a single operating segment. Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
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26

27

28

29

31

2

33

Related Party Disclosure
Related Party Relationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited — Holding Company
Enterprises under control - Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited - Subsidiary of Holding

Enterprises with Commaon KMP - YMS Finance Private Limited

Transactions & Balances :
Unsecured Loan Taken
- RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

- Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited

- YMS Finance Private Limited
Repayment of Unsecured Loan Taken
- RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

- Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited

- YMS Finance Private Limited
Interest of Unsecured Loan Taken provided
- RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited

- ¥YMS Finance Private Limited

Tax Deducted on Interest provided (Under Income Tax)

- RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

- Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited

- ¥YMS Finance Private Limited
Closing Balance of Unsecured Loan Taken
- RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited

- Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited

- YMS Finance Private Limited

31st March, 2024

7475.76
0.00
4413.42

3403.25
0.00
1327273

7215
0.00
1077.08

7.22
0.00
107.71

4137.44
000
0.00

31t March, 2023

12800.00
14800.00
12803.14

12800.00
14800.00
5200.00

0.00
0.00
318,67

0.00
0.00
31.87

0.00
0.00
7889.94

in the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business, The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not In excess of the amount reasanably necessary. There is no contingent

liability except stated and informed by the Management

Contingent Liabilities
Income Tax Demand - - Nil (P. Y. Nil)

Bank Gaurantee - Rs.12.80 lacs (P.Y. - Rs.12.80 Lacs) to CESC Limited for Electric Supply at Companies Property.

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for halding any benami property under the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any lender from whom funds have been borrowed.

The company does not any knowledge of any transactions or balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
20132 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, hence no disclosure have been made.

The company has an outstanding advance receivable of Rs.38,68,881/- from few parties, against whom company has filed civil suit in
Calcutta High Court for recovery of award from parties. Pending litigation the company has not made any provision for amount paid to

parties.

The company does not have any subsidiary as defined u/s 2(87) and hence guestion of violation of number of layers prescribed under

clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 does not arise.

The funds of the company (borrowed fund, securities premium and share capital have been utilised for acquisition of land which has
been transferrad to developer (pursuant to joint development agreement) and for acquisition of further land in accordance with the
Joint Development Agreement and also to start/ commence new ventures.
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35  Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

Particulars at at 31st March, 2024 Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
Non Current '
Other financial assets 1,18,706.08 - -
Current
Trade receivables 42,42,237.56
Cash and cash equivalents 3,58,663.97 -
Other Bank Balances 16,21,274.00
Other Financial Assets 73,24,802.00 =
Total Financial Assets 1,36,65,683.61
Financial Liabilities
Non Current
Other financlal liabilities 6,96,240.40 -
Current
Borrowings 79,23,882.00
Trade and other payables 5,72,377.00 -
Total Financial Liabilities 91,92,499.40
Particulars at at 31st March, 2022
Particulars at Carrying Value Amartised Cost Fair Value
Financial Assets
Non Current
Other financial assets 1,18,706.00 -

Current
Trade receivables

23,18,549.57

Cash and cash equivalents 4,09,010.00
Other Bank Balances 15,44,818.00 - -
Other Financial Assets 69,37,752.00 - =

Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Non Current

1,13,28,835.57

Other financial liabilities 6,21,643.00
Current
Borrowings 1,48,45,840.00 - -
Trade and other payables 2,37,96,360.00 -
Total Financial Liabilities 3,92,63,843.00

Capital Requirements

for the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise

the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans an Hiorrowings, trade and other payables less cash

and cash equivalents
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Particul 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
g (in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Other Financial Liabilities 6,96,240.40 £,21,643.00)
Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current 79,23,882.00 1,48,45,840.00
maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payables 5,72,377.00 2,37,96,360.00
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {3,58,663.597) (4,09,010.00
Net debt 88,33,835.43 3,88,54,833.00
Equity share capital 1,10,36,000.00 1,10,36,000.00
Other equity 10,13,09,285.61 9,24,40,648.51
Total Capital 11,23 .45,285.61 10,34,76,648.51
Gearing ratio 12.72 2.66

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in

36

meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any Interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made In the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March
31, 2022.

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets Include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company's senior management sees that the Company’s financlal risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.
The Board of Directars reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commadity/ real estate risk.
The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure
to the market risk other than interest risk.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate risk by accepting loans and borrowings of of fixed rate. Most of the
borrowings of the Company are unsecured and at fixed rates.
{ii) Price risk

The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses have been deployed in bank deposits as
explained above.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans @mployees and other financial instruments.
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Trade receivabl

Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer of
ownership, therefare, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large
number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security.
The Company’s credit period generally ranges from 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows: {Refer Note 4 to Financial Statements)

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions |s managed by the Company in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the
year subject to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss
through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. The Company's maximum expasure to credit risk for the components of
the statement of financial position at 31st March, 2024 & 2023 is the carrying amounts.

Liquidity Risk
The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of
short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
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Motes to and forming part of the financial statements 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
37 Following Ratios to be disclosed Amount Ratio Amount Ratio  Change (%)
a) Current Ratio = Current Assets [ Current Liabilities 14,63,20,924.03 4.62 14,47 24,496.51 372 24.04%
3,17,02,928.50 3,88,95,628.00

Current Assets includes Cash & Cash Equivalents, Current Investments, and Short Term Leans & Advances at the end of year.
Current Liabilities includes Other Current Liabilities and Short Term Provision for Current Income Tax at the end of year.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as deviation is less than 25%.

b} Debt-Equity Ratio = Short & Lang term Debts / 1,04,69,405.00 0,09 1,74,70,873.00 017  -44.81%
Sharehalder's Equity 11,23,45,285.61 10,34,76,648.51

Short & Long term Debts includes Short Termm Barrowings and Refundable Security deposit from Developers

shareholder's Equity is Equity share capital and Reserves

Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Loan being repayable on d d, the company has repaid major amount and ratio has
reduced and deviation is more than 25%.

) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Net profit before Tax, 1,07,21,355.10 1.33 94,71,304.81 0.e3 110.20%
Interest and Depreciation / Debt to be serviced next year 80,77,989.00 1,49,99,947.00

Net profit before Tax, Interest and Depreciation and non cash items as per Prafit & Loss Statement
Debt to be serviced next year is short term debt (payable on demand) and amount payable within a year in Long term debt.

Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Loan being repayable on d d, the y has repaid major amount, thereby reducing
payable for future years and ratio has reduced and deviation is more than 25%.

d) Return on Equity Ratio = Net Profit after taxes [ Average 88,638,637 10 0.08 65,56,035.81 013 -34 53%
Sharehalder's Equity 10,79,10,967.06 5,22,22,927.32
Net Profit after tanes is profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss
Average Shareholder's Equity is average of opening and closing net-worth of the company,
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - The management has controlled expenses, thereby increasing profitability.

€) Inventory turnover ratio = Grass Revenue from sale of 1,38,42,968.53 0.10 1,34,63,050.00 0.20  -4B.09%
products and services / Average Inventaries 13,27,68,076.04 6,70,26,727.37
Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations (excluding Other Income).
Average Inventories is average of opening and closing Inventories of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as deviation is less than 25%.

f) Trade Receivables tumover ratio = Gross Revenue from 1,38,42,968.53 4.22 1,34,63,050.00 11.32 -B2.71%
sale of products & services / Average Trade Receivables 32,80,393,57 11,89,570.64
Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of cperations (excluding Other Income).
Average Trade Receivables is average of opening and closing Trade Receivables of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - The company has managed to realise trade receivables, and hence ratio has improved by

more than 25%.
g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Purchases / Average Trade - - 42,30,197.00 14.15  -100.00%
payables 5,85,143.50 2,98,955.00

Purchases are purchases of goods and / or services for the projects
Average Trade Payables is average of cpening and closing Trade Payables of the campany.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - The ratio in the year is NIL, as there are no purchases during the year.

h) Net capital turnover ratioc = Gross Revenue from sale of 1,38,41,968.53 013 1,34,63,050.00 0.25 -50.07%
products and services [ Average Working Capital 11’02’13‘431_03.' J 535 22 999 60
Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations |
Average Working Capital is average of opening and closing Average Working)

ding Other Income)
pital of the company.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 315t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
37 Following Ratios to be disclosed Amount Ratio Amount Ratio  Change (%)

Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as deviation is less than 25%.

(i) Net profit ratia = Net Profit of the year / Gross Revenue 88,68,637.10 0.64 5556,035.81 049  31.56%
from sale of products and services 1,38,42,968.53 1,34,63,050.00

Net Profit of the year is Profit after tax for the vear under review.
Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations (excluding Other Income),
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - The management has controlled expenses, thereby increasing profitability.

(j} Return on Capital employed = Earning before interest and 1,08,75,462.10 0.09 96,25,411.81 n.08 11.16%
laxes / Capital Employed 12,02,69,167.61 11,83,22,488.51
Eaming before interest and taxes is profit before tax a5 per Statement of Profit & Loss (as no Interest expense)
Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability at the end of year
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as deviation is less than 25%.

(k) Return on investment. - Not applicable as there are no investments.

38 The figures of reported have been rounded off in hundreds in accordance with the amended mandatory requirements of Division |l of
schedule 11i except Number of Shares, Number of units, Earnings per share and Ratios

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountant

— ﬁoq J._g.b h:rn--"r-—

Pradeep Kumar Hirawat

Director
Vineet Khetan & Associates DI 7872
Membership No. 080270
Kolkata Yy !
UDIN: Pradeep Kumar Pugdlia
Date:

Director
DIN: 00501351
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independent Auditor’s Report

Tu the Members of Gupta Infriastructuy dindiay Frivate Limited, Nagpur,

Report on the Standalone Financial Stutements

Wwe have audited the accompanying standaloue foancial statements of GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED. NAGPUR. (*the Comnany ). which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
March 2024. the statement of profit and loss and the cash fow statement for the vear then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explacatory information.

Maunagement’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statemeats

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matiers stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act. 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial
stutements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the
Accounting Standards specified under Soction 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companics
( Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequare accounting records in accordance witn the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets ol the Corpam and for proventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriute accounting policies: making judgments and
estiinates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. uplercentation and maintenance of adequate internal
{inancial controls, that were operating etfectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
secounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 4 true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due 1o fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion an these standalone financial statetents based on our audit.

W+ have taken into account the provisions of the Act. the accouniing standards and standards on auditing
4 matters which are required to be included in the aidit report ander the provisions of the Act ana thie
Rules made thereunder.

W conducted our audit in accordance with the star i ds o auditing specified under Section 143(10]
tie Act. Those Standards requires that we comply widh ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
(o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finaneial statements are free from material misstatemneani.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
e financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, -ineluding the
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assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31* March 2024 and its profit/(loss) and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our report, we draw your attention to

a) Note No.28 of Financial Statements where it is stated that Bank of India had filed an application
under section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 to NCLT Mumbai in the month of August,
2017. The honorable NCLT Mumbai had passed an order for initiation of CIRP process on
01.02.2018. Further by the order dated 02.01.2019 of Honorable NCLT Mumbai Bench, the
company went into liquidation as per the provisions of Insolvency & Bankruptey Code, 2016. The
Liquidator issued invitation for bids for auction of the Company under Liquidation as Going
Concern with specified liabilities and on “as is where is. as is what is, whatever there is” basis. RDB
Realty and Infrastructure Limited, Kolkata has participated in the online e-auction conducted by the
liquidator which was held on 22" November 2021. The bid submitted by RDB Realty and
Infrastructure Limited was found to be highest and therefore the e-auction was awarded to RDB
Realty and Infrastructure Limited. On 22" February 2022, RDB Realty and Infrastructure Limited
paid the final payment and all the agreed assets and specified liabilities as per the process
memorandum issued by the liquidator for the e-auction were transferred with the company as Going
Concern.

b) The Company was sold to the bidder as a going concern as per the order of Mumbai Bench of
Hon’ble NCLT on 22th Feb, 2022 but the necessary compliances and paper work takes its own due
course of time so the status of company on ROC portal is showing as “Under Liquidation” as on 31*
March, 2024 and the same has to be removed by the ROC. Since the current status is “Under
Liquidation, the necessary documents cannot be filed with ROC till the time ROC removes the status
to active.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the company as we consider appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us during the course of audit, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books:

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

On the basis of written representations received from the board of directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operaling effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure B";

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid the company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.



h. With respect to the Other Matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1) There is no pending litigation that financial impact on the company as on the balance sheet
date;

2) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts;

3) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred during the year to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company:

4) Based on our examination, which included test checks. the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which has a feature of recording audit wail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all the relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
on preservation of Audit Trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Agrawal Damani and Associates
Chartered Accountants P
FRN: 134231W AP
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CA Sanjay Agrawal * ) ‘_‘/ 7
Partner RN

Membership No. 154388

NAGPUR
24" May, 2024
UDIN: 24154388BKCYJK 3478



Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

(i) Tangible & Intangible Assets:
a. As per the information & explanation given to us. the company is maintaining proper records showing
full particulars, quantitative details & situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.
The company is also maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

b. The company at proper intervals is carrving Physical Verification of Assets & no such discrepancies
found while same,

c. Allthe title deeds of the immovable property are held by the name of the company itself.

d. The company has not revalued its property. plant & equipment or intangible asset during the year.

e. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding Benami Property.
(i) loventorv & Working Capital:

a. As per the information & explanation provided to us, the company has conducted Physical Verification
at reasonable intervals & no discrepancies noticed while aking same.

b. The company has not borrowed any working capital limit from any Bank or financial institution.

(iti) Investments/ Guarantees/ Securitv Given:

a. As informed to us, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) Loan to Directors:

a. The company has complied with provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act.

(v) Deposits from Public:

a. The Company has not accepted any deposit from public. In our opinion, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section
73 to 76 or other relevant provisions of the Act, the rules framed there under and the directives issued
by Reserve Bank of India. There have been no proceedings before the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal (as applicable) or Reserve Bank of India or any other Tribunal in
this matter and no order has been passed by any of the aforesaid authorities.

(vi) Maintenance of Cost Records:
a. Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of subsection (1)

of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of products of the Company and hence no
comments are warranted in respect of those.
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(vii) Deposits of Statutory Liabilities:

a.

According to the information and explanation provided 1o us. no undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax. service tax. duty of customs. Goods & Service Tax and any
other statutory due were in arrears as at 3 |st March, 2024 {or a period of more than six months from
the date they become payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no dues of sales tax, income tax, service
Tax, customs duty, wealth tax, excise duty, Value Added Tax and cess are pending which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) Unrecorded Income:

a.

As per information available, no transactions is recorded in the books of account which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) Default in Repayment of Borrowings:

d.

(x)

8

b.

(xi)

4.

b.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans & borrowings to bank or financial institution during the financial year.

The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
The company has applied term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained;
The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

Funds raised & utilisation:

The company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year.

Fraud & Whistle-Blower Comiplaints:

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

The auditor has considered whistle-blower complaints, if any, received during the year by the
company;

(xii) Compliance by a Nidhi Company:

i.

As the company is not a Nidhi company, provision of clause (xii) is not applicable to ==



(xiii) Compliance on transaction with Related Parties:

a. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc.. as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) Internal Audit Systems:

a. The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business &
the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by the statutory auditor.

(xv) Non-Cash Transactions:

a. As informed the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them. Therefore, the compliance of section 192 of the companies’ act is not required.

(xvi) Registration u/s 45-1A of RBI Act, 1934:

a. The company is not required to be registered under section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

(xvii) Cash Losses:
a. As per the information available, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and

in the immediately preceding financial vear.

(xviii) Resignation of Statutorv Auditor:

a.  As per knowledge available, there has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the
year.

(xix) Material Uncertainty:

4. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the
auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date.




(xx) Transfer to fund specified under Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013:

a. The company is not required to comply with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of
Companies Act,2013.

(xxi) Qualifications or other Adverse Auditor Remarks in other Group Companies:

a. The company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements, so no qualifications from
other group auditors received.

For Agrawal Damani and Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 134231W
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gupta Infrastructur (India)
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31* March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAT’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, we have following

observation on operating effectiveness of the company’s Internal Financial control over financial
reporting as on 31* March, 2024, which are given below:

a) The internal audit system of the company needs to be strengthened to make it commensurate with the
company’s operations.

A “material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal Financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company’s annual and interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects/ possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria. the company has maintained, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as on 31 March. 2024 based on the internal financial
controls over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the guidance note.



We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing and extent of audit tests applied in our report of the 31* March, 2024 financial statements of the
company, and these material weaknesses does not aftect our opinion on the financial statements of the

company.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Agrawal Damani and Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 134231W DT i
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CA Sanjay Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 154388

NAGPUR
24" May, 2024
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GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. In '000)
Note No. As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 31 276169.47 29595787
(b) Capital work-in-progress 32 1275000.06 917823.86
{c) Investment Properties 3.3 34422475 303158.36
(d) Financial assets
(i) Investments 4 699.94 499,94
(il) Others '1 5 0.00 0.00
(e} Deferred Tax Asset 9 0.00 0.00
(d) Other non-current assels b 14046.98 14215.78
1910141.20 1531695.82
Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 28972.65 2897265
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 52488.52 50620.19
(il) Cash and cash equivalents 12 50381.90 7919.45
(iii) Other bank balances 12(b) 52000.00 0.00
(iv) Others 8 18315.50 2022041
(c) Current tax assets (net) 4 22129.28 9772.35
(d) Other current assets 10 66477.39 45204.60
290765.23 162709.65
TOTAL ASSETS 2200906.43 1694405.46
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES | .
Equity | 1'
(2) Equity share capital 13 3000.00 3000,00
(b) Other equity 14 -45658.63 -98783 .54
TOTAL EQUITY -42658.63 -95763.54
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Long-term Borrowings 15 1185227.27 1183134.35
(il) Deffered Tax Liabilities 9 12321.04 66970.85
(b) Provisions 16 0.00 0.00
(c) Other Long term Liabilities 17 60747.91 35037 .69
1258286.22 1285142.89
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Short-term Borrowings 18 742070.38 0.00
(i) Trade payables 19 887140 210764.46
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) 00 | 0.00 0.00
(b) Other current liabilities 20 23432705 294261.65
985268.83 505026.12
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2243565.05 1790169.01
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 2200906.43 1694405.46
|

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report on even date

For Agrawal Damani and Associates

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 134231W
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Gupta
Infrastructur (India) Private Limited

Thsagbalt

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Pugalia
Director
DIN: 00501351
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Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha
Director
DIN: 00094695

CA Sanjay Agrawal
Partner y
Mem. No. : 154388
Date: 24th May 2024
Place: Nagpur
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'GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. In '000)
l_ For the year ended Mar|  For the year ended
Woti:Hp. 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 21 206985.03 181453.57
Other income 22 8707.39 614259
Total Income (i) 215692.42 187596.16
Expenses
Purchases of Stock in Trade 0.00
(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 23 0.00 0.00
Employee benefits expense 24 0.00 0.00
Finance Costs 25 2334934 19.47
Depreciation and amortisation expense i 58756.48 56303.94
Other expenses 26 135131.49 151453 83
Total Expenses (i) f 217237.31 207777.25
Profit before exceptional ,extraordinary, Prior Period item & tax (I-1l) -1544.89 -20181.08
Exceplional items 0.00 0.00
Profit before extra-ordinary item & Tax (V-VI) -1544.89 -20181.08
Tax expense
- Pertaining to Profit for the current period 0.00 0.00
- Deferred tax charge -54649.81 £6970.85
- Tax adjustments for earlier years 0.00 0.00
Total tax expense (iii) -54649.81 66970.85
Profit for the year (iv = ii - iii) 53104.92 -87151.83
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to Profit or Loss in
subsequent periods:
i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans : 0.00 0.00
i) Income tax effect on above 0.00 0.00
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (v) 0.00 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (iv +v) 53104.92 -87151.93
|
Earnings per equity share - : 27 (In full figures) (In full figures)
(Mominal value 210 per share (PY 10 per share)) |
1) Basic i 17.70 (29.05)
2) Diluted 17.70 (29.05)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Agrawal Damani and Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 134231W S - N

\ REY

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Gupta Infrastructur
(India) Private Limited
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CA Sanjay Agrawal
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Mem. No. ; 154388

Date: 241h May 2024

Place: Nagpur
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Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha

Director
DIN: 00094695
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Director
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GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 14)

Amount In (Rs.000)

Balance as at April 1,

Issued during the year|Balance as at March 31,

Particulars 2023 ended 2024
March'2024
Equity Share of Z 10/- aach Issued, subscribed and fully paid 3000.00 3000.00
Equity Share in numbers 3,00.000 3,00,000
B Other Equity (Refer Note 15)
Particulars Reserve and Surplus Total
Capital Reserve | Securities Premium | Retained Eamings Employee Stock General Reserve
Reserve Options Outstanding
(ESOP)
Balance as at 0 April 2022 0.00 0.00 -11611.61 0.00 0.00 -11611.61
|i=’mﬁ1 for the year 0.00 0.00 -B7151.93 0.00 0.00 -87151.93
Add: Accounts outstanding before Auction 0,00 0.00
- Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined banefit plans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00]
Total comprehensive income for the year 0.00 0.00 08763.54 0.00 0.00 -98?63@]
Ealance as at March 31,2023 0.00 0.00 -98763.54 0.00 0.00 -98763.54|
Profit for the year 0.00 0.00 53104.92 0.00 0.00 53104.92
Add: Accounts outstanding before Auction 0.00 0.00
- Re-measuremeni gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (.00 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the year 0.00 0.00 45658.53 0.00 0.00 -456 58.63]
alance as at March 31, 2024 0.00{ 0.00 -45658 83 0.00 0.00 -45658.63

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Agrawal Damani and Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA Sanjay Agrawal

Partner ‘\-:‘-':PF ":
Mem. No. : 154368 ‘
Date: 24th May 2024 ‘ s
Place: Kolkala e et

UDIN: 2415438881 CY JK34T8

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Gupta Infrastructur (india) Private Limited

Mr. Ravi Prakash Pincha
Director

DIN: 00084695
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Wr. Pradeep Kumar Pugalia

Director
DIN: 00501351
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IGUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

Company Overview

Gupta Infrastructur (India) Private Limited (‘The Company)) is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act
applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Civil Lines, Magpur -440 001, Maharashtra, India. The Company is engaged in
construction and renting of Mall Building and Shops. The Chhattisgarh City Center Mall, Raipur is Constructed and operated by the Company,

Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These Financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nolified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable.

{b) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (), which is also the Company's functional currency.

(c) Basis of measurement

These financial slalements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer
accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

(d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabililies. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Uncerlainly about these assumptions and estimates could resull in oulcomes hal require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these
financial statements have been disclosed below. Accounting estimates could change from period Lo period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes
in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the esiimates. The changes in the estimales are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, iheir effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial-statements.

Il) Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the cuslomer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expecls to be entilled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns,
discounts, volume rebales, and goods and service tax. The Company recognises revenue when the amaunt of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Company regardless of when the payment is being made

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of Products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Company transfers the control of goods to the customer as per the terms of contract. The Company considers
whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining
the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing component, non-cash considerations and
consideration payable to the customer (if any). In case of domestic sales, the company believes that the control gets transferred to the customer on dispatch of the goods
from the factory and in case of exports, revenue is recognised on passage of conlrol as per the terms of contract / incoterms,

Variable consideration in the form of volume rebales is recognised at the fime of sale made to the customers and are offset against the amounts payable by them

Contract Balances

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i & , only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due),

E ra.nu.")t, ) '
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GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

Refund Liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company
ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at
the end of each reporting period.

Dividend income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognized
using the effective interest method.

All other income are recognized on accrual basis.

1ll) Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of Property, Plant & Equipment
comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundabie taxes or levies and any directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use. Interest and other financial charges on loans borrowed specifically for zcquisition af capilal assets are capitalised til the start of commercial production,

Depreciation is provided on the straight line mathod over the estimated useiul lives of assets and are in lne with the requirements of Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013 The estimated useful lives are as follows

Building 30 Years
Plant & Equipment 10 - 20 Years
Computers 3 Years
Office Equipment 3-5Years
Furniture & Fixtures 5-10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each baiance sheet date are classified as 'Capital Advances' under 'Other Non-Current
Assets' and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Canital Work i Progress',

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, piant and equipment are reviewed &t each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

IV) Intangible Assets
Intangible Assels acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible Assels acquired in a business combination is valued at their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amodization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of Intangible Assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangibie Assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assel may be
impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an Intangible Asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the and of each reporting period. The amortization
expense on Intangible Assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The Company amortizes intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the
straight line method.

Intangible Assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. but are tested for impairment ann. @lly, either individually or at the cash-generaling unit level The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to b supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite o finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assel are measured s he diforcnce betwaen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the asset is derecognized

V) Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower except for saleable scraps, whose cost is not identifiable, which are valued at estimated net realisable
value. Closing stock has been valued on Weighted Average basis Cost comprises expendilure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to its
location and includes, where applicable, appropriate overheads based on normal level of aclivity. —
_7_,
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs ne ; ake the sale.

ry "mﬁ?fwfi i~
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GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
| standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

V1) Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities
are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initialy measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial lizbilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular
way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement

i. Non derivative financial instruments
a) Financial assets carried at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specifiad dates 10 cash lows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprahensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely
paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity
insiruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in cther comprehensive incoma based on ifs business model,

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

d) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest mathod, except for contingent consideration recognized in a business
combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

e} Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in the separate financial statements

ii. Derivative financial instruments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to miligate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign
currency exposures. Such derivative financial instruments are nitially recogrized at far vaiue on the date on which a derivaltive contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulling exchange gains or losses are included in other income.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The cempany derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights (o the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or & part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

VII) Fair Value Measurement

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriale in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never
aclually be realized.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statenients ara categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based an the
lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 2 whale

i} Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant lo the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul that is significant (o the fair valus measurement is unobservable.




GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

VIIl) Impairment
Impairment is recognized based on the following principles:

Financial Assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss
allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assels, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month ECL, unless there has baen a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at life time ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date 1o the amount that is required
to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

Non-Financial Assets

Goodwill and intangible assels that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are fested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Qther assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recagnized for the amount by which the assels carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs of disposal and vilue in vse. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of tha cash inflows from other assets or groups of assefs (cash- generating unit)
Non- financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possit 2 reversal of he impairment at the end of reporting period

IX) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal o constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefils will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilties are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Company or a presen! obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannat be made.

X) Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. These Financial Statements are presentod in Indian Rupee (rounded off to the nearest Lacs).

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Gains & losses arising on account
of realization are accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Monetary Assets & Liabilities in foreign currency that are oulstanding al the yearend are translated at the yearend exchange rales and the resultant gain/loss is accounted for in
the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Xl) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

XIl) Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to the requiatory authorities to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees, where the
Company has no further obligations. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal to a specified percenlage of the
covered employee's salary.

Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity is paid to employees under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 through unfunided schema. The Company's liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit
Credit method at the end of the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employes Benelits,

The Company recognizes the net obligation of the defined benefit plan in its balance sheel as an asset or liability. Gains and Iossesrthrdhgh Eemé;éép_remems of the net

defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income and are ot recassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.~ “\~




GUP_TA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Company recognises the changes in the net defined benefit obligation like service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine setflements and net interest expense or incoma, as an expense in the Slatement of Profit and Loss.

Short term employee benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in tha year in whic!i the related services are rendered

Xill) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cosls directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time lo get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

XIV) Leases

The company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfilment of a transaction is dependent on the use of a specilic asset and whether
the transaction conveys the right to control the use of that asset to the Company in return for payinent.

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shori-term leases and leases of low-value assels. The company recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and righl-of-use assets represanting the right to use the underlying assels,

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assels are measured
al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includas the amount of
lease liavilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are deprecialed on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated uselul lives of the assets, as follows:

* Leasehold Land is amortised over the period of lease ranging from 30 o 99 years
« Building 3 to 15 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cas: reflects the exercisc of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subjec! Lo impairment.

ii) Lease liabilities
Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at Ihe present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incenlivss receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expecled to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate,

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is incraased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced Tor the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payienls) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
assel. The Company's lease liabilities are included in Interest-beanng loans and borrowings
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recagnition exemption o its short-term lzases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months of
less from the commencement date and do nol contain a purchase option). It alsa applies the lease of low-value assels recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value asscls are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidenlal to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income
arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added fc the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Conlingent rents are recognised as revenue in the pericd in which they arz earned.

XV) Government Grants

The Company recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them shall be complied with and the grants will be received.
Grants related lo assets are treated as received from the cost of asset and are recognized as other income In the Statement of profit & loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful life of the assel. Grants related to income are recognized on a systematic basis cver the periods necessary to malch them with the related costs which they are
intended to compensate and are deducted from the expense in the stalement of prolil & loss.

XVI) Income Taxes
Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss except lo the extenl that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income, Provision for current tax is made at the current tax rates based on assessuble income,

Deferred income lax assets and liabiliies are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
Financial Stalements except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred lax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using fax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substentively enacted by the Balance Sheel date and are
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected {o be recovered or sellled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes tha enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against whichi the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred
income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches where it is expected that the eamings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed
in he foreseeable future. The company offsets current tax assels and current tax liabillies, where || has & legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it
intends either o settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanzously

XVIl) Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable lo the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares oulstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outslanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in
a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period altributable to equily shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential eguity shares.
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XVIII) Current and Non-current classification
The Company presents assels and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/nen-current clsssification.

An assel is classified as current when it is:
i) expecled 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
i) held primarily for the purpose cf frading,
ii) expacted to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) cash or cash equivalents unless restricled from being exchanged or used to seltle a liability for at leas! twelve months alter the reporting period,

A liability is classified as current when it is;
i} itis expected to be seftled in the normal operating cycle,
i) it is due to be seftled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iii) there is no unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least twelve menths after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

XIX) Dividend
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authonsed and no langer at the discretion of the enlity, on or before the end of the reporling period
but nol disiribuled at the end of the reporling period.

XX) Rounding of Amounts
All amounts disclosed in the standalone Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise
stated.
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GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

4. Investments (Non-current)

Investments carried at Cost (Unquoted)
Investment in Equity Instruments in Subsidiary
City Center Mall Management Ltd.
(formerly Chhattisgarh Mall Management Ltd.)
ROB Green Energy Pvt Ltd

Total

Aggregate value of unquoted investments

5. Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)

Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Fixed Deposits with Banks with remaining maturity of

More than 12 months

Face Value Number of shares (Rs. In '000)
per share Mar 31, March 31, March Mar 31, March 31,
(Rs) 2024 | 2023 31, 2022 2024 2023
R I
004 1
10 49,99 49,994 49,994 499.94 49904
10 20,000 20,000 20,000 200.00 0.00
699,94 499.94
699.94 499.94
Mar 31, March 31,
2024 2023
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
.='_/, A \\ P
[ MAAR | E:




GUPTA INFI;‘ASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. In '000)
6. Other Non Current assets Current
As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Capital advances J 2
b) Security Deposils 14046.98 14215.78
14046.98| 14215.78
7. Trade receivables Current
As at As at
At amortised cost March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured
Considered good 4499515 50620.19
Unbilled Debiors 749336 0.00
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 0.00 0.00
52488.52 50620.19
Trade Receivable ageing schedule As at March 31, 2024
Qutstanding for the follewings period from due date of payment
Particulars Current but Less than & & Months - 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
not Due Months
Undispuled Trade Recaivables - Considered Good 44995 15 o 4499515
Trade Receivable ageing schedule As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for the followings period from due date of payment
Particulars Current but Lessthan & | 6 Months -1 Year 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Years Total
not Due Months
Undispuled Trade Recevables - Considered Good 50620.18 5062019
8. Other Current Assets Current
At amortised cost As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Others
Inter Company Balances 0.00 0.00
Advances recovarabla in cash or kind 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expanses 194368 1734.19
Input GST 16371.82 1848622
18315.50 20220.41
8.1, No loans and advances are due from direclors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any cifer person
| As at As at
9. Current Tax Asscts (Net) March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
TDS and Advance Tax 22129.28 §772.35

22129.28

9772.35




GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

11. Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable valuc)
Finished Goods

Total

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents:
i) Cash in hand
ii) Balances with banks
- On Current Accounts
- Liquidator bank account
Cash and Cash Equivalents

12. b) Other Bank Balances:

- Earmarked balances (On unclaimed dividend accounts)

- Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months
Other Bank Balances

Cash and Bank balances (a+b)

(Rs. In"000)
As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
2897265 28972 65
2897265 2897265
As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
0.00 0.00
4271053 248.08
7671.37 767137
50381.90 7919.45
As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
52000.00 0.00
52000.00 0.00
| 102381.90 7919.45




GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Number of shares (Rs. In '000)
13. Equity share capital As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised capital
Equity shares of 2 10 each 1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000 150000.00 150000.00 150000.00
150000.00 150000.00 150000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000 3000.00 3000.00 3000.00
3000.00 3000.00 3000.00
a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Number of shares (Rs. In '000)
Equity Shares with voling rights As at As at As al As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Atthe beginning of the year 3,00,000 3,00,000 T = 3000.00 3000.00 0.00
Issued during the year (refer Note c) - 3,00,000 0.00 0.00 0.00
Cancellation of Shares ( refer Note c) - 0.00
At the end of the year 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000 3000.00 3000.00 0.00

b) Terms [ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has cne class of equity shares having a par value of Z 10/- per share. Fach share holder is ¢ligible for ene vole per share held. The dividend proposed by the Beard of Director is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General meeting . In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of

all preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

Statement of Shares held by Promoters as on 31st March 2024

| _ Asat3fstMarch2024 T Asat3istMarch2023 % Change during
Hams of halmion: | No. Shares %Sharesheld | | No.Shares | %Sharesheld = the Year
\RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited _ 2.98,990 _100.00%] | 299990 |  100.00% 0.00%
Tofal 299,990 100.00% 2,995,850 100.00%
Statement of Shares held by Promoters as on 31st March-2023
N ihe Bclhcter As at 31st March-2023 As at 31st March-2022 %% Change during
e . No. Shares % Shares held No. Shares % Shares held the Year
(Gupta Realinfra Veniures Pvt. Ltd. I 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
(Gupta Coal IndiaPvt. Ltd. (.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gupla Realinfra Ventures Pyt. Lid. Jointly with
Gupta Coal India Pvt Ltd. - 0.00% - | 000%  0.00%
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited . 299590 0.00% 299,980 | 100.00% 100.00%|
Shri Ravi Prakash Pincha . 10 0.00%, 10 000%  0.00%
Total| 3,00,000 0.00% 3,00,000 100.00%

¢) Share Capital is reduced as per the Board Resolution by RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited.



GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

14. Other equity

Capital reserves

Securities Premium Account

General reserve

Employee’s Stock Options Outstanding Account
Retained earnings (Refer note a)

Total

a) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year

Add: Account oustanding before Auction
Add: Transfer from Liquidation Reserve

(Rs. In '000)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0,00 0.00
-45658.63 -98763.54
-45658.63 -98763.54
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

-98763.54 -11611.61
53104.92 -87151.93
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
-45658.63 -98763.54

Note: The amount utilised / trasferred during the year in the General Reserve indicates the net amount written off/ back during the

year,




GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

15. Long-term Borrowings

SECURED

Term Loans from Banks

From Axis Bank Ltd

Less: Current Maturities*

YMS Finance Pvt Ltd
UNSECURED

From Holding Company

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Gupta Realinfra Ventures Pvt, Ltd.
Gupta Corporation Pvt. Ltd.

From Others
YMS Finance Private Limited

Note: Loan from RDB Really & Infrastructure Limited is unsecured in nature and no repayment schedule is rec

16 .Provisions (Non-Current)
Provisions for Employee Benefits
Gratuity

Total

17. Other Long-term Liabilities

Security Deposit from Customers
On Others
Total

18. Short Term Borrowings

Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Secured
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
Unsecured
From Relaled Parties
Loans Repayable on Demand
Others

(Rs. In '000)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

1085147.27 0.00
100080.00 0.00
0.00 1144131.14
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 39003.21
1185227.27 1183134.35
ognized in this behalf.
As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
As at As at
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
60747.91 3503769
0.00 0.00
60747.91 35037.69
As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2022

742070.38

0.00

742070.38




GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

21. Revenue from operations

Operating Income (Business Conducting Fees, rent, Amenities Charges, Parking Charges etc.)
Electricity Charges Received
Parking Charges Received

22. Other income

Interest Received from CSEB
Interest On |.T. Refund
Discount Received

Income Fram Scrap Sale
Interest Received on FDR

23. (Increase) in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Progress

Inventory at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 12)
Work-in-progress

Forging scrap

Finished goods

Vendor managed inventories

Inventory at the end of the year (Refer Note 12)
Finished goods

24, Employee benefits expense

Salary and Allowances
Provident Fund Contribution
Bonus

PF Administration Charges

25, Finance Cost

Bank Commission & Charges
Interest paid on GST
Interest paid on TDS
Interest paid on Loan

(Rs. In '000)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
124866.12 105035.25
79418.91 75023.31
2700.00 1395.00
206985.03 181453.57
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
694.26 454.31
577.64 4660.72
0.00 210.61
0.00 50.62
743549 766.34
8707.39 6142.59

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
28972.65 28972.65
0.00 0.00
28972.65 28972.65
28972.65 28972.65
28972.65 28972.65
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

2283.08 149

0.00 5.38

0.00 12.60

21066,26 0.00

23349.34) .- 19.47




CUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

26. Other expenses (a)

Advertisement and Publicity
Commission

Donation

Electricity Charges (Raipur Mall)
Hotel Expense

Ground Rent (Lease Rent)
Insurance

Printing & Stationery

Lease Deed Registration Exp
Legal Expenses

Professicnal Charges

Rent Rates & Taxes

Repairs & Maintenance Other
Tender Fees

Travelling Expense
Miscellaneous Expenses

b. Details of payment to auditors:

Statutory Auditors:
Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees

Grand Total (ath)

(Rs. In '000)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
9381.72 1215.00
525.28 13070.00
1250.00 0.00
79276.77 74313.76
1352.16 72710
26653.31 26653.32
2386.81 2736.55
14.55
142.93 1932.47
1.80 11817.60
2195.80 7660.00
10789.97 8917.97
0.00 0.00
-705.24 718.50
1362.99 667.82
287.65 728.76
134916.49 151158.83
Forthe yearended | For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

295.00

215.00
0.00 0.00
215.00 295.00
135131.49 151453.83




GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

27 Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Numerator for basic and diluted EPS

Net profit after tax attributable to shareholders (in ¥ lakhs)
Denominator for basic EPS

- Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS
Denominator for diluted EPS

- Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS

Basic earnings per share of face value of Z 10/- each (in %)
Diluted earnings per share of face value of ¥ 10/- each (in #)

(AIB)
(AIC)

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
53104.92 -87151.83
30,00,000 30,00,000
30,00.000 30,00,000
17.70 (29.05)
17.70 (29.05)|




GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

27a Financial instruments
A. Financial Assets and liabilities:

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

(Rs. In '000)
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial Assets
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Trade receivables (Refer Note. 7) 5248852 50620.19 52488.52 50620.19
Loans - Non-current (Refer Note. 8) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Cash and Bank balances (Refer Note. 13a and 13b) 50381.90 7919.45 50381.90 7919.45
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 102870.42 58539.64 102870.42 58539.
Financial assets at FVTPL
Total financial assets carried at FVTPL 0.00 0.00 0.00
Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total financial assets carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Short term borrowings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Long term borrowings 118522727 1183134.35 1185227.27 1183134.35
Trade payables (Refer Note. 16) 8871.40 210764 .46 8871.40 210764 .46
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 1194098.67 1393598.81 1194098.67 1393898.81
Financial Liabilities at FVTPL
Derivative instruments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total financial liabilities carried at FVTPL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, derivative instruments, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities
approximale their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

B Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies:
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises trade and other payables and cther financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 1o finance and support
the operations of the Company. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, loans and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its

The Cfémpany's business activities are exposed to a variety of risks including liquidity risk. credit risk and market risk. The Company seeks to minimize potential adverse effects of
these risks on its financial performance and capital. Financial risk activities are idenlilied measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives
which are summarized below and are reviewed by the senior managermen,

(A) Credit risk
Credit risk relers lo risk of financial loss to the Company if customers or countargarties 13l to meet their contractual obligations, The Company is exposed to cradit risk from its
operaling activities (mainly frade receivables).

(i) Credit risk management

(a) Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through its established policies nd procedures which involve selting up credit limits based on credif profiling of individual
customers, credit approvals for enhancement of limits and regular monitering of important developments viz. payment history, change in credit rating, regulatory changes, industry
outlook elc. The maximum exposure to credit risk al the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7. Cutstanding receivables are
regularly monilored and an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for each major customer. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the
Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or reversal thereof,

(B) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk implies that the Company may not be able to meet its obligations associated with its financial labilities. The Company manages its liquidity risk on the basis of the
business plan that ensures that the funds required for financing the business operations and meeting financial liabilities are available in a timely manner and in he currency required

at optimal costs. The Management regularly monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position lo ensure it has sufficient cash on an onging basis fo meet aperational fund
requirements

pe .

(C) Market Risk =4
Market risk is Ihe risk that the fair value of future cash flow of financial instruments may fluctuate because of changes in market conditions. Market risk broadly chmprises three types
of risks namely foreign currency risk, interes! rate risk and price risk (for commodities) . The above risks may affect the Company's income and expense and profit. ~ <7



GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes tc the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

As at 31st As at 31st Variance Rbmatks

27b. |VARIOUS RATIOS March-2024 March-2023
1 |Current Ratio 0.30 0.56 69.03%|  These huge variations are
2 |Debt-Equity Ratio -45.18 -15.28 -62.63%| due to sale of company under
3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio 5.79 -1,326.41 -445.30% liquidation as a going concern
4 |Return on Equity ratio 0.77 139.37% 150.27%| as per the order of Hon'ble
5 |Inventory Turnover ratio 7.14 6.26 -38.23%|  NCLT Mumbai Bench.
6 |Trade Receivable turnover ratio 4.0 3.39 -34.84%|  Following the sale, the
7 |Trade Payable turnover ratio - - 0.00%| company consolidated its
8  |Net Capital Turnover ratio -030 | -1.04 -23.70%| balance sheet by obtaining
9  |Net Profit ratio 0.26 | 0.45 890.12%| new loans and settiing old
10 [Return on Capital Employed 0.02 A17% 92.56%| ones, aiming to improve its
11 [Return on Investment 1.24 90.51% 265.48% financial position.




Gupta Infrastructure (India) Private Limited

Other Notes: (For the year ended on 31/03/2024)

28) Bank of India had filed an application under section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 to NCLT Mumbai in the month of August. 2017. The Honorable NCLT Mumbai had
passed an order for initiation of CIRP process on 01.02.2018. Further by the order dated
02.01.2019 of Honorable NCL'T Mumbai Bench, the company went into liquidation as per the
provisions of Insolvency & Bankruptey Code, 2016. The Liquidator issued invitation for bids
for auction of the Company as Going Concern with specified liabilities and on “as is where is,
as is what is, whatever there is” basis. RDB Realty and Infrastructure Limited, Kolkata
submitted its Expression of Interest and in furtherance thereof an E-auction was held on 22"
November 2021. The bid submitted by RDB Realty and Infrastructure Limited was found to
be highest and therefore the company was awarded to RDB Realty and Infrastructure Limited.

On 22" February 2022, RDB Realty and Infrastructure Limited paid the final payment and all
the agreed assets and liabilities were transferred with the company as Going Concern as per
the sale certificate issued by the liquidator dated 05™ March, 2022 w.e.f 22" February 2022.

The Company was sold to the bidder as a going concern as per the order of Mumbai Bench of
Hon’ble NCLT on 22th Feb, 2022 but the necessary compliances and paper work takes its
own due course of time so the status of company on ROC portal is showing as “Under
Liquidation™ as on 31% March, 2024 and the same has to be removed by the ROC. Since the
current status is “Under Liquidation, the necessary documents cannot be filed with ROC till
the time ROC removes the status to active.

29) The Company owned City Centre (mall building) and Multiplex Project at Raipur on a land
granted on lease by Raipur Development Authority (RDA). The project has been awarded to
the company on Build, Own, Operate & Transfer (BOOT) basis by RDA.

30) The Company is in the business of providing of premises. assets etc. of the City Centre and
Multiplex project on lease/sale basis. as such there are no separate reportable segments in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”, issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.

31) Debtors and Creditors are subject to reconciliation as their confirmations are not received.

32) Renovation work of the City Center mall is undergoing and the expenses related to it are

grouped under Capital Work in Progress. Upon completion the amount will be capitalized
under Fixed Assets.




33) Related parties’ disclosures under Accounting

Standard 18:

1) Relationships:
a) Holding Company:

RDB Realty & Infrastructures Limited

Note: Related party relationships are as identified by the Company Secretary of the company

and relied upon same by the Auditors.

2) Transactions carried out with related parties refer

red in 1 above, in ordinary course of business:

=—

Particulars Rel

31st March,
2024

ationships 31st March,

2023

Holding Company

RDB Realty & Infrastructures Lid.:
Amount Received

Renovation Charges
Interest on Loan
Amount paid to RDB by GIIPL

38.02.74,381

5.83,65,499
1.58.27,71,018

5,03.24,780
20,68.24.389
8,31.05.454
8,97.18,926

Closing Balance

1,14,41,31,138

34) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified/rearranged wherever necessary.

Signature to Notes “1” to “34”

FOR AGRAWAL DAMANI AND
ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration N0.134231W)

N
el R

U PP
Sanjay Agrawal e
(Partner)
Membership.No.154388

Place: Nagpur
24" May, 2024
UDIN: 24154388BKCYJK3478

FOR GUPTA INFRASTRUCTUR (INDIA)
PYT LTD

\w‘qﬂ““/ m‘fi“ .

Mr. Ravi Pincha Mr. Pradeep Pugalia
(Director) (Director)
DIN: 00094695 DIN: 00501351
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: CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Sth Floor, Suite No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001
Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. - (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinicon

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Raj Construction
Projects Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the "standalone financial statements”). In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. (‘Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the
profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (“SA’s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

We are aware that Standard on Auditing (SA) 701, ‘Communicating Key Audit Matters in the
Independent Auditor's Report” applies to audit of all listed entities for the accounting year
commencing on or after April 1, 2019, KAMs are those matters that. in the auditor's
professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial results of the
current year. We understand that in determining.the KAMs in your audit report on the
consolidated financial results of the Comﬁrjy‘?ﬁ" SEo1S, of SA 701, you would be considering
the KAMs identified by us. Accordingly, We' herghy o5 irm that we will include a section on
KAMs in our Audit report on the Compoq_eﬂﬁ pgnt, there are no key audit matters to
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consolidated financial results of the Company in terms of SA 701, you would be considering
the KAMs identified by us. Accordingly, we hereby confirm that we will include a section on
KAMs in our Audit report on the Component. In the event, there are no key audit matters to
be communicated in respect of the component, we will state as under:

"We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for
Raj Construction Projects Private Limited for the quarter and year ended March 31,
2024 "

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. '

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, desj
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that IS suffith

for our opinion The risk of not detecting a 'pjét
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that
Individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
In evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro :
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Report are in agreement with the relevant book$.

luding Other Comprehensive
Cash Flows dealt with by this
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act

f) Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50
Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is
less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect
to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13 2017 and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

il The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise:

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

Iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(b) The management has represented, that. to the best of it's knowledge and belief other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

vi. Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance
on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g)—et=the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
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and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements
carried out in accordance with the Standard of Auditing and only to the extent required by
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014. We have not carried out any
audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule
11(g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. as amended. in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us: the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

ey’
CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata
Date' The 24" Day of May 2024.
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBD7639
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(it)

(iii)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RAJ CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS PRIVATE
LIMITED of even date)

(a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets;

(b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals: no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets: therefore, this clause is not applicable.

The company has granted unsecured advances to other parties,
(a) The company has provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or
provided security to other parties and entity.
(A) The aggregate amount during the year and balance outstanding at the
balance sheet date with respect to loans and advances to subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates is mentioned:

' Particulars ' Opening Receipt Payment | Closing
Balance .| Balance

‘Loans & Advances | 58933653 26,14,88,190 | 28,98,81,900 | 873.27.363
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(Iv)

(v)

(B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to advances to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates is mentioned:

Particulars ' Opening Receipt ngment_ ~ Closing
' Balance ' Balance
|
' Loans and | 20,60,82577 | 40,25,14,069 | 52,54.21,276 | 32,89,89,784

' advances to parties '

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated to be on demand so repayment
schedule is not available and the repayments or receipts are regular

(d) Since the company has given loans and advances to be repayable on demand
therefore no reascnable steps are required to be taken by the company.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on
demand, to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies

Act, 2013.
i Particulars ' Closing Balance | % of Loans to related
[ ; _ T SR | parties
'\ Loans and Advances to | 41,54,40,457 ! 99.79%
. related parties | I (S

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees. and security, provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with

In respect of deposits which are accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits, as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, are complied.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company

(a) The company is regular in depositing_undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employ“ €s stateinsurance. income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, va}(ﬂé"“‘ ddéd ™
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(vii)

(1x)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiti)

(xiv)

last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b) The company has not applied for any term loans.

(¢) The company has not raised any funds on short term or long term purposes.

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b)No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

(c)There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company

The company is not a Nidhi Company: hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements. etc.. as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(@) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore this clause is not
applicable.

(b) The company does not have an inter
Auditors for the period under audit were
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(xv)

(xv1)

(xvil)

(xviii)

(X1%)

(xx)

{(xx1)

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required,

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificale of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company Is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

The provisions of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable on the company.

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No 060270
Place: Kolkata

Date: The 24" Day of May 2024
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBD7639
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Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

7

[Vineet Khetan

I'he notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial

Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2024
Particulars Note As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 1204.12 1021.67
(b) Intrangible 2A 0.00 0.00
(¢) Financial Assets
{i} Investment 3 42748.00 42748.00
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 325540.16 377609.20
(d) Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 316.27 203.78
Total Non - Current Assets 369808.56 421582.66
Current assets
{a) Inventories 6 243919.71 275593.08
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 1024.75 660.77
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 10610.14 8509.88
(iii) Other financial assets g 420251.96! 562631.39
(c) Current Tax Assets 10 7700.26 6907.17
(d) Other current assets 11 60.30 161.46
Total Current Assets 683607.12 854463.75
Total Assets 1053415.68 1276046.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 18544.50 18544.50
(b) Other Equity 13 681750.08 584153.42
Total equity 700294.58 602697.92
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 147557.68 0.00
(iil) Other financial liabilities 28389.17 13348.37
Total non-current liabilities 175946.85 13348.37
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 0.00 331074.68
(i) Trade and other payables 16
outstanding to micro enterprises & small 0.00 0.00
enterprises;
outstanding to other than micro enterprises & 8183.29 8080.90
| smallenterprises
{iii) Other financial liabilities 17 A4468.83 1056.76
(b) Other current liabilities 18 125307.64 297573.29
() Provisions 19 39214.50 22214.50
Total Current Liabilities 177174.25 660000.12
Total liabilities 353121.10 673348.49
Total Equity & Liabilities 1053415.68 1276046.40
1 {0)

For and on behalf of the Board
Raj Constructions Projects Pvt Ltd

}’/ MM‘ — foe

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia
Director
Din No.00501351

Proprietor

Membership No.060270

Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: 24th May 2024
Udiy t 24D6627F0 BRPDTRDF63 9

Ravi Prakash Pincha
Director
Din No.00094695




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041835

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2024 Fig (in 000)
articulars P Year ended Year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Revenue
Revenue from operations 20 162107.30 122238.23
Other income 21 37515.46 35172.00
Total Revenue 199622.76 157410.23
Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses 22 1984.56 229.37
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress & finished goods 23 31673.37 27860.15
Em_piaee benefit expense 24 1956.55 1706.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 442.25 686.04
Finance costs 25 14010.64 10369.33
Other expenses 26 5482.13 3282.38
Total expenses 55549.51 44133.62
Profit before tax 144073.25 113276.61
Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax 37000.00 20000.00
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year 9589.08 9.61
- Deferred Tax -112.49 0.00
Total tax expense 46476.59 20009.61
Profit after tax 97596.66 93267.00
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclussified to profit or loss 0.00
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 0.00
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 0.00
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.00
Total comprehensive income for the year 97596.66 93267.00
Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders 97596.66 93267.00
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 1854.35 1854.35
Basic earnings per share 52.63 50.30
Diluted earnings per share 52.63 50.30

|For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

R

Vineet Khetan
Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

|Date: 24th May'2024

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements
This is the Statement of profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

Ravi Prakash Pincha

Director

For and on behalf of the Board
Raj Constructions Projects Pvt Ltd

ke .

Din No.00094695

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia

Director

Din No.00501351




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

W

Vineet Khetan

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date: 24th May 2024

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024 FiEfin.200)
For the year ended For the year ended
Chsis Eioi SRsamon 3ist M:rch.ZOZG 31t March,2023
A. |Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Lass 144073.25 113276.61
Adjustments for
Interest Recd -37499.19 -34874.64
Notional Interest (Expenses) 0.00 0.00
National Interest (Income)
Liabilities Written Back -0.48
Fixed Assets written off
Depreciation & Amortisation 442,25 686.04
Interest Paid 14010.64 -23046.79 10369.33 -23819.27
Opemtirlg_Pmﬂt Before Working Capital Changes 121026.46 §9457.34
(increase) / Decrease in Inventories 31673.37 27860.15
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables -363.99 -51.66
(Increase) / Decrease of Financial Assets 142339.44 -208470.15
(Increase) / Decrease of Non Financial Assets 52069.04 -376501.79
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets 101.17 68.62
Increase / (Decrease] in Trade Payables 102.39 7948.34
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities 341207 -349.96
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Non-Current Liabilities 15040.80 -80693.45
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities -172265.16 72105.12 238829.37 -391360.52
Cash generated from operations 193135.58 -301903.18
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) -30382.17 -8821.76
Cash Flow before Exceptional items 162753.41 -310724.94
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 162753.41 -310724.94
B. |Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Interest Recd 37499.19 34874.64
Purchase of Fixed Assets -624.70
Sale of Fixed Assets 261.03
Fixed Deposit -470.62 -4907.19
Increase in Investment 0.00 36403.87 -10002.00 20226.47
Net cash from investing activities 36403.87 20226.47
C. |Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / {Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings -331074.68 2095108.84
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings 147557.68 0.00
Interest Paid -14010.64 -197527.64 -10369.23 284739.51
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities -197527.64 284739.51
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1629.65 -5758.96
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 3602.68 9361.64
5232.33 3602.68
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 4626.75 3051.80
0.00
Cash an hand (As certified by the management) 605.58 550.89
5232.33 3602.68
0.00 0.00

For and on behalf of the Board
Raj Constructions Projects Pvt Ltd

e Dy

Ravi Prakash Pincha Pradeep Kumar Pugalia
Director Director
Din No.00094695 Din No.00501351




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Notes to the financial statements

Fig (in 000)

A. Share Capital
Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital as on 01.04.2021 18544.50
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year 0.00
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2022 18544.50
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year 0.00
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2023 18544.50
Add: Addition/(Deletion ) during the year
Equity Share Capital as on 31.03.2024 18544.50
B. Other Equity
Other Equity Fig (in 000)
Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Stipis troin Securities Gthes .

Statement of Comprehensive | Amount [Rs.)
Share holders of the Company ¢ Premium

Profit & Loss Income
Balance at 1 April 2021 390143.26 7704250 0.00 467185.76
Transfers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit for the year 23700.66 0.00 0.00 23700.66
Total comprehensive income for the year 413843.92 77042.50 0.00 490886.42
Balance at 31 March 2022 413843.92 77042.50 0.00 490886.42
Transfers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit for the Year 93267.00 0.00 0.00 93267.00
Total comprehensive income for the year 507110.92 77042.50 0.00 584153.42
Balance at 31st March 2023 507110.92 77042.50 0.00 584153.42
Transfers
Profit for the Year 97596.66 97596.66
Total comprehensive income for the year 604707.58 77042.50 0.00 681750.08
Balance at 31st March 2024 604707.58 77042.50 0.00 681750.08
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Raj Constructions Projects Pvt Ltd
Vineet Khetan &“\m Q\'\\\\y
Proprietor ) v
Membership No.060270 Pradeep KumatPugalia Ravi Prakash Pincha
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street Director Director

|Kolkata - 700 001. Din No.00501351 Din No.00094695

Date: 24th May 2024
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Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Fig (in 000)
Notes to the financial statements as on As at31.03.24 As at 31.03.23
Note 3 Investment
Investment in Equity Instruments (At Cost, fully Paid)
Fquity Shares, Unquoted (Face Value Rs.1/- each]
Ritudhan Suppliers Pvt Ltd (Qty - 50,000 Shares) 10050.00 10050.00
Investment in Partnership Firm
Rituraj Construction LLP
- Capital 50.00 50,00
- Current 0.00 0.00
HPSD Enclave LLP
- Capital 50.00 50.00
- Current 1620.00 1620.00
HPVD Enclave LLP
- Capital 250.00 250.00
- Current 30725.00 30725.00
Nirvana Devcon LLP
- Capital 3.00 3.00
42748.00 42748.00
Disclosure of Partnership Firm
Rituraj Construction LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pyt Ltd (50%) 50.00 50.00
Raj vardhan Patodia (50%) 50.00 50.00
HPSD Enclave LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pvt Ltd (50%)
Capital 50.00 50.00
- Current 0.00 0.00
Regent Hirise Private Limited (50%)
- Capital 50.00 50.00
- Current -45.00 -45.00
HPVD Enclave LLP
Name of Partner and Share of Investment
Raj Construction Projects Pvt Ltd (50%)
- Capital 250.00 250.00
- Current 30725.00 30725.00
Regent Hirise Private Limited (50%)
- Capital 250.00 250.00
- Current 30490.00 30490.00
Nirvana Devcon LLP
- Capital 3.00 3.00
Note 4 Financial Assets
Unsecured, Considered Good
Other Advances 32443275 376501.79
Security Deposits 1107.41 1107.41
TOTAL 325540.16 377609.20
Note 5 Deferred Tax Liability (net)
Deferred Tax Assets
- On Fixed Assets -316.27 -203.78
Deferred Tax Assets -316.27 -203.78
Note 6 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Finished Stock 110271.06 133548.65
Work in process 142044.43

Total Inventories

275593.08




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Fig (in 000)
Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23
Note 7 Trade receivables
Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured,;
Qutstanding for a period
Less than six months
& manths -1 year 1024.75 660.77
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total 1024.75 660.77
Note 7(a) - Classification of Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables considerad good — Secured;
Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured; 1024.75 660.77
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk;
Trade Receivables — credit impaired
1024.75 660.77
Note 7{a) - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other person; 0.00 0.00
Debts due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other person; 0.00 0.00
debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a 0.00 0.00
director or a member.
Total
Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
(a) Balances with banks (Unrestricted in Current Account) 4626.75 3051.80
(b) Fixed Deposit with Bank 5377.81 4907.19
(c ) Cash in hand 605.58 550.89
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 10610.14 8509.88
Note 9 Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Loan To Others 379168.41 107755.45
Other Advance 41123.54 454875.94
TOTAL 420291.96 562631.39
Note 10 Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS 7700.26 6907.17
TOTAL 7700.26 6907.17
MNote 11 Other current assets
Prepaid Expenses 0.00 8.73
Balance with Statutory Authorities 60.30 152.73
TOTAL 60.30 161.46




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Fig {in 000)
Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23
Note 12 Equity Share Capital
(Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 2000.00 2000.00
Total Amount 20000.00 20000.00
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 1854.45 1854.45
Total Amount 18544.50 18544.50
¢) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 1854.35 1854.35
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 1854.35 1854.35
Percentage of total shares held 0.00 0.00
i) Details of Promoter shareholding as at the end of year Number of Shares Number of Shares
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 1854.35 1854.35
Ravi Prakash Pincha 0.10 0.10
Note: There have been no changes in the promoter shareholding during the year.
dividend and repayment of capital
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per
£) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of halding
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 1854.35 1854.35
Percentage of total shares held 0.00 0.00
Ravi Prakash Pincha (Nominee of abave)
Number of Shares 0.10 0.10
Percentage of total shares held 0.00 0.00

100 Shares held by Ravi Prakash Pincha are held in capacity of nominee holder of RDB

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares
Total Amount

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from

shareholders within the period of 5 years
No such shares have been issued nor there has been any buy-back




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Fig (in 000)
Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.24 Asat31.03.23
Note 13 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year 507110.92 413843.92
Add: Profit for the year 97596.66 93267.00
As at the end of the year 604707.58 507110.92
Securities Premium
As at the beginning of the year 77042.50 77042.50
Add: Charges during the year 0.00 0.00
As at the end of the year 77042.50 77042.50
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income 0.00 0,00
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income 0.00 0.00
Total 681750.08 584153.42

Note 14 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Loan From Bank 147557.68 0.00
Secured by way of hypothecation of Spencer Mall

Total non-current borrowings 147557.68 0.00

Note 15 Other Financial Liability (Non Current)

Advance against properties 0.00 4121.80
Sundry Depaosit 28389.17 9226.57
Total 28389.17 13348.37

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings (Current)

From Related Parties (Unsecured)

From other than Related Parties (Unsecured) 0.00 331074.68
Total 0.00 331074.68

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade Payables

To micro enterprises & small enterprises;

To other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 8183.29 8080.90
Total 8183.29 8080.90

Trade payables outstanding for a period :
Less than six months

6 months -1 year 17.21 0.00
1-2 years
2-3 years 8166.07 8080.90

More than 3 years

e 8166.07 8080.90




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935

Fig {in 00Q)
Notes to the financial statements as on As at 31.03.24 As at 31.03.23
Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Current maturity of long term debt 0.00
Other Liabilities 1822.49 24.39
Outstanding Statutory Payment 2646.34 1032.37
Total A4468.83 1056.76
Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others 125307.64 297573.29
Total 125307.64 297573.29
Note 19 Provisions
Provisian for Income Tax 39214.50 22214.50
Total 39214.50 22214.50




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WB1987PTC041935
Fig (in 000)
Year ended 31.03.24 Year ended 31.03.23
Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations

Sales of Services (Construction Activities) 12052.27 90308.30
Sales of Land 126742.64 0.00
Rental Income (Including Rs.90,000/- from holding company) 23312.40 31929.93
TOTAL 162107.30 122238.23

Note 21 Other Income

Interest on Loan 37499.12 34874.64
Sundry Balances written back 0.48 297.36
Other Income 15.78 0.00
Total 37515.46 35172.00

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Construction Expenses

Professional Charges 0.00 0.00
Interest Paid 0.00 0.00
Other Construction Expenses 1984.56 22937
Consumption 1984.56 229.37

Note 23 Changes in inventories
(A) Opening Inventory

Finished Goods 142044.43 133548.65
Work in Progress 133548.65 169904.58
Sub Total (A) 275593.08 303453.23

(B} Closing Inventory
Finished Goods 110371.06 133548.65
Work in Progress 133548.65 142044.43
Sub Total (B) 243919.71 275593.08
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B) 31673.37 27860.15

Note 24 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and incentives 1956.55 1706.35
Total 1956.55 1706.35

Note 25 Finance Cost

Interest Paid 98.69
Other Borrowing Cost (Finance Charges) 10270.64
IND AS Interest 0.00

Total 10369.33




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70108WB1987PTC041935
Fig (in 000)
Year ended 31.03.24 Year ended 31.03.23
Notes to the financial statements

Note 26 Other Expenses

Bank Charges 110.10 10.95
Municipal Tax on Rented Property
Rates & Taxes 649.93 667.66
Rent 35.05 35.05
Electricity Expenses 0.00 2,70
Computer Expenses
Filing Fees 8.29 40.28
General Expenses
Insurance Charges 51.57 43,54
Donation 900.00
Maintenance Charges
Motor Vehicle Expenses 0.00 18.90
Other Repairs 2544.89 1430.62
Postage & Courier 5.79 9.44
Printing & Stationery 9.89 3161
Sundry Balance w/off 8388
legal & Professional Charges 512.20 359.37
Advertisement, Publicity & Sales Promotion Expenses 0.00
Commission to Selling Agents 19364 0.00
Loss on Sale of Assets 0.00 212.20
Miscellaneous Expenses 238.37 348.02
Travelling Expenses 117.77 56.47
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory Audit Fees 5.00 5.00

Tax Audit Fees
Auditor Expenses
Total

10.57
3282.38




[Ra] Construction Projects Private Limited
The Notes forming par of the Financial Statement

A.

27,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CORPORATE INFORMATIONS

Raj Constructions Projects Private Limiled ("the Company”) is a subsidiary of a listed company incorporated in India on 23rd Feb, 1987 having its
registered office at Bikaner Building, 8/1 Lal Bazar Street, 3rd Floor, Room No. 10, Kolkata-700001. The Company is principally engaged in the
business of Real Estate, Rental.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) (to the extent notified) and Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for cerain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values, The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 {as amended),

Accounting palicies have been consistenlly applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision 1o an existing
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non currenl as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set oul in
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, The normal operating cycle has been considered as 12 months

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions thal affect the|
balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabiflies as al the Balance Sheet date and amounts of income and
expenses during the year. Examples of such estimales include contract costs expected to be incumed 1o complete construction contracts, provision
for doubtful debts, income taxes and future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans. Aclual results could differ from those estimates.
The effects of adjustment arising from revisions made to the estimales are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such
revisions are made.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

a) Revenue from own construction projects are recognised on percentage of completion method. Units for which agreement for sale is ted
till reporting date are considered for it. Revenue recognition starts when 20% of estimated project cost excluding land and marketing cost is
incurred. Further, unils for which Deed of Conveyance is executed of possession is given, revenue is recognised to full extent.

b) Revenue from Joint Venture Development Agreement under work sharing arrangements are recognized on the same basis as similar to own
construction projects independently executed by the company to the extert of the company's share In joint venture

c) Revenue from Construction Contracts are recognised on percentage of completion method measured by reference to the survey of works done|
up to the reporting date and certified by the client before finalisation of projects accounts.

d) Revenue from services are recognised on rendering of services o customers except otherwise stated.
e) Rental income from assets is recognized for an accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered doubtful

f) Interest income |s recognised on time proportion basis.

FIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets, including those given on lease, are slated al cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any atiributable cost of bringing the asset to ils working candition for its intended use,

Software is capitalized, where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits.

Leasehold land under perpetual lease is not amortized Lease hold land other than on perpetual lease is being amortized on time proportion basis
over ther respective lease periods.

DEPRECIATION
Depreciation is provided on written down value method at the rates prescribed under Schedule-XIV of the Companies Adt, 1956

INVESTMENTS
All investments are bifurcated into Non Current Investments and Current Investments. Investments that are readily realisable and intended to bej
held for not more than a year from the date of Balance Sheet are classified as Current Investments. All other investments are classified as Non
Current Investments. Current Investments are carried at lower of cost or fair market value, determined on an individual investment basis. Non
Current investments are caried at cost Provision for Diminution in the value of Non Current investments is made, only if such a diminution is other
than temporary

INVENTORIES
a) Finished Goods: Al lower of cost or net realisable value.
by Work-in-Progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
Provision for obsolescence in inventones is made, wherever required

Work-in-progress- Real Estate projects (including land inventory): represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area of the real estate
development projects or costs ineurred on projects whera revenue is to be recognized
Work-In-progress- Contractual: represents cost of work done yet to be certified Ihﬂy_ﬂ'—_—"f-\\

//w\n k“\
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|Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
The Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an oniginal maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
i) Real Estate: Sales is exclusive of service tax and value added tax, if any. net of sales return.
ii) Rental Income: Rental income Is exclusive of service tax.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded al the exchange rate prevailing at the date of fransactions or that approximates the
actual rate at the date of transactions.

Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settied during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss for the|
penod,

Transactions which remain unsettled at the reporting date and reported at rales prevailing as at reporting date and any exchange gain / loss is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

i} Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, expected cos! of ex-gratia etc. are recognized in the periad in which the
employee renders the related service

ii) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Employees State Insurance Corporation and Provident Fund are considered as
defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period when the contributions lo the
respective funds are due.

b} Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefil plan and are provided for on the basis of an
independent actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet date as per requirements of Ind AS-19
(Revised 2005) on "Employee Benafits”

iii) Actuanal gainsflosses, ff any, are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use or sale, Cther borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the year in which they are incurred

TAXATION
a) Current Tax: Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since Company has opted to pay Income tax ufs 115BAA. MAT [s not applicable

b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised subject to consideration of prudence on the basis of timing differences being the differences between
taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods using the
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognised and carmed
forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the asset will be realised in future.

PROVISIONS/CONTINGENCIES

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settie the
cbligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on besl estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date. Liabilties which are malerial and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable
certainty are treated as contingent liability and are disclosed by way of note.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the same exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimate of the recoverable amount




|Raj Construction Projects Private Limited

The Notes forming pan of the Financial Stat

28. Earnings per share in accordance with ind AS-33

As al As al
Eamings per share is computed as under;- 31s;oh;:rch. 31st March, 2023
Profit available for Equity Shareholders (A) (Rs.) 97596.66 93267.00
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (B) (Nos.) 1854.45 1854.45
r share (Face value of Rs 10/- per Equit are 5263 5028
Basic & Diluted (A/B) (Rs ) : i

29. Segment Reporting:-

The Business of the company fall under a single segment i e. Development of Real Estale &
AS ~ 108 on 'Segment Reporting is not applicable to the company.
political and economical conditions: hence disclosure Tor Geographical segment is also not required

Infrastructure”. The disclosure requirement as per Ind
The Company's business is mainly concentraled in similar geographical,

30.

Related Party Disclosures in accordance with Ind AS - 24:-
(i) Enerprses where control exists

A) Holding Company
Sl. No. Name of Company

1 |

RDB Realty & Infi

ucture Limited

B) Others
SLNo. |

Mame of Company

1 |

() Disclosure of transactions between the Company and refated parties and the stalus of outstanding balances as

The previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary

on 31-Mar-2024 Amountin (Rs)
Holding Company Key Manager;;r:;eemmml & their Others
Nature of Transactions =
As at 31st March As at 31st As at 31st March As at 31st March | As at 31st March | As at 31st March
2024 March 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Opening Balance
Loan Given 67088 31 23001 88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Loan Taken 0.00 31370.04
Transaction during the
year
| inferest income 150,32 2043.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Rent Received 90.00 §0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00,
Interest Paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00]
Directors' Remuneration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00]
Advance Received Repaid 0.00 0.00 _0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00]
Unsecured Loan Recelved 0.00 80450.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00)
Unsecured Loan Repaid 0.00 111820.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Loan Given 351121.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Refund of Loan Given 40074093 300305.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 0.00 0.00
Reveivable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unsecured Loan 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Loan Given I 17710.59 67089.31 = 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
31. In the opinion of the Board the Current Assels, Loans and Advances are nol less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of business.

The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There 18 no contingent liabiiity except|
stated and informed by the Management.

Chartered Accountants -
Vineet Khetan

Partner

Membership No.080270
Place: 3b, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001

Date:

|For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

For and on behalf of the Board
Raj Canstructions Projects Pyt Ltd

&\“Q W‘\‘t/ :""'&:)\ﬂ"h

Pradeep Kumar Pugalla

FRavl Frakash Pincha
Director
Din No 00094695

Directer
Din No.00501351




Raj Construction Projects Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U70109WE1587PTC041935

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
37  Following Ratios to be disclosed Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
a) Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities 68,36,07,125 3.86 B85,44,63,748 1.29
17,71,74,253 66,00,00,118

Current Assets includes Cash & Cash Equivalents, Current Investments, and Short Term Loans & Adva nces at the end of year,
Current Liabilities includes Other Current Liabilities and Short Term Provision for Current Income Tax at the end of year,
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as deviation is less than 25%.

15,36,96,812 0.22 31,09,21,656 0.52
b) Debt-Equit tio = Short & Long term Debts / Shareholder's Equi e —_—
:' Sty e e i ; G 70,02,94,582 60,26,97,917

Short & Long term Debts includes Short Term Borrowings and Refundable Security deposit from Developers
Shareholder's Equity is Equity share capital and Reserves
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as deviation is less than 25%.

¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Net profit before Tax, Interest and 15,85,26,142 107 12,43,31,979 0.38
Depreciation / Debt to be serviced next year 14,75,57,676 33,10,74.676

Net profit before Tax, Interest and Depreciation as per Profit & Loss Statement
Debt to be serviced next year is short term debt (payable on demand) and amount payable within a year in Long term debt.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Since this year company has recognised Revenue and has earned profit.

d) Return on Equity Ratio = Net Profit after taxes / Average Shareholder’'s 9,75,96,662 0.15 9,32,67,000 017
Equity 65,14,96,250 55,60,64,419

Net Profit after taxes is profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss
Average Shareholder’s Equity is average of opening and closing net-worth of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Since this year cc

pany has recognised Revenue and has earned profit.

e) Inventory turnover ratio = Gross Revenue from sale of products and 19,96,22,762 0.77  15,74,10,228 0.54
services / Average Inventories 25,97,56,393 28,95,23,153

Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations {excluding Other Income).
Average Inventories is average of opening and closing Inventories of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as last year ratio was NIL.

f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Gross Revenue from sale of products  19,96,22,767 236.87  15,74,10,228 24791
and services / Average Trade Receivables 8,42,760 6,34,938
Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations (excluding Other Income).
Average Trade Receivables is average of opening and closing Trade Receivables of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as last year ratio was NIL.

Trade payables turnover ratio = Purchases / Average Trade payables —_— ———
€ Thnds poy e " 81,32,092 41,06,727
Purchases are purchases of goods and / or services for the projects
Average Trade Payables is average of opening and closing Trade Payables of the company,

Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as there are no purchases.

h) Net capital turnover ratio = Gross Revenue from sale of products and 19,96,22,762 057  15,74,10,228 041
services / Average Working Capital 35,04,48,251 38,09,55,219

Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations (excluding Other Income),
Average Working Capital is average of opening and closing Average Working Capital of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as last year ratio was

(i) Net profit ratio = Net Profit of the year / Gross Revenue from sale of

0.49 9,32,67,000 0.59
products and services

15,74,10,228

Changes
(%)

198.03%

-57.46%

186.08%

-10.69%

41.35%

-4.46%

NA

37.86%

-17.49%
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Net Profit of the year is Profit after tax for the year under review.
Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations (excluding Other Income).
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as last year ratio was NIL.

(i) Return on Capital employed = Farning before interest and taxes / 15,80,83,891 019  12,36,45,940 0.13  40.83%
Capital Employed 84,75,35,986 93,35,68,809

Earning before interest and taxes is profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss (as no Interest expense)
Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Tatal Debt + Deferred Tax Liability at the end of year
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Since this year company has recognised Revenue and has earned profit.

(k) Return on investment. - Not applicable as there are no investments.

The figures of reported have been rounded off in hundreds in accordance with the amended mandatory requirements of Division Il of Schedule 11l
except Number of Shares, Number of units, Earnings per share and Ratios

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountant . Raj Constructions Projects Pyt Ltd

f
A N A
Vineet Khetan & Associates (w S “\ \"Rt ‘/
Membership No, 060270 I ‘SLS % *

Kolkata Pradeep Kumar Pugalia Ravi Prakash Pincha
UDIN: Director Director
Date: Din No.00501351 Din No.00094635




VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
\\ 5th Floor, Suite No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001

Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RDB BHOPAL HOSPITALITY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of RDB Bhopal
Hospitality Private Limited (the ‘Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

We are aware that Standard on Auditing (SA) 701, “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the
Independent Auditor's Report” applies to audit of all listed entities for the accounting year
commencing on or after April 1, 2019. KAMs are those matters that, in the auditor's
professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial results of the
current year. We understand that in determining thy‘KAMs in your audit report on the
consolidated financial results of the Company in te 1s of SA 701, you would be considering
the KAMs identified by us. Accordingly, we he}r}b{éonﬁrm that we will include a section on



KAMs in our Audit report on the Component. In the event, there are no key audit matters to
be communicated in respect of the component, we will state as under:

“We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for
RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. Ve also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material/p’ﬂ'éstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud mdy involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofgnternal control.




« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (‘the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act. 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

A

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Vel statements comply with the Ind AS
1

specified under Section 133 of the Act. (



g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50
Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is
less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect
to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance
on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules,2014 (Revised 2024 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
which included test checks, we report that the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the ye If9r’ all relevant transactions recorded in the

i



software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements
carried out in accordance with the Standard of Auditing and only to the extent required by
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014. We have not carried out any
audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule
11(g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us; the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

W%

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 24" Day of May 2024.
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBG3602




(ii)

(ii)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’'s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RDB BHOPAL HOSPITALITY PRIVATE LIMITED
of even date)

(a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets;

(b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; therefore, this clause is not applicable.

The company has granted unsecured advances to other parties,
(a) The company has provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or
provided security to other parties and entity.

(A) As the company has not provided any loans and advances to subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates so this clause is not applicable.

(B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to advances to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates is mentioned:

Particulars Opening Receipt Payment | Closing
Balance Balance
Advances to parties - 12,45,88,523 | 14,09,02,506 | 1,63,13,983

(b) The company has not made any investments.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated to be on demand so repayment
schedule is not available and the repaymerﬁjﬂ’ receipts are regular.
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(iv)

(vi)

(vii) |

(viii)

(d) Since the company has not given any loans and advances therefore no reasonable
steps are required to be taken by the company.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has granted any loans or advances in the nature of advances repayable
on demand to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the aggregate amount and percentage thereof to the total loans granted is

mentioned: -

Particulars Outstanding Amount } Percentage
Advances to related 1,59,03,760 97 .49%
| parties

The company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

No deposits accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder have been
complied with.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b) The company has not applied for any term loans.

(c) The company has not raised any funds on short tqﬁ]"lfor'iong term purposes.



(x)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company; hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore this clause is not
applicable.

(b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

y (CIC) as defined in the regulations
\tlire to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.
L]

\ .
»

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Compa
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not i



(xvii)

(xwviil)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year,

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the
auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

The provisions of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable on the company.

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

\f “k kr W/
A

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270
Place: Kolkata
Date: The 24" Day of May 2024,
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBG3602



RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: US5209WB2022PTC252022

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

Chartered Accountants

W

Vineet Kheten

Proprietar

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700001.

Date: 24th May 2024

Udyn ! 2406021 0BDTBG 3602

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2024 (in hundreds)
Particulars Note 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment P} 139.06 224.79
(b) Intangible z 87.55 141.53
(c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 - -
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 100.00 100.00
Total Non - Current Assets 326.61 466.32
Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 1,270,688.58 102,695.68
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 - -
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 556.32 1,057.05
(i} Other financial assets 8 "
() Current Tax Assets 9 - -
(d) Other current assets 10 364,848.93 113,161.30
Total Current Assets 1,636,093.83 216,914.02
Total Assets 1,636,420.44 217,380.34
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 10,000.00 10,000.00
(b) Other Equity 12 (3,437.33) (468.95)
Total equity 6,562.67 9,531.05
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 -
(i) Other financial liabilities 14 -
Total non-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 1,614,721.81 197,260.95
(ii} Trade and other payables 16 - 7,610.00
(i) Other financial liabilities 17 = -
(b) Other current liabilities 18 15,135.96 2,978.34
(c) Provisions 19 - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,629,857.77 207,849.29
Total liabilities 1,629,857.77 207,849.29
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,636,420.44 217,380.34 |
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Board

For RDB Bhopal Hospitality Pvt Ltd

l“ ;
Pradeep Kumar Pugalia
Director
Din No.00501351

Anil Kuir Apat

Director
Din No.00047739




RDE Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US5209WB2022PTC252022

statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(In hundreds)

Particulars

Note

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax
Less: Income tax expenses
Current tax
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year
- Deferred Tax
Total tax expenses

Profit after tax
Other comprehensive income
{tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss

items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

20
21

22
23

24
25

1,167,992.91 102,695.68
(1,167,992.91) (102,695.68)
139.71 73.68

2,828.68 395.27

2,968.39 468.95

(2,968.39) (468.95)

(2,968.39) (468.95)

(2,968.39) (468.95)

(2,968.39) (468.95)

10,000.00 10,000.00
(0.30) (0.05)
{0.30) (0.05)

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

[

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700001.

Date: 24th May 2024

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For and behalf of the Board
For RDB Bhopal Hospitality Pvt Ltd

el

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia
Director
Din No.00501351

D 4. APk
Anil Kumar Apat

Director
Din No.Q0047739




RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (In hundreds)
Particulars 31st March,2024 31st March,2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (2,968.39) (468.95)
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation 139.71 73.68
Interest Paid 79,048.49 79,188.20 3,697.86 3,771.54
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 76,219.81 3,302.59
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (1,167,992.91) (102,695.68)
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Non Current Assets (100.00)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets (251,687.63) (113,161.30)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities -
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables {7.610.00} 7,610.00
Increase / (Decrease) of Other liabilities 12,157.62 -1415132.916 2,978.34 (205,368.64)
Cash generated from operations (1,338,913.10) (202,066.04)
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) -
Cash Flow before Exceptional ltems (1,338,913.10) (202,066.04)
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities (1,338,913.10 (202,066.08)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets (440.00)
Net cash from investing activities - (440.00)
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Share Capital raised 10,000.00
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 1417460.86 197,260.95
Interest Paid (79,048.49) 133841237 (3,697.86) 203,563.09
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities 1,338,412.37 203,563.09
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (500.73) 1,057.05
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 1,057.05 -
556.31 1,057.058
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 556.32 1,057.05
Cash on hand (As certified by the management)
556.32 ; 1,057.05

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

4

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Memhbership No.060270
Place: 38, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700 001.

DATE: 24th May 2024

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date,

For and behalf of the Board
For RDB Bhopal Hospitality Pvt Ltd

Ndsighpdty:

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia
Director
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RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US5209WB2022PTC252022

Note: 3 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

1 Company Overview

RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited ("the Company") is a subsidiary of a listed company incorporated in India on 3rd
March, 2022 having its registered office at Bikaner Building, 8/1 Lal Bazar Street, 3rd Floor, Room No. 10, Kolkata-700001.
The Company is principally engaged in the business of renovation and operation of Hotel at Bhopal "Sadar Manzil".

2 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

a) Statement of Compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act)) (to the
extent notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (“Z"), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

¢) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for the following
iterns:
(i) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value;
(ii) Employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation.
Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining fair value of an asset or a liability,
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

d) Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions -
(i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of
an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate.
In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged aver the remaining useful life of the assets.

(ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility.

(iii) Defined benefit plans:
Cost of defined benefit plan includes gratuity and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations using projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, 2
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.




(iv) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an cutflow of resources. Provision is towards
known contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and other levies, if
any, in respect of which management believes that there are present obligations and the settlement of such obligations
are expected to result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for.

e) Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities,
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

3 Significant accounting policies

a) Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents.

b) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

i. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assels are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recarded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade
receivables that do contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Regular way purchase
and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three cateqgories:
» Amartised cost
= Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
» Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assels are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Financial assets at FVTOCI:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Financial assets at FVTPL:
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Other equity investments
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in 'Other
Comprehensive Income’,

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair
value,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories.
= Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)
= Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities through FVTPL
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and any gain or loss on derecognition are recognised in profit or loss.
Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts

approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments,
Derecognition

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liahility) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




c) Property, Plant and Equipment

i. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of those qualifying property, plant and equipment, which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate components of property, plant and equipment.

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable
value and shown under 'Other current assets’

Property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is
expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended

use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work - in - Proaress.
ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

iii. Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Depreciation on property, plant & equipments are provided on straight line method over the usetful lives of assets, at
the rates and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule Il of the Act.
Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land (includes development cost) is amortised on a straight line basis over
the periad of respective lease, except land acquired on perpetual lease.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as
appropriate.

d) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Estimated useful life of the Computer Software is 5 years.

€) Inventories
Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost
of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads net
of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost of raw materials is
determined on FIFO basis.
Value of stores and spares, packing materials, trading and other products are determined on weighted average basis.

f) Employee Benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.
ii. Post employment benefits - Defined contribution plans
No post employment benefit are payable to any employee at present.
ili. Post employment benefits - Defined benefit plans
No post employment benefit are payable to any employee at present.



g) Impairment

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets,

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

h) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the eobligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

i) Revenue Recagnition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of
various discounts and schemes offered by the company as part of contract.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods have been delivered and title have been passed. No
revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods from date of initial application.

J) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is
established. Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

k) Income tax

i

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in
OcCl.
Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period.



I) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly

attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Where there is an unrealised exchange loss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there is a
realised or unrealised gain in respect of the settlement or translation of the same borrowing, the gain to the extent of the
loss previously recognised as an adjustment is recognised as an adjustment to interest.

m) Foreign currencies transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

n) Government Grant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

o) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

p) Recent Pronounceme
Standard notifed bul not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as follows:

a) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

b) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a
definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periads beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
standalone financial statements.

¢) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemptions so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.



RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548

(In Hundreds)
Notes to the financial statements 31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023
Note 3 Deferred tax assets [net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets
TOTAL -
Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits for Dematerialisation of shares 100.00 100.00
TOTAL 100.00 100.00
Note 5 Inventories
{At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in Progress 1,270,688.58 102,695.68
Total inventories 1,270,688.58 102,695.68
Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Outstanding for a period :
Less than six months
& months -1 year .
1-2 years =
2-3 years -
More than 3 years -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts -
Total -
Note 6(a) - Classification of Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables considered good — Secured; -
Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured; -
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk; -
Trade Receivables — credit impaired -
Note 6(a) - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other »
Debts due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other -
Debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any
director is a partner or a director or a member,
Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Balances with banks 556.32 1,057.05
Cash in hand =
Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 556.32 ] 1,057.05

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Other Advances z

TOTAL -

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities




RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

(in Hundreds)
Notes to the financial statements 31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023
Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax and TDS

TOTAL 3

Note 10 Other current assets

Advance to contractor for construction activities (Holding Company) 163,139.83 101,853.02
Balance with Revenue Autharities 201,709.10 11,308.28
TOTAL 364,848.93 | 113,161.30
Note 11 Equity Share Capital - (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each) Shares (Na's) Amount | Amaount

a) Authorised Share Capital 100,000.00 10,000.00 I 10,000.00
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital 100,000.00 10,000.00 | 10,000.00

c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding

As at the beginning of the year 100,000.00 -
Add: Shares issued during the year - 100,000.00
As at the end of the year 100,000.00 100,000.00

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right

Name of Equity Shareholders Share held (No's)  Shareholding (%')
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 57,000 57.00%
Ankit Jain 18,000 18.00%
Vinod Yaduvanshi 20,000 20.00%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution
of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

f) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders Share held (No's)  Shareholding (%')

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 57,000 57.00%

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares -

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from
shareholders within the period of 5 years - Nil
Note: Company was incorporated in the current year and 5 years havejhot gldpsed since its formation.

i) Details of Promoter shareholding as at the end of year Shares (No's) Shareholding (%')
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 57,000 -13.00%




RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548

{In Hundreds)
Notes to the financial statements 31st March, 2024  31st March, 2023
Ankit Jain 18,000 18.00%
Kuldeep Mathur 5,000 5.00%
Vinod Yaduvanshi 20,000 -10.00%
Note: Changes in promoter shareholding have been calculated from the shareholding of incorporation.
Note 12 Other equity
Reserve & lus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year (468.95)
Add: Profit for the year (2,968.39) (468.95)
Add: Ind AS Adjustments - -
As at the end of the year (2,437.33) {468.95)
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income i -
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total (3,437.33) (468.95)

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)

Secured - at amortised cost
Loan from Bank = -
Loan from NBFC ) )
Loan from holding company = 2

Total non-current borrowings - =

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits - -

Total - -

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties
From other than body corporate 1,501,642.14 21,094.80
From other than Related Parties

From Non Banking Finance Companies - 64,882.59
From other than body corporate 113,079.67 111,283.56
Total 1,614,721.81 197,260.95

Note:
a) There have been no default in the payment of Interest or principle amount whenever called.
b) The borrowing was availed for the purpose of general business purpose without any written agreement, and the funds have been used

for business activities,

¢) The funds borrowed are not secured, hence filing of quarterly retur statements of current assets by the Company with banks or
financial institutions does not arise,

d) No lean have been guaranteed by directors or other.




RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata -
CIN: U51109WB2005PTC104548

Notes to the financial statements

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises
Other than above

Total

Trade payables outstanding for a period :
Less than six months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Other payable

Total

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Advances from Customer and Others
Other payable

Statutory Liabilities

Total

Note 19 Provisions
Provision for Income Tax
Total

700001

31st March, 2024

(In Hundreds)
31st March, 2023

7,610.00

7,610.00

7,610.00

7,610.00

1,792.10
13,343.86

1,758.39
1,219.95

15,135.96

2,978.34




RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

CIN: US1109WB2005PTC104548
Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Sales of construction activites
Sales of services

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income

Interest Income
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Interest Paid in accordance with IND AS-23
Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Note 24 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund
Other Borrowing Cost

31st March, 2024

{In Hundreds)
31st March, 2023

1,088,944.42 98,997.82
/9,048.49 3,697.86
1,167,992.91 102,695.68
102,695.68 -
1,270,688.58 102,695.68

(1,167,992.91)|

(102,695.68)

Total =
Note 25 Others Expenses

Filing Fees 151.00 227.51
Finance Charges 21.14 21.06
Donation 2,500.00 -
Professional Charges -
Miscellaneous Expenses 106.54 96.69
Auditor's Remuneration - Audit Fees 50.00 50.00
Total 2,828.68 | 395.27




RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
15t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U55209WB2022PTC252022

Notes to the financial statements (In Hundreds)

31st March, 31st March,
2024, 2023,

26

27

28

31

32

This is the first financial statement after incorporation of the company, hence previous year figures are not available for reporting and
comparision.

Income taxes

Amount recognised in profit or loss

Current tax

Current period

Changes in respect of current income tax of previous year

ﬁ - 4
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax (2,968.39) (468.95)
Tax rate 26% 26%

Tax using the Indian tax rate =
Tax effects of amounts which are not taxable in calculating taxable income

[tems of adjustment under IND-AS, but not taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961 - -
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income

items of adjustment under IND-AS, but not allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961

Others adjustments

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

Company has neither advanced or nor loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or

on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or

on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The provisions of CSR u/s 135 are not applicable to the company
Foreign Currency Transactions - Nil (P. Y. Nil)
Contingent Liabilities - Nil (P. Y. Nil)

Segment information

The business of the company falls under a single operating segment,Hperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-ma



RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited
15t Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: US5209WB2022PTC252022

Notes to the financial statements

33

a5

37

39

(in Hundreds)
Related Party Disclosure
elated Part lationshi
Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited — Holding Company
Enterprises with Common KMP - YMS Finance Private Limited
Transactions & Balances : 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Name of Party and Nature of Tra ions Transaction Balances Transaction Balances
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Unsecured short term loan taken 17,11,355.63 15,01,642.14 38,332.96 _
Unsecured short term |oan repald 2,09,713.49 38,332.96
Interest on Loan provided 67,205.41 743.74
Interest on Loan paid 67,295.41 743.74
Advance ta contractor for construction activities 13,10,298.63 1,59,037.60 1,04,500.00 1,01,863.02
Bills adjusted for construction activities 11,51.261.03 2,646.08
Vinod Yaduvanshi - -
Opening Balance 20,000.00
Unsecured short term loan taken - - 20,000.00 20,00000
Unsecured shorl term loan repaid 20,000.00 -
Interest on Loan provided 1,860.52 579.67 1,216,44 1,094.80
Interest on Loan paid 1,280.85 121.64

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of business. The provision for
all known liabilities is adequate and not In excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent liability except stated and informed by the
Management

No praceeding has been Initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

The company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any lender from whom funds have been borrowed.

The company does not any knowledge of any transactions or balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956, hence no disclosure have been made.

Company does not have any subsidiary as defined ufs 2(87) and hence guestion of violation of number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 does not arise.

Financial and Related Discl
Particulars at at 31st March, 2024 Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
Mon Curremt
Other financial assets 100.00 .
Current
Trade recelvables - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 556.32 - -
Other Financlal Assets - 5
Total Financial Assets 656.32 - -
Finandal Liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings -
Other financial liabilities - -
Current
Borrowings 3,64 84893
Trade and other payables 16,36,093.83
Other financial liabilities 16,36,420.44 = =
Total Financial Liabilities 36,37,363.20 - -
Particulars at at 31st March, 2023 Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
Non Current
Other financial assets 100.00 .
Current :
Trade receivables g =
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,057.05 - -

Other Financial Assets
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Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings

Other financial liabilities

Current
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities

A.  Capital Requirements

(In Hundreds)

1,157.05

1,97,260.95
7,610.00

2,04,870.95

For the purpase of the Company's capital management, capital includes Issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest

bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Borro ﬂngs {long-term and. short-term, Including  curremt 16,14,721.81 1,07,260.95
maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payables 7,610.00
Less: Cash and cash equivalents " 3
Net debt 16,14,721.81 2,04 870.95
Equity share capital 10,000.00 10,000.00
Other equity {3;3?.3‘3)1 (468.95
Total Capital 6,562.67 9,531.05
Gearing ratio 0.00] 0.05

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s eapital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the finandial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance
and support Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets indude trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans and
advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its cperations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit nsk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's
senior management sees that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are Identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises
two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real estate risk. The Company has not entered into any foreign
exchange or commaodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure to the market risk other than interest risk.

(i] Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest
rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by accepting loans and borrowings of of fived rate. Most of the borrewings of the Company are unsecured
and at fixed rates. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

(ii) Price risk

//.
¥

The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluggs ha en deployed in bank deposits as explained above.
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial mstrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including refundable joint development depaosits,
security deposits, loans to employees and other finandial instruments,

Trade receivables

Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer of ownership, therefore,
substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect,

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures
and cantrol relating to customer credit risk management, Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed
for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does
not hold collateral as security. The Company’s credit period generally ranges fram 30-60 days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows: (Refer Note 4 to Financial Statements)

Deposits with ban financial instituti

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Companyin accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds
are made only with approved counterparties and within credit fimits assigned to each counterparty,

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of
the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potentlal failure to make
payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position at 315t March, 2024 is the carrying
amounts.

Liquidi isk

The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return. The Company manages its
liguidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. In case of short term requirements, it obtains short-term loans
from its Bankers,
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41 Financial Ratios:
31st March 31st March,
2023 2022

Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.00 1.04 NA

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.

Nature of Ratio Numerator ‘Denominator % Change

Total borrowings

Debt-Equity Ratio
RUEYRRE and lease liabilities

Total equity 246.05 20.70 NA

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.

Average

Return on Equity Ratio (in % Profit f
etur quity Ratio (in %) Wforthe year Shareholder’s Equity

NA NA NA
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.

Gross Revenue from
Inventory turnover Ratio (in time: sale of products and  Average Inventories NA NA NA
services

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.

Gross Revenue from

. Average Trade
Trade Receivables turnover ratio sale of products and 8

s NA NA NA
receivables

services

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: Since the company was formed during the year, previous figures are not

Average Trade
payables
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: Since the company was formed during the year, previous figures are not

Trade Payables turnaver ratio (in Total Purchase NA NA NA

Gross Revenue from Working Capital
Net Capital turnover ratio (in tim¢ sale of products and (Current assels- 0.00 0.00 NA
services Current liabilities)

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.

Gross Revenue from
Net Profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year  sale of products and NA NA NA
services

Reason for Deviation of mare than 25%: The company does not have any revenue from operations
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Profit before interest

Return on Capital employed (in %
P played { y and taxes

Capital employed 0.00 0.00 NA

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average.

, , Income from Time weighted
Return on investment (in %) s o 0.00 0.00 NA

Investments average Investments

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are
not available for average,

Note : The company does not any fixed installments repayment loan outstanding, hence Debt Service Coverage Ratio in
not reported.

The figures of reported have been rounded off in hundreds in accordance with the amended mandatory requirements of
Division Il of Schedule Il except Number of Shares, Number of units, Earnings per share and Ratios

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants For RDB Bhopal Hospitality Pvt Ltd

4 s

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia

Vineet Kheten el Director
Proprietor 1 Din No.00501351
Membership No.060270

Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street ' ﬁ A (e
Kolkata - 700001. Anil Kumar Apat
Date: Director

Din No.00047739
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of

RDB BHOPAL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of IND AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of RDB Bhopal
Infrastructure Private Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (“SA’s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

We are aware that Standard on Auditing (SA) 701, “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the
Independent Auditor's Report” applies to audit of all listed entities for the accounting year
commencing on or after April 1, 2019. KAMs are those matters that, in the auditor's
professional judgment, were of most significance in thé audit of the financial results of the
current year. We understand that in determining Ahe KAMs in your audit report on the



consolidated financial results of the Company in terms of SA 701, you would be considering
the KAMs identified by us. Accordingly, we hereby confirm that we will include a section on
KAMSs in our Audit report on the Component. In the event, there are no key audit matters to
be communicated in respect of the component, we will state as under:

“We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for
RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited for the quarter and year ended March 31,
2024”7

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and far view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstat;,ment of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, designnan perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis



for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3

and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examinatien of those books.

' \i
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50
Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is
less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect
to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017: and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise:

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividénd during the year in contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies




vi. Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance
on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules,2014 (Revised 2024 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
which included test checks, we report that the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements
carried out in accordance with the Standard of Auditing and only to the extent required by
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014. We have not carried out any
audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule
11(g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us: the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

\ \ . |

N

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 24™ Day of May 2024.
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBF 1636




(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(wvil)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RDB BHOPAL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE
LIMITED of even date)

(a) (A) The company does not have Property, Plant and Equipment, so this clause is not
applicable.
(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(b) Since there is no Property, Plant & Equipment, so the point of verification does not arise.
(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, hence revaluation is not required as this
clause is not applicable.

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b) The company during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; therefore, this clause is not applicable.

As the company has not made any investments and not provided any guarantee or
security or has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties,
therefore this clause is not applicable.

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

No deposits were accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to be deposits,
as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
are not applicable to the company.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of/more than six months from the date
they became payable.



(viii)

(i)

()

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(a) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b) The company has not applied for any term loans.

(c) The company has not raised any funds on short term or long term purposes.

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(e) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) No moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year, so the question of application does not arise.

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government;

(c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company.
The company is not a Nidhi Company; hence the compliance of this clause is not required.

There were no transactions with related party, therefore this clause is not applicable.
(a) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore this clause is not
applicable.

(b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required.




(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xX)

(xxi)

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, the

auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

The provisions of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable on the company.

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

i\

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)

Membership No. 060270

Place: Kolkata

Date: The 24" Day of May 2024.
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBF1636



RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U45400WB2022PTC253500

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2024

(In hundreds)
Particulars Note 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 > =
(b) Intangible 2 -
{c) Deferred Tax Assets 3 -
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 4 860,000.00 860,000.00
Total Non - Current Assets 860,000.00 860,000.00
Current assets
(&) Inventories 5 710,435.17 103,350.12
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 - -
(if) Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,275.85 1,632.66
(iii) Other financial assets 8 - -
(c) Current Tax Assets 9 - -
(d) Other current assets 10 38,249.25 39,585.83
Total Current Assets 749,960.28 144,568.61
Total Assets 1,609,960.28 1,004,568.61
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 10,000.00 10,000.00
(b) Other Equity 12 (884.73) (506.06)
Total equity 9,115.27 9,493.94
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 = =
(i) Other financial liabilities 14 - .
Total non-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 1,574,590.40 979,984.29
(i) Trade and other payables 16 14,536.56 8,280.00
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 - -
(b) Other current liabilities 18 11,718.04 6,810.38
(c) Provisions 19 - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,600,845.00 995,074.67
Total liabilities 1,600,845.00 995,074.67
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,609,960.27 1,004,568.61
(0.00) (0.00)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270

Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700001.

Date: 2y .05 -202Y

Udiwy | 2H0602F0BkDTBF L63 ¢

For and behalf of the Board
For RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

Ay

1

Pradeep Kumat Pugalia

Director

Din No.00501351

Akshat Jain
Director

pil Din N0.0792938




RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited

CIN: U45400WB2022PTC253500

1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{In hundreds)

Particulars

Note

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Revenue

Expenses
Construction Activity Expenses
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Less: Income tax expenses
- Current tax
- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year
- Deferred Tax

Total tax expenses

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Profit available for Equity Shareholders

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding

20
21

22
23

24
25

607,085.05
(607,085.05)

378.67

103,350.12
(103,350.12)

506.06

378.67

506.06

(378.67)

(506.06)

(378.67)

(378.67)

(506.06)

(378.67)
10,000.00
(0.04)
(0.04)

(506.06)
10,000,00
(0.05)
(0.05)

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

o

Vineet Kheten

Proprietor

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street
Kolkata - 700001.

Date:

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For and behalf of the Board
For RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia
Director
Din No.00501351

Akshat Jain
Director
Din N0.0792938




RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U45400WB2022PTC253500

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(In hundreds)

Particulars

31st March,2024 31st March,2023

A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Adjustments for
Depreciation & Amortisation
Interest Paid
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Non Current Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease of Other Current Assets
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase / (Decrease) of Other liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net)
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Net cash from investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Share Capital raised
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings
Interest Paid
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance

Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance

(378.67) {506.06)

128,566.42 128,566.42 55,791.32 55,791.32

128,187.75 55,285.26
(607,085.05) (103,350.12)
(860,000.00)
D "
1,336.58 (39,585.83)
]
6,256.56 8,280.00
4,907.66 (594,584.25) 6,810.38 (987,845.57)

(466,396.50) (932,560.31)

(466,396.50) (932,560.31)
(466,396.50) (932,560.31)

10,000.00
466,039.69 924,192.97
466039.69 . 934,192.97
466039.69 934,192.97

(356.81) 1,632.66
1,632.66
1,275.85 1,632.66

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks
Cash on hand (As certified by the management)

1,275.85 1,632.66

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

g
Vineet Kheten
Proprietor
Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street

Kolkata - 700 001.
DATE:

For and behalf of the Board
For RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Put Ltd

a Wan N %

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia
Director
Din No.00501351

Akshat Jain
Director
Din No.0792938




|RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U45400WB2022PTC253500

1

Note: 3 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (SAP)

1 Company Overview

RDB Bhopal Hospitality Private Limited (“the Company") is a subsidiary of a listed company incorporated in India on 3rd
March, 2022 having its registered office at Bikaner Building, 8/1 Lal Bazar Street, 3rd Floor, Room No. 10, Kolkata-700001.
The Company is principally engaged in the business of renovation and operation of Hotel at Bhopal "Sadar Manzil".

2 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) (to the
extent notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

b) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (“2"), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.

c) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for the following
items:
(i} Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value;
(i) Employee's defined benefit plan as per actuarial valuation,
Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price
is directly abservable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining fair value of an asset or a liability,
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

d) Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions -
(i) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of
an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate.
In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

(ii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility.

(i) Defined benefit plans:
Cost of defined benefit plan includes gratuity and the presentvalue of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations using projected unit credit method. Ah actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in thg futuré. These include the determination of the discount rate, future




salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

(iv) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:
The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards
known contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and other levies, if
any, in respect of which management believes that there are present obligations and the settlement of such obligations
are expected to result in outflow of resources, to the extent provided for.

e) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

The management reqularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments,
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows,

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

3 Significant accounting policies
a) Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule 1ll to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents,

b) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, However, trade
receivables that do contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Regular way purchase
and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categaries:
= Amortised cost
» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
= Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets,

Financial assets at amortised cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and, interest on the principal amount outstanding,



Financial FVTOC!:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Financial assets at FVTPL:
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL
Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Other equity investments
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss,
except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other
Comprehensive Income’.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair
value.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
= Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FVTPL)
+ Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities through FVTPL
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and any gain or loss on derecognition are recognised in profit or loss.
Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the FIR amortisation
process. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right ta set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




c) Property, Plant and Equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended
use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of those qualifying property, plant and equipment, which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

If significant parts of an item of praperty, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate components of property, plant and equipment.

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable
value and shown under ‘Other current assets’.

Property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is
expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended
use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work - in - Progress.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

iii. Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Depreciation on property, plant & equipments are provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets, at
the rates and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule Il of the Act.
Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land (includes development cost) is amortised on a straight line basis over
the period of respective lease, except land acquired on perpetual lease.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as
appropriate.

d) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Estimated useful life of the Computer Software is 5 years.

e) Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost
of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads net
of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost of raw materials is
determined on FIFO basis.

Value of stores and spares, packing materials, trading and other products are determined on weighted average basis.

f) Employee Benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered
by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

Post employment benefits - Defined contribution plans
No post employment benefit are payable to any employee at present.
Post employment benefits - Defined benefit plans

No post employment benefit are payable to any employee at fasent



g) Impairment
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of

impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

h) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it

is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

i) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue

can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of
various discounts and schemes offered by the company as part of contract.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods have been delivered and title have been passed. No
revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods from date of initial application.

i) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is
established. Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

k) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in
ocCl.
i. Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

ii. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period. The car
the end of each reporting period. "

ing amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at



1) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly

attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Where there is an unrealised exchange loss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there is a
realised or unrealised gain in respect of the settlement or translation of the same barrowing, the gain to the extent of the
loss previously recognised as an adjustment is recognised as an adjustment to interest.

m) Foreign currencies transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the Fxchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

n) Government Grant
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

o) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

p) Recent Pronounceme
Standard notifed but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as follows:

a) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements,

b) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a
definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
standalone financial statements.

¢} Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemptions so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

-




RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U45400WB2022PTC253500

Notes to the financial statements

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Fixed Assets
TOTAL

Note 4 Financial Assets (Other Financial Assets)
Unsecured, Considered Good

Security Deposit against Tender for development
TOTAL

Note 5 Inventories

(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in Progress

Total Inventories

Note 6 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Outstanding for a period :
Less than six months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total

Note b(a) - Classification of Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables considered good — Secured;
Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured;
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk;
Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Note 6{a) - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other
Debts due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other
Debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any
director is a partner or a director or a member.

Note 7 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Balances with banks

Cash in hand

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Note 8 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)

Other Advances to halding company
TOTAL

Note 9 Current tax assets and liabilities

(In Hundreds) {In Hundreds)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

860,000.00 860,000.00
860,000.00 860,000.00
710,435.17 103,350.12
710,435.17 103,350.12

1,275.85 1,632.66

1,275.85 1,632.66




RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Private Limited
1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700001
CIN: U45400WB2022PTC253500

{in Hundreds) (in Hundreds)
Notes to the financial statements 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax and TDS s
TOTAL - -
Note 10 Other current assets
Advances for expenses for project (Holding company) - 22,003.23
Advances for expenses for project 10,199.00
Balance with Revenue Authorities 38,249.25 7,383.60
TOTAL 38,249.25 | 39,585.83
Note 11 Equity Share Capital - (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each) Shares (No's) Amount es (! Amount
a) Authorised Shar ital 100,000.00 10,000.00 | 44 10,000.00
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid Share Capital 100,000.00 10,000.00 | ## 10,000.00
c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares issued during the year 100,000.00 100,000.00
As at the end of the year 100,000.00 100,000.00
d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders Shares (No's) Shares (%) es (I Shares (%)
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 85,000 85.00%| ## 85.00%
Vaa Infrastructure LLP 15,000 15.00%| ## 15.00%
) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding
Name of Equity Shareholders Shares (No's) Shares (%) es (I Shares (%)
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 85,000 85.00%| ## 85.00%

fl The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution
of dividend and repayment of capital

The Company has anly one class of equily shares having par value value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts,

Number of Shares ¥

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus to shareholders or bought back from

shareholders within the period of 5 years - Nil
Note: Company was incorporated in the current year and 5 years have not elapsed since its formation.

i) Details of Promoter shareholding as at the end\af'vear Shares (No's) Shares (No's) |es(!  Shares (No's)
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd 85,000 85.00%| ## 85.00%
Vaa Infrastructure LLP 15,000 15.00%| ## 15.00%
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Notes to the financial statements

Note: Promoter shareholding have not changed from the date of issue of shares.

Note 12 Other equity

Reserve & Surplus

Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments

(In Hundreds)
31st March, 2024

(506.06)
(378.67)

{In Hundreds)
31st March, 2023

(506.06)

As at the end of the year

(884.73)

(506.06)

Other Comprehensive Income

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income

Other items of Other Comprehensive Income

Total

(884.73)

(506.06)

Note 13 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured - at amortised cost

Loan from Bank

Loan from NBFC

Loan from holding company

Total non-current borrowings

Note 14 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
Security Deposits

Total

Note 15 financial liabilities - Borrowings
(Unsecured, repayable on Demand, including interest accrued)
From Related Parties
From holding company
From other than Related Parties
From Non Banking Finance Companies
From other than body corporate
From other than body corporate (LLP's)

914,727.70

106,473.25
553,389.45

36,000.00

390,325.27

553,659.02

Total

1,574,590.40

979,984.29

Note:
a) There have been no default in the payment of Interest or principle amount whenever called.

b) The borrowing was availed for the purpose of general busi
business activities,

ess purpose without any written agreement, and the funds have been used for

c) The funds borrowed are not secured, hence filing pfquarterly returns or statements of current assets by the Company with banks or financial

institutions does not arise.
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Notes to the financial statements

d) No loan have been guaranteed by directors or other.

Note 16 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding dues of micro & small entreprises

Other than above

Total

Trade payables outstanding for a period :
Less than six months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

Note 17 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Other payable

Total

Note 18 Other Current Liabilities
Other payable

Statutory Liabilities

Total

Note 19 Provisions
Provision far Income Tax
Total

(In Hundreds)
31st March, 2024

(In Hundreds)
31st March, 2023

14,536.56 8,280.00
14,536.56 8,280.00
14,536.56 8,280.00
14,536.56 8,280.00

50.00 50.00
11,668.04 6,760.38
11,718.04 6,810.38
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 20 Revenue from Operations
Sales of construction activites
Sales of services

TOTAL

Note 21 Other Income

Interest Income
Total

Note 22 Construction Activity Expenses

Other Construction Expenses

Stamp Duty Fee

Interest Paid in accordance with IND AS-23

Other Borrowing Cost in accordance with IND AS-23
Consumption

Note 23 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Note 24 Finance Cost
Interest on Borrowed fund
Other Borrowing Cost
Total

Note 25 Others Expenses

Filing Fees

Rates & Taxes

Travelling 8 Conveyance

Bank Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration - Statutory Audit Fees
Total

(In Hundreds) {In Hundreds)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

174,527.36 41,884.15
303,991.27
128,566.42 55,791.32
- 5,674.65
607,085.05 | 103,350.12
103,350.12 -
710,435.17 103,350.12
(607,085.05)| (103,350.12)
151.00 23259
71.50
170.10
21.15 19.06
85.01 3431
50.00 50.00

378.67 | 506.06
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Notes to the financial statements (In Hundreds)

26

27

29

31

This is the first financial statement after incorporation of the company, hence previous year figures are not available for reporting and
comparision.

Income taxes

Amount recognised in profit or loss

Current tax

Current period

Changes in respect of current income tax of previous year -

A P -
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax (378.67) (506.086)
Tax rate 26% 26%

Tax using the Indian tax rate - =
Tax effects of amounts which are not taxable in calculating taxable income
Items of adjustment under IND-AS, but not taxable under Income Tax Act, 1961
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income
Items of adjustment under IND-AS, but not allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961 & =
Others adjustments

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

Company has neither advanced or nor loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) to any other persan(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The company has not received any fund fram any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The provisions of CSR u/s 135 are not applicable to the company
Foreign Currency Transactions - Nil {P. Y. Nil)

Contingent Liabilities - Nil {P. Y. Nil)

Segment information

The business of the company falls under a single operating segment.
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker

Serating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
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33

35

36

37

39

Dalat i Pa"v n:ul
Related Party Relationship

Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited — Holding Company
Enterprises with Common KMP - YMS Finance Private Limited

Transactions & Balances :

Name of P nd Nature of Transactions

RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Unsecured short term loan taken
Unsecured short term loan repaid
Interest on Loan provided
Interest on Loan paid

Advance to contractor for construction activities

Bills adjusted for construction activities

31st March, 2024

e 2 18 LR L

Transaction

12,07,846.47
2,93,118.77
28,799.98
28,799.98
91,19,964.00
1,05,41,787.00

Balances

5,14,727.70

(14,21,823.00)

31st Mar

Transaction

4,08,177.60
3,72,177.60
4,739.61
4,739.61
22,003.23

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary cour:
provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent liabill

and informed by the Management

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactio

Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

The company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any lender from whom funds have been borrowed.

The company does not any knowledge of any transactions or balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Comp:
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, hence no disclosure have been made.

Company does not have any subsidiary as defined u/s 2{87) and hence question of violation of number of layers prescribed unde
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 does not arise.

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
Particulars at at 31st March, 2024
Non Current
Other financial assets
Current
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Current
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
Particulars at at 31st March, 2023
Nan Current
Other financial assets
Current

Carrying Value

8,60,000.00

1,275.85

Amortised Cost

8,61,275.85

15,74,500.40
14,536.56

15,89,126.96

Carrying Value

8,60,000.00

Amortised Cost
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Trade receivables -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,632.66

Other Financial Assets = - =
Total Financial Assets 8,61,632.66

Financial Liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings -
Other financial liabilities - - -
Current
Borrowings 9,79,984.29 -
Trade and other payables 8,280.00 - -
Other financial liabilities - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 9,88,264.29

A, Capital Requirements

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable ta the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Borrowings  (long-term and short-term, including current] 15,74,590.40 9,79,984.29
maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payables 14,536.56 8,280.00
Less: Cash and cash equivalents - =
Net debt 15,89,126.96 9,88,264.29
Equity share capital 10,000.00 10,000.00
Other equity (884.73) {506.06)
Total Capital 9,115.27 9,493.94
Gearing ratio 0.01 0.01

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

40  Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and ather receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks,
The Company's senior management sees that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’ s policies and risk objectives, The Board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised balow:

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finangfal jAstrument will fluctuatebecause of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate riskand other price riskAuch ¥s equity price risk and commodity/ real estate risk. The Company has
not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure to the market risk other
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than interest risk.

{i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates,

The Company manages its interest rate risk by accepting loans and barrowings of of fixed rate. Most of the borrowings of the Company are
unsecured and at fixed rates. The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

{ii) Price risk

The Company has not made any investments for trading purposes. The surpluses have been deployed in bank depasits as explained above.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including
refundable joint development deposits, security deposits, loans to employees and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Receivables resulting from sale of properties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer of
ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

Receivables resulting from other than sale of properties: Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, Cutstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped
into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets, The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company's credit period generally ranges from 30-60
days.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows: (Refer Note 4 to Financial Statements)

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Companyin accordance with the Company's pelicy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject
to approval of the Board. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a counterparty's
potential failure to make payments. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial pasition at
31st March, 2024 is the carrying amounts.

Liquidity Risk
The Company’s investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus liquidity are guided by the tenets of safety, liquidity and return. The
Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity ta meet its liabilities when due. In case of short term
reguirements, it obtains short-term loans from its Bankers.
e
//
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41 Financial Ratios:

31st 31st

Nature of Ratio Numerator ‘Denominator March March, % Change
2024 2023

Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.47 0.15 NA

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not
available for average.

Total borrowings and
lease liabilities
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not

available for average.

Debt-Equity Ratio Total equity 172.74 103.22 NA

Average
Return on Equity Ratio (in %) Profit for the year Sharehalder’s NA NA NA
Equity
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not
available for average.

aross Kevenue mom
Average

Inventory turnover Ratio {in times) sale of products and _ NA NA -
AR Inventories

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incarporation, previous figures are not
available for average.

Gross Revenue from
Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times) sale of products and
services

Average Trade

£ NA NA NA
receivables

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: Since the company was formed during the year, previous figures are not available for
average.

Average Trade
payables
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: Since the company was formed during the year, previous figures are not available for

average.

Trade Payables turnover ratio (in times) Total Purchase NA NA NA

Gross Revenue from Working Capital
Net Capital turnover ratio (in times) sale of products and (Current assets- 0.00 0.00 NA
services Current liabilities)

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not
available for average.

Gross Revenue
fr le of
Net Profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year : i NA NA NA
~products and

services

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: The company does nofhave any revenue from operations
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Profit before intere:
Return on Capital employed (in %) and taxe"s £ Capital employed 0.00 0.00 NA

Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not
available for average.

Time weighted
average 0.00 0.00 NA
Investments
Reason for Deviation of more than 25%: This is the first financial statement after incorporation, previous figures are not
available for average.

Income from

Return on investment (in %) ———

Note : The company does not any fixed installments repayment loan outstanding, hence Debt Service Coverage Ratio in not
reported.

The figures of reported have been rounded off in hundreds in accordance with the amended mandatory requirements of Division

Il of Schedule 11l except Number of Shares, Number of units, Earnings per share and Ratios

For VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES For and behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants For RDB Bhopal Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

Pradeep Kumar Pugalia

Vineet Kheten Director
Proprietor Din No.00501351

Membership No.060270
Place: 3B, Lal Bazar Street

{

Kolkata - 700001. ‘ Akshat Jain

Date:

Director
Din No.0792938



VINEET KHETAN & ASSOCIATES

_ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
5th Floor, Suite No. : 7, 3B, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata - 700 001

Mob. : 9331040655, Ph. : (033) 4066 1047, E-mail : vka@khetans.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of RDB Jaipur
Infrastructure Private Limited (the "Company”). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Fiows ended on that date,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements’). In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing ("SA’'s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinicn
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

We are aware that Standard on Auditing (SA) 701, “Communicating Key Audit Matters in the
Independent Auditor's Report” applies to audit of all listed entities for the accounting year
commencing on or after April 1, 2019. KAMs are those matters that, in the auditor's
professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial results of the
current year We understand that in determining the KAMs in your audit report on the
consolidated financial results of the Comyganydin t8rms of SA 701 you would be considering
the KAMs identified by us Accordingl _ senfirm that we will include a section on
KAMs in our Audit report on the Compd Iithe event, there are no key audit matters to
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the KAMs identified by us. Accordingly, we hereby confirm that we will include a section on
KAMs in our Audit report on the Component. In the event, there are no key audit matters to
be communicated in respect of the component, we will state as under:

“We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for
RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited for the quarter and year ended March 31
2024

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence thafabffciént and appropriate to provide a basis

we o A L
for our opinion. The risk of not detectrhg‘“éf efidY, misstatement resulting from fraud is
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2022 (‘the Order"). issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

s including Other Comprehensive
ent of Cash Flows dealt with by this
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act

f) Since the Company's turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50
Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is
less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect
to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017 and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

il The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence.
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise:

il There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's kncwledge and belief. other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance
on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (Revised 2024 Edition) issued 1@ Institute’of Chartered Accountants of India,
which included test checks, we report thapth ¢ gy \has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has ; f ecording audit trail (edit log) facility
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and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements
carried out in accordance with the Standard of Auditing and only to the extent required by
Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014. We have not carried out any
audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule
11(g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us; the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 324428E)

W

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor) -
Membership No. 060270 |\ )
Place: Kolkata \\\_/’
Date: The 24" Day of May 2024”""
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBP4912
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(11)

(1)

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report*

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our report to the members of RDB JAIPUR INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE
LIMITED of even date)

(a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment:
(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible

assets:

(b) These Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property so this clause is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. '

(e) None of the proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) Physical verification of iInventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed.

(b) The company during any point of time of the year. has not been sanctioned working
capital limits of any amount. in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets: therefore, this clause is not applicable.

The company has granted unsecured advances to other parties,
(a) The company has provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee. or
provided security to other parties and entity.

(A) As the company has not provided any loans and advances to subsidiaries joint
ventures and associates so this clause is not applicable,

(B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to advances to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates is mentioned:
‘_Pé_rticuiars ' Opening ' Receipt Payment | Closing
Balance | Balance

gyl A R _ |
7,02,47.333 3,500 | 4,31,00,000 | 11,33,43.833
|

. E—

Advances to parties

.\
‘\."\

N
v )

1ehts

(c) In respect of loans and advances in he nature of loans, the repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated to be on demand so repayment
schedule is not available and the repayments or receipts are regular
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(Iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(1)

(d) Since the company has not given any loans and advances therefore no reasonable
steps are required to be taken by the company. '

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or no fresh loans has been granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on
demand, to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

In respect of deposits which are accepted by the company or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits, as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, are complied.

Maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and is not applicable to the company.

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities and does not have arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings, so this clause
is not applicable.

(b) The company has not applied for any term loans.
(€) The company has not raised any funds on short term or long term purposes.

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(8) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
Its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) No moneys have been raised by wa)/ﬁf;h i3
debt instruments) during the year, so ffie qué

ic offer or further public offer (including
application does not arise.
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(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviil)

(xix)

(b) The company has made no preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, therefore this
clause is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No fraud has been discovered, therefore there is no need of reporting in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

(¢) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the company
The company is not a Nidhi Company; hence the compliance of this clause is not required

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(@) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore this clause is not
applicable.

(b) The company does not have an internal audit system, therefore the reports of the Internal
Auditors for the period under audit were not required.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, so compliance of the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not
required

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or ‘Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934:

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, so it does not require to fulfil the criteria of a CIC.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

ected dates of realisation of financial
formation accompanying the financial
Directors and management plans, the

On the basis of the financial ratios.
assets and payment of financial lia
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(xx)

(xx1)

that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

The provisions of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable on the company.

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No 324428E)

CA. VINEET KHETAN
(Proprietor)
Membership No. 060270 N7,
Place: Kolkata ’

Date: The 24" Day of May 2024.
UDIN: 24060270BKDTBP4912
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Balance Sheet as on 31st Dec, 2024
Particulars

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Financial Assets

Other financial assets

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Total Non Current Assets

Current assets

Inventories

Financial Assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash eguivalents
Other financial assets (Advance)
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share capital
Other Equity

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (MSME)
dues of ather than MSME

Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provision

Total Current Liabilities

Total liabilities
Total Equity & Liabilities

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

(Rupee In 00)

Note 31st Mar, 2024 31st March, 2023
1 98.94 103.25
2 450.00 450.00
3 509.94 552.70
1,058.88 1,105.95

4 11,431,862.75 12,651,396.92
5 37,292.14 37,292.14
b 99,474.08 2,626.24
7 663,000.00 453,000.00
8 470,438.33 249,473.33
12,702,067.30 13,393,788.62
12,703,126.18 13,394,894.57

9 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
10 (16,114.57) (126,344.15)
983,885.43 873,655.85

11 900,000.00 900,000.00
900,000.00 900,000.00

12 421,600.00 534,466.91

13 - -
13 494,400.00 494,400.00
14 9,884,713.89 10,589,316.35
15 4,226.85 3,055.46
16 14,300.00 -

10,819,240.74 11,621,238.72
11,719,240.74 12,521,238.72
12,703,126.17 13,394,894.57

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountant

A
Vineet Khetan & Associates
Membership No. 060270
Kolkata

uoIN: 2400230 BLD TBP Y G2
Date: Qu:,05 20 2 4

For and on behalf of the Board
For ROB Jaipur Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

Director
Shyam Sunder Mohta
DIN: 00570526

(‘WV Mt=" Boded higewd

Director
Pradeep Hirawat
DIN: 00047872



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
* CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st Dec, 2024 (Rupee In 00)
Particulars Note 31st Mar, 2024 31st March, 2023
Income

Revenue from operations 16 1,387,782.87 778,198.47
Other income 17 5 )
Total Income 1,387,782.87 778,198.47
Expenses

Construction Activity Expenses 18 29,218.52 34,440.55
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 19 1,219,534.17 681,502.04
Employee benefit expense 20 11,371.07 7.678.60
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 4.31 18.00
Finance costs 21 = .
Other expenses 22 3,082.46 6,101.65
Total expenses 1,263,210.53 729,740.84
Profit before tax 124,572.34 48,457.63
Less: Income tax expenses

- Current tax 14,300.00 -

- Tax Adjustment For Earlier Year =

- Deferred Tax 42.76 42.15
Total tax expense 14,342.76 42.15
Profit after tax 110,229.58 48,415.48
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss -

Items that will not be reclossified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 110,229.58 48,415.48
Earnings per equity share

Profit available for Equity Shareholders 110,229.58 48,415.48

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00

Face Value per share. 10.00 10.00

Basic earnings per share 1.10 0.48

Diluted earnings per share 1.10 0.48

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountant

(W

For and on behalf of the Board
For RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

L] S
. P R (Aed
{’;ﬁ gULLlQ.r\/ M~ an' J.' b

Vineet Khetan & Associates
Membership No. 060270

Director Director
Kolkata Shyam Sunder Mohta Pradeep Hirawat
UDIN: Y060 370 BDTBP Y9y DIN: 00570526 DIN: 00047872

Date: Qy pg 202 Y



. RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited ( Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st Dec, 2024 (Rupee In 00)
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 124,572.34 48,457.63
Adjustments for
Loss of Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments - -
Interest Paid -
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.31 4.31 18.00 18.00
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 124,576.65 48,475.63
(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets (Non-Current)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets (Current) (210,000.00) (453,000.00)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 1,248,752.69 708,305.83
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables - (37,292.14)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other assets (220,965.00) (3,645.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables - -
Increase / (Decrease) of Other financial liabilities (704,602.46) (212,711.12)
Increase / (Decrease) of Other Current Liabilities 1,171.39 114,356.62 (1,591.31) 66.26
Cash generated from operations 238,933.27 48,541.88
Less: Direct taxes paid/ (Refunds) including Interest (Net) -~ :
Cash Flow before Exceptional Items 238,933.27 48,541.88
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities 238,933.27 48,541.88
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Sale / (Purchase) of Property, Plant & Equipments -
Net cash from investing activities - 5
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (112,866.91) (48,651.56)
Interest Paid (29,218.52)]  (142,085.43) (26,803.79) (75,455.35)
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities (142,085.43) (75,455.35)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 96,847.84 (26,913.47)
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 2,626.24 29,539.70
99,474.08 2,626.23
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS :
Balances with Banks 99,428.26 2,610.42
Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 45,82 15.82
99,474.08 2,626.24

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Vineet Khetan & Associates
Chartered Accountant

b

Vineet Khetan & Associates
Membership No. 060270

Kolkata

UDIN: 2ypeo23om kT BP baia
Date: 244+ o $ 202 Yy

For and on behalf of the Board

For RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

gk'j\?/(.f_{f.{ gu. &y n"kq“'\t_,

Director

Shyam Sunder Mohta

DIN: 00570526

PYQJ-‘P"“"“'JI

Director

Pradeep Hirawat
DIN: 00047872



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Notes to the financial statements

A. Share Capital
Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errars

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during the current year

Add: Issue of Share Capital during the period

Less: Shares bought back/ forfieted during the period

Net changes in Equity Share Capital during the year

Balance at the end of the current reporting period

B. Other Equity
Reserves and surplus attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the current year

Less: Dividend paid during the year

Less: Transfer to retained earnings

Balance at the end of the current reporting period

For Vineet Khetan & Associates Pa
Chartered Accountant

Vineet Khetan & Associates

Membership No. 060270

Kolkata

UDIN: 24060 2 70 BT BP w9/ 2
Date: ALy S5, 2_019

(Rupee In 00)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(126,344.15) (174,759.63)
(126,344.15) (174,759.63)
110,229.58 48,415.48
(16,114.57) (126,344.15)

For and on behalf of the Board
For RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Pvt Ltd

ﬁ‘“f TQM Iw&v Men ?fc.J.eePf"‘;”wr

Director
Shyam Sunder Mohta
DIN: 00570526

Director
Pradeep Hirawat
DIN: 00047872



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These Financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time (o time) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ( ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions

(b) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (2). which is also the Company’s functional currency.

(¢) Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for Certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments),

(d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities Fstimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment  the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The application of accounting policies that require
critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have heen
disclosed below. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. The changes in the estimates are reflected
in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

I1) Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer al an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects 1o be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns, discounts. volume rebates, and goods and service tax. The Company recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company regardiess of when the
payment 15 being made

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of Products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Company transfers the control of goods to the customer as per the terms of contract. The
Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separaie performance obligations o which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price. the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing component, non-cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if any). In case of domestic
sales, the company believes that the control gets transferred to the customer on dispaich of the goods from the factory and in case of exports,
revenue is recognised on passage of control as per the terms of contract / incoterms.

Contract Balances

Trade Receivables
A recetvable represents the Company s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i, only the passage of time is required

before payment of the consideration is due), SfeadD &
LA = ] O
)
e




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Refund Liabilities

A refund liability 1s the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured at the
amount the Company ultimately expects it will have 1o return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the
corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Dividend income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the Company’s right 1o receive payment is established.
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.

All other income are recognized on accrual basis.

1) Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of
Property. Plant & Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any direcily
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use Interest and other financial charges on loans borrowed

IV) Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recogmition at cost. Intangible Assets acquired in a business combination is valued at
their fur value at the date of acquisition, Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, 1f any

The useful lives of Intangible Assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an Intangible Asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at the end of cach reporting period. The amortization expense on Intangible Assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.
The Company amortizes intangible assets over their estimated useful hives using the straight line method.

Intangible Assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized. but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annual ly to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite 1s made on a prospective basis,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the asset is derecognized.

V) Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower except for saleable scraps. whose cost is not identifiable, which are valued at
estimated net realisable value. Closing stock has been valued on Weighted Average basis. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course
ol business in bringing such inventories to its location and includes, where applicable. appropriate overheads bused on normal level of activity,

Net realisable valuc is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited
Statement of Significant Accounting Policics for the year ended March 31, 2024

V1) Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument Al
financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. except for trade receivables which are initially measured at
transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly atinbutable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and linancial liabilities, which are
not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and salc of financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement

i. Non derivative financial instruments
1) Financial assets carried at amortized cost
A Tinancial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold the asset in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by hoth collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has
made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classitied as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in

¢) Financial assets at [air value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

d) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carricd at amortized cosi using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration
recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date. the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
imstruments,

¢) Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in the separate financial statements.

il. Derivative financial instruments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in
exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. Such derivative financial instruments are mitially recognized at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulling exchange gains or
losses are included in other income.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
financial asset and the transfer qualifics for derecognition under Ind AS 109, A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is
derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

V) Fair Value Measurement

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All methods of assessing fair value result in
general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy.
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markeis for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

i) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement is unobservable.

[N
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Vi) Impairment
Impairment is recognized based on the following principles:

Financial Assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or loss, Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL.
For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at life time ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss,

Non-Financial Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets [air value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash
mflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash- generating unit) Non- financial assels
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of reporting period.

1X) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
oceurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it 1s either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made,

X) Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. These Financial Statements are presented in [ndian Rupee (rounded ofT 1o the nearest
Lacs),

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the ransaction. Gains &
losses arising on account of realization are accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss,

Monetary Assets & Liabilities in foreign currency that are outstanding at the yearend are translated at the yearend exchange rates and the resultant
gain/loss 1s accounted for in the Statement of Profit & oss.

XI) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value.

X1 Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees, where the Company has no further obligations, Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the
Provident Fund Plan cqual to a specified percentage of the covered emplovee's salary

Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity is paid to employees under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 through unfunded scheme. The Company's liability 15 actuarially
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of the defined benefit plan in its b
measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in ot
in subsequent periods.
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The Company recognises the changes in the net defined benefit obligation like service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs,
gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements and net interest expense or mcome, as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Short term employee benefits are charged ofT at the undiscounted amount in the vear in which the relaled services are rendered

X1 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences 10 the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

XIV) Leases

The company determines whether an arrangement contains  lease by assessing whether the fulfillment of a transaction is dependent on the use of a
specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right o control the use of that asset to the Company in return for payment,

Company as a lessee
The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use asseis at the commencement date of the lease (i e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement o lease liabilitics.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. as follows:

* Leasehold Land is amortised over the period of lease ranging from 30 to 99 years.

* Building 3 to 15 years

I ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company al the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is caleulated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment,

ii) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expecied 1 be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain (o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment oceurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date hecause the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of mterest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option 1o purchase the underlving asset. The Company’s lease liabilities

are ncluded in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
=
ran
@,
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iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company apphies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (ie.. those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assels
recognition exemption 1o leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value
asscts are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all (he risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an assel are classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due 10 1ts operating nature, Initial direct costs incurred n negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
assct and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
arc carned.

XV) Government Grants
‘The Compuny recognizes government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached to them shall be complied with and
the grants will be received. Grants related 1o assets are treated as received from the cost of asset and are recognized as other income in the Statement
of profit & loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Grants related to income are recognized on a systematic basis over
the penods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are miended to compensate and are deducted from the expense in the
statement of profit & loss.

XVT) Income Taxes
Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit & [.0ss except to the extent that it relates (o items recogmzed directly m equity, in which
case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Provision for current tax is made at the current tax rates based on assessable income.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the Financial Statements except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will he
realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substanti vely enacted by the Balance
Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income i the vears in which those temporary differences are expected 1o be recovered or settled. The
effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the
enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized Deferred income taxes are not provided on the
undistributed carnings of subsidiarics and branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future. The company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilitics, where it has a legally enforceable right (o set off the recognized
amounts and where it intends cither 1o settle on a net basis, or 1o realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

XVI) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable (o the equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding, during the period 1s
adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus clement in a rights issuc. share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

FFor the purpose of” calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effeets of all dilutive potential cquity shares.
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XV Current and Non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on curment/non-current classification,

An asset is classified as current when it is:
i) expected Lo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cvele,
ii) held primarily for the purpose of trading,
iii) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period.

A liability 15 classified as current when it is:
1) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating evele.
ii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
1ii) there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

XIX) Dividend
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropnately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

XX) Rounding of Amounts
All amounts disclosed in the standalone Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands as per the requirement of
Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

XXI) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023, as follows:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities 1o disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1. 2023. The
company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policics, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates'
and included amendments o Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates, The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The company has evaluated the amendment and
there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemptions so that it does not apply 1o transactions
that give rise to cqual and offsetting temporary differences, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
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RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 2 Financial Assets (Other financial assets)
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposit (For dematerilisation of shares)
Total

Note 3 Deferred tax assets (net)
On Depreciation Allowance on Property, Plant & Equipments (net)
Total

Note 4 Inventories
(At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)
Work in process of
Total

Note 5 Financial Assets (Trade receivables)
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured;
Outstanding for a period :
Less than six months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total

Note 5(a) - Classification of Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables considered good — Secured;
Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured;
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk;
Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Note 5(a) - Other disclosure of Trade Receivables
Debts due by directors either severally or jointly with any other person;
Debts due by other officer either severally or jointly with any other person;
debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner
or a director or a member.

Note 6 Financial Assets (Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Balances with banks {Unrestricted in Current Account)
Cash on hand (As certified by the management)

Total

Note 7 Financial Assets - Other financial assets (Advance)
Unsecured, considered good
Other Advances
Advance to Developer (Refundable)

Total

Note 8 Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to Staff
Advance against land (inventories) to vendors
Other Advances against expenses

Total

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
450.00 450.00
450.00 450.00
509.94 552.70
509.94 552.70

1,14,31,862.75

1,26,51,396.92

1,14,31,862.75 1,26,51,396.92
37,292.14 37,292.14
37,292.14 37,292.14
37,292.14 37,292.14
37,292.14 37,292.14
99,428.26 2,610.42
45.82 15.82
99,474.08 2,626.24
6,63,000.00 4,53,000.00
6,63,000.00 4,53,000.00
295.00 330.00
4,44,310.00 2,23,310.00
25,833.33 25,833.33

4,70,438.33

2,49,473.33




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Notes to the financial statements as on 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Note 9 Equity Share Capital (Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)
a) Authorised Share Capital
Number of Shares 1,50,00,000.00 1,50,00,000.00
Total Amount 15,00,000.00 15,00,000.00
Issu ubscribed and fully paid Share Capital
Number of Shares 1,00,00,000.00 1,00,00,000.00
Total Amount 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
c) Reconciliation of Number of Equity Shares Qutstanding
As at the beginning & end of the year 1,00,00,000.00 1,00,00,000.00
No shares have either been issued, nor bought back, forfeited
d} Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares with voting right
Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd
Number of Shares 53,63,046.00 53,63,046.00

Percentage of total shares held 53.63% 53.63%
Sanjay Surana

Number of Shares 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00

Percentage of total shares held 10.00% 10.00%
Gaurishankar Kothari

Number of Shares 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00

Percentage of total shares held 10.00% 10.00%
Shyam Sunder Mohata

Number of Shares 9,33,477.00 9,33,477.00

Percentage of total shares held 9.33% 9.33%
Santosh Devi Dhoot

Number of Shares 6,00,000.00 6,00,000.00

Percentage of total shares held 6.00% 6.00%
Kedar Nath Dhoot

Number of Shares 5,40,977.00 5,40,977.00

Percentage of total shares held 5.41% 5.41%

e) The rights, preferences & restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and repayment
of capital
The Company has only one class of equity shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

f) Shares held by holding, ultimate holding, or subidiaries or associates of holding

Name of Equity Shareholders
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Ltd

Number of Shares 53,63,046.00 53,63,046.00
Percentage of total shares held 53.63% 53.63%

g) Shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts.
Number of Shares & Amount

h) Shares issued for consideration other than cash or bonus or bought back from sharehal
No shares have been issued for consideration other than cash l
The company have not issued bonus shares nor have bought back any shares at any time,




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Notes to the financial statements as on

i) Details of Promoter shareholding as at the end of year
RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Gouri Shankar Kothari
Sanjay Babulal Surana
Mohta Ventures LLP
Santosh Devi Dhoot
Kedar Nath Dhoot
YMS Finance Pvt Ltd
Unique Buildcon Private Limited
Land Mark Promotors Private Limited
Rajshree Promotors Private Limited
Vision India Private Limited
Sunder Lal Dugar
Land Mark Plaza Private Limited
Landmark Projects (India) Private Limited

Note: There have been no changes in the promoter shareholding during the year.

Note 10 Other equity
Reserve & Surplus
Surplus from Statement of Profit & Loss
As at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Ind AS Adjustments
As at the end of the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Total

Note 11 Financial Liability (Other Financial Liability)
(Unsecured, as per terms of agreement)
Refundable security deposit against project (interest free)
The above deposit have been received from Developers pursuant to Joint

Development Agreement between Landowner (RDB Jaipur) and Developers.
Total

Note 12 financial liabilities - Borrowings
{(Unsecured, Repayable on Demand, Interest bearing, Including Interest))
From holding Company
Non Banking Financial Companies
Other body Corporates
Total

31st March, 2024

(1,26,344.15)
1,10,229.58

31st March, 2023

Number of Shares

53,63,046.00
10,00,000.00
10,00,000.00
9,33,477.00
6,00,000.00
5,40,977.00
3,25,000.00
72,500.00
32,500.00
32,500.00
32,500.00
30,000.00
25,000.00
12,500.00

(1,74,759.63)
48,415.48

(16,114.57)

(1,26,344.15)

(16,114.57)

(1,26,344.15)

9,00,000.00

9,00,000.00

9,00,000.00

9,00,000.00

4,21,600.00

1,12,704.85
4,21,762.06

4,21,600.00

5,34,466.91

Note 12.a - Loan have been availed for general business purpose and have been used for business purpose.

Note 12.b - Loan taken are in accordance with provisions of Section 73 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act.

Note 12.c - There is no default as on the balance sheet date in repayment of loans or interest thereof.

Note 13 financial liabilities - Trade and other payables
outstanding of micro enterprises and small enterprises;
outstanding of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises,

Trade payables outstanding for a period :
Less than six months
6 months -1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
Maore than 3 years

4,94,400.00

4,94,400.00

4,94,400.00

4,94,400.00

4,94,400.00

4,94,400.00



RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328

Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Notes to the financial statements as on

Note 14 financial liabilities - Other Financial Liabilities
Advances from loint developers against share of Revenue

Advances against Land
Total

Note 15 Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Payables
Salary Payable
Provision for expenses payable
Total

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
4,94,400.00 4,94,400.00
60,91,537.43 35,15,139.89
37,93,176.46 70,74,176.46
98,84,713.89 1,05,89,316.35
2,931.65 2,720.28

945.20 135.18

350.00 200.00

4,226.85 3,055.46




RDB Jaipur Infrastructure Private Limited (Formerly RDB Realty (P) Ltd.)
CIN: U70101WB2005PTC106328
Regd Office: 1st Floor, Bikaner Building, 8/1, Lal Bazar Street, Kolkata-700001

Notes to the financial statements
Note 16 Revenue from Operations

Sale of Construction activities
Share of proceeds from Joint Venture {Revenue sharing model)

TOTAL

Note 17 Other Income
Interest Income

Total

Note 18 Construction Activity Expenses
Other Construction Expenses
Interest & Other Finance Cost (in accordance with IND AS-23)

Consumption

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
13,87,782.87 7,78,198.47
13,87,782.87 7,78,198.47

- 7,636.76
29,218.52 26,803.79
29,218.52 34,440.55

Note 19 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress
Opening Inventory of Work in Progress
Less : Closing Inventory of Work in Progress

1,26,51,396.92
1,14,31,862.75

1,33,32,898.96
1,26,51,396.92

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (A-B) 12,19,534.17 6,81,502.04
Note 20 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and exgratia 11,275.07 7,678.60
Staff Welfare 96.00
Total 11,371.07 7,678.60
Note 21 Finance Cost
Interest on Loan -
Total - -
Note 22 Other Expenses
Rates & Taxes 46.50 47.50
Annual Custodial and Others Charges 265.50 265,50
Filing Fees 44.80 66.60
Conveyance Expenses 79.11 43.82
Travelling Expenses 1,183.04 725.07
Bank Charge 53.09 6.53
Professional Charges 215.50 4,463.50
General Expenses 96.52 283.13
Telephone Exp 15.87
Maintenance Charge 59.00
Business Promotion 35.00
Advertisement 788.53
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments = -
Auditor's Remuneration - -
Statutory Audit Fees 200.00 150.00
Tax Audit - 50.00
Total 3,082.46 6,101.65
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25

26

29

31

32

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Profit before tax 1,10,230 48,415
Income tax expense calculated @ 26.00% (2020-21: 26.00%) 28,660 12,588
Less: Tax rebate on bought forward loss (28,660) (12,588)

Other differences

Total

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

The tax rate used for the year FY 2023-24 and 2022-23 for reconciliations above is the corporate tax payable on taxable profits under the

Income Tax Act, 1961,

Related Party Disclosure

Related Party Relationship
Enterprises where control exists - RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited — Holding

Enterprises under commaon where control - Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited (Subsidiary of holdim_g

Transactions & Balances : [

Transactions with RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Short term unsecured Loan taken
Repayment of Short term unsecured Loan taken
Interest provided Short term unsecured Loan taken
Balances as the end of the year

Transactions with Raj Constructions Projects Private Limited

Short term unsecured Loan taken
Repayment of Short term unsecured Loan taken

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 |
£3,500.00 58,500.00
2,43,725.59 44,000.00
. 12,331.62
- 1,60,225.59
2,67,000.00 .
2,67,000.00

In the opinion of the Board the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are not less than the stated value if realised in ordinary course of
business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary. There is no contingent

liability excepl stated and informed by the Management.

Contingent Liabilities:- Nil (P. Y. Nil)

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any lender from whom funds have been borrowed.

The company does not any knowledge of any transactions or balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,

2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, hence no disclosure have been made.

The company does not have any subsidiary as defined u/s 2{87) and hence guestion of violation of number of layers prescribed under clause
(87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 does not arise.

Company has not taken loan from any banks, hence it is not required to submit/file any quarterly returns and statements,

The funds of the company (barrowed fund, securities premium and share
transferred to developer (pursuant to joint development agreement) and
Development Agreement and also to start/ commence new ventures.
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33 ytilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

A The company has neither advanced or nor loaned or invested funds [either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including fareign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
il) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
B The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company
i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

34 The project of the company, in which RDB Jaipur is a party {owner of land) is delayed by around more than 3 years. The development
agreement dated 23.11.2010 provided for completion of project within 7 years plus 1 year as grace period from the date of joint
development agreement. The owner and developer have mutually agreed to carry the work and complete the project at earliest to maximise
revenue and minimise losses due ta delay the completion of projects.

35 Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
Particulars at at 31st March, 2024 Carrying Value Amartised Cast Fair Value
Financial Assets

Non Current

Other financial assets 450,00 - -
Current
Trade receivables 37,292.14 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 99,474.08 - -
Other financial assets (Advance) 6,63,000,00 -
Total Financial Assets 8,00,216.22 - -

Financial Liabilities
Non Current

Other financial liabilities 9,00,000.00 - -
Current
Borrowings 4,21,600.00
Trade and other payables 4,94,400.00 . .
Other financial liabilities 98,84,713.89
Total Financial Liabilities 1,17,00,713.89

Particulars at at 31st March, 2023

Particulars at Carrying Value Amortised Cost Fair Value
Financial Assets
Non Current

Other financial assets 450.00 -

Current
Trade receivables - - :
Cash and cash equivalents 2,626.24 -

Other financial assets (Advance)
Total Financial Assets
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Financial Liabilities
Non Current
Other financial liabilities
Current
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Capital Requirements

9,00,000

5,34,467 5,34,467

4,94,400 4,94,400 4
1,05,89,316 1,05,89,316 -
1,25,18,183 1,16,18,183 -

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the

shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash

equivalents
1 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
|Particulars
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Borrmfvi.ngs (long-term and _ short-term, including current 4,21,600.00 5,34,466.91
maturities of long term borrowings)

Trade payables 4,94,400.00 4,94,400.00

le - i

Other ;_)avab es (current and ‘ non-current, excluding current 1,07,84,713.89 114,89,316.35
maturities of long term borrowings)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents {99,474.08) (2,626.24)

Net debt 1,16,01,239.82 1,25,15,557.03
Equity share capital 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
Other equity (1,26,344.15) {1,74,759.63)
Total Capital 8,73,655.85 8,25,240.37
Gearing ratio 0.08 0.07

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the
financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,

2023.

Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance and support Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash
and cash equivalents and loans and advances and refundable deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary
risk management focus is to minimise potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company's exposure to
credit risk Is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers.
#y and analyse the risks faced by the

The Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to ide
rd@nce with the same. Risk assessment and
et conditions and the Company’s activities.
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This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risk.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

(i) Credit risk, (ii) Liquidity risk, and (iii) Market risk

i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss of the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally form the Company receivables from customers. Credit arises when a customer or counterparty does
not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with bank. The
Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty. The carrying amount of financial assets represent the
maximum credit risk exposure.

Trade receivables

Receivables resulting from sale of praperties: Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances before transfer of
ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s credit risk in this respect.

The ageing of trade receivables are as follows:

Particulars As on 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023
Maore than 6 months 37,292.14 37,292.14
Others

i) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price.
Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's finance team is responsible for liquidity, funding
as well as settlement management. In addition, Processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on
contractual undiscounted payments

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years

As at 31st March 2024
Borrowings 4,21,600.00 - -
Trade payables 4,94,400.00
Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current
Other Financial Liabilities - Current 98,84,713.89

As at 31st March 2023
Borrowings 5,34,466.91 - -
Trade payables 4,94,400.00 - -

Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current
Other Financial Liabilities - Current

9,00,000.00 -

9,00,000.00
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iii) Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real estate risk.
The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange or commaodity derivative contracts. The comapny has availed fixed rate
borrowings and accordingly, there is no significant exposure to the market risk.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
borrowings.

Company manages its interest rate risk by accepting loans and borrowings of fixed rate. Most of the borrowings of the Company are
unsecured and at fixed rates, The Company does not enter into any interest rate swaps.

b) Other Price risk - Company does not have any exposure in equity instruments or commedity, subject to price change,
¢} Currency risk - The Company does not have any exposure in foreign currency.

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountant For ROB Jaipur Infrastructure Pyt Ltd
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37 Following Ratios to be disclosed Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Changes (%)
a) Current Ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities 1,27,02,067 117 1,33,93,789 115 1.87%
1,08,19,241 1,16,21,239

Current Assets includes Cash & Cash Equivalents, Current Investrents, and Short Term Loans & Advances at the end of year,
Current Liabilities includes Other Current Liabilities and Short Term Provision for Current Income Tax at the end of year.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as deviation is less than 25%.

b) Debt-Equity Ratio = Short & Long term Debts / 13,21,600 1.34 14,34,467 1.64 -18.19%
Shareholder's Equity 9,483,885 8,73,656

Short & Long term Debts includes Short Term Borrowings and Refundable Security deposit from Developers
Shareholder's Equity is Equity share capital and Reserves
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as deviation is less than 25%.

¢} Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Net profit before Tax, 1,24,577 0.30 48,476 0.09 225.79%
Interest and Depreciation / Debt to be serviced next year 4,21,600 5,34,467

Net profit before Tax, Interest and Depreciation as per Profit & Loss Statement
Debt to be serviced next year is short term debt (payable on demand) and amount payable within a year in Long term debt.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Since this year company has recognised Revenue and has earned profit.

d) Return on Equity Ratio = Net Profit after taxes / Average 1,10,230 0.12 48,415 0.06 108.23%
Shareholder’s Equity 9,28,771 8,49,448

Net Profit after taxes is profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss
Average Shareholder's Equity is average of opening and closing net-worth of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Since this year company has recognised Revenue and has earned profit.

e} Inventory turnover ratio = Gross Revenue from sale of 13,87,783 0.12 7,78,198 0.06 92.41%
products and services / Average Inventories 1,20,41,630 1,29,92,148

Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations (excluding Other Income),
Average Inventories is average of opening and closing Inventories of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as last year ratio was NIL.

f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Gross Revenue from 13.87,783 37.21 7,78,198 41,74 -10.83%
sale of products and services / Average Trade Receivables 37,292 18,646

Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations {excluding Other Income).
Average Trade Receivables is average of opening and closing Trade Receivables of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as last year ratio was NIL.

£) Trade payables turnover ratio = Purchases / Average - < MNA
Trade payables 4,94,400 4,94,400
Purchases are purchases of goods and / or services for the projects
Average Trade Payables is average of opening and closing Trade Payables of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as there are no purchases.

h) Net capital turnover ratio = Gross Revenue from sale of
products and services [/ Average Working Capital 18.27.6

7,78,198

0.45 70.59%
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37

38

Following, Ratios to be disclosed Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Changes (%)

Average Working Capital is average of opening and closing Average Working Capital of the company.
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as last year ratio was NIL.

(i) Net profit ratio = Net Profit of the year / Gross Revenue 1,10,230 0.08 48,415 0.06 27.67%
from sale of products and services 13,87,783 7,78,198

Net Profit of the year is Profit after tax for the year under review,
Gross Revenue from sale of products and services is Revenue of operations {excluding Cther Income).
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Not applicable as last year ratio was NIL.

(j) Return on Capital employed = Earning before interest and 1,24,572 0,09 48,458 0.03 157.55%
taxes / Capital Employed 14,04,975 14,07,570

Eamning before interest and taxes is profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss (as no Interest expense)
Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability at the end of year
Reason for Deviation of more than 25% - Since this year company has recognised Revenue and has earned profit,

(k) Return on investment. - Not applicable as there are no investments.

The figures of reported have been rounded off in hundreds in accordance with the amended mandatory requirements of Division Il of
Schedule |1l except Number of Shares, Number of units, Earnings per share and Ratios

For Vineet Khetan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountant For RDRB laipur Infrastructure Pyt Ltd
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